STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, AUGUST 4, 2015 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners
for the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey
County Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and
during this meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted
agenda.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for August 4, 2015
4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for July 21, 2015

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

5. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 07/17/15 $394,138.04 and $1,791.50.
Accounts payable checks date 07/16/15 for $37,514.66, 07/21/15 for $6,000, 07/24/15 for
$2,069,929.89 and $6,923.81 and 07/27/15 for $33,437 45.

1




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

For possible action approval of cancelation of the September 15, 2015 meeting.

For possible action approval of Assessor’s recommended correction to tax roll for exempt
property.

For possible action approval of Assessor’s recommended correction to 2015-16 tax roll for
exemptions.

For possible action approval of Assessor’s recommended correction to 2015-16 tax roll for partial
property tax abatements pursuant to NRS 361.4722 through 361.4724,

For possible action approval of Assessor’s recommended correction to tax roll.
For possible action approval of update to Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
including: Policies 302, Candidates and Recruitment; 303, Job Announcements; 311, Rehire; 313,

Casual Employment; and 314, Volunteer Program.

For possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:
A. L. K. TOWNE CONSTRUCTION -- Contractor / 949 East Roland Street ~ Carson City

(contractor)

B. SIMERSON CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 2701 Conestoga Drive ~ Carson City
(contractor)

C. THE BUCKNER HOUSE - General / 81 North A Street (short-term house rental) vC

D. TESLA MOTORS, INC. - Contractor / 3500 Deer Creek Road ~ Palo Alto, CA (general
contractor)

E. VIVID VISTAS - HB / 401 Canyon Way #20 (handyman) LW
F. VETERAN CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 170 James Avenue ~ Dayton (contractor)

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action ~ No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action ~ No Public Comment)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of resolution 15-430 authorizing a medium-term
obligation installment purchase agreement in the amount of $725,000 for a 2011 HME, Ferrara,
110" Quint Platform Ladder Fire Truck.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Contract with State of Nevada, Department of Health and
Human Services for provision of Medicaid match services and providing terms on which Storey
County will be billed by the State for its share of Medicaid expenditures.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve second reading of Ordinance 15-266 an
ordinance amending Storey County Code section 17.12.064 Public Utility Uses to establish a
procedure for permitting aboveground utility projects and renewable energy generation projects
and providing for other properly related matters.




COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

18

19.

. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve first reading of ordinance 15-264 an application

No. 2014-020 (Continued from 12/02/14) by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to amend the
text of Storey County Code Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) by adding Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial-
Commercial Zone. The intent of the proposed I-C Zone is to provide for certain mixed-use
industrial and commercial uses where found appropriate by the board with recommendation by
the Planning Commission. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and the
draft zone text may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or
planning@storeycounty.org.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Application No. 2014-021 (Continued from 12/02/14
meeting) by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC., and Storey County on behalf of The Nature
Conservancy, LLC and the Union Pacific Railroad Company to amend the Official Storey County
Zoning Map. The amendments will apply regulatory zones to approximately 600 acres of land
located in McCarran, Nevada (river District near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) which was in
July of 2014 transferred from Washoe County to Storey County by mean of boundary line
adjustment. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and maps may be
obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org.

20. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
A. PURE VIDA SIERRAS ART, LLC -- Home Business / 980 Cartwright Road (artist)
B. RICHARD THOMAS ROOFING - Contractor / 1915 McCloud ~ Reno (roofing contractor)
C. A-1CLEAN CARE - General / 59 Damonte Ranch ~ Reno (janitorial service)
D. AMUNDSON ROOFING, INC. - Contractor / 18124 Wedge Parkway ~ Reno (roofing
contractor)
E. 3D DATACOM, INC. - Contractor / 11365 Sunrise Gold Circle ~ Rancho Cordova, CA (elect
cont.)
F. TELEDATA CONTRACTORS, INC. - Contractor / 5160 South Valley View ~ Las Vegas (Iv
contractor)
G. TIMOTHY FACKLER - General / 48 South A Street (rides for tips) VC
H. A-Z TRUCK MARINE AND RV - General / 3033 Waltham Way (repair, parts, access.) TRI
I. RICH DOSS, INC. - General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC
21. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
22. ADJOURNMENT
NOTICE:

* Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

» Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

e Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

e Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

3




» Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

Storey County is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before July 28, 2015; Virginia City
Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands Fire
Department and Lockwood Fire Department. |




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 4, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

[a—y

. Title: Approval of minutes for July 21, 2015

b

. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 775 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Minutes are attached.

h

. Supporting materials: Attached.

N

. Fiscal impact: N/A
Funds Availabie: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney

oo

. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e —
[ ]

Agenda Item No. 4




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, JULY 2157, 2015 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner McGuffey, District Attorney
Anne Langer, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, County Manager Pat Whitten, Administrative
Officer/Senior Planner Austin Osborne, Planner Jason VanHavel, Community Services Director
Cherie Nevin, Emergency Management Director Joe Curtis, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Recorder
Jen Chapman, Deputy Tony Dosen and Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for July 21, 2015

Motion: Approve Agenda for July 21, 2015, Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary:
Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for July 7, 2015

Motion: Approve Minutes for July 7, 2015, Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary:
Yes=3)

CONSENT AGENDA
5. FPor possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 07/02/15 $453,289.86. Accounts payable
checks date 06/29/15 for $109,687.21 and $50,659.28, checks date 07/10/15 for $100,000.00 and
$6708.91, and checks date 6/03/15 for $50,541.64.




6. For

7. For

8. For

possible action approval of the Justice Court Quarterly report.
possible action approval of the June 2015 Treasurer Report.

possible action approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

A. PURE VIDA SIERRAS ART, LLC -~ Home Business / 980 Cartwright Road (artist)

B.
C.
D.

E.

RICHARD THOMAS ROOFING - Contractor / 1915 McCloud ~ Reno (roofing contractor)
A-1 CLEAN CARE - General / 59 Damonte Ranch ~ Reno (janitorial service)

AMUNDSON ROOFING, INC. - Contractor / 18124 Wedge Parkway ~ Reno (roofing
contractor)

3D DATACOM, INC. - Contractor / 11365 Sunrise Gold Circle ~ Rancho Cordova, CA (elect
cont.)

TELEDATA CONTRACTORS, INC, - Contractor / 5160 South Valley View ~ Las Vegas (Iv
contractor)

TIMOTHY FACKLER - General / 48 South A Street (rides for tips) VC

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda, Action: Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary:

Yes=3)

9. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment}: Committee/Staff Reports

Joe Cu

Commi

rtis, Emergency Management Director:

Update of flood damage in Mark Twain. There have been two significant events -the first on
June 10t and the second July 6% through 9%. A lot of soil came off the hills and washed down
into the Estates area, and in to the Lyon County area. The loss of soil left hard ground
creating subsequent rain to sheet down the hills rather than soak into the ground.

It has been determined that approximately 39 residences had landscaping damage, 165
residences with driveway or drainage damage, and at least 11 residences with structural
damage or impact. There were 4 or 5 roads damaged.

A survey was done with the State of Nevada, including other areas in the State affected by the
storms, in an attempt to put together sufficient damage cost factors to meet FEMA’s loss
damage threshold. FEMA only looks at structural issues.

A second survey was completed with the Small Business Administration (SBA), who has a
flood damage program for low interest loans to residents. The SBA is working to see if the
threshold can be met for these loans to residents.

Subsequent reviews of the area reveal a number of residences built on slabs causing water to
go into structures. Many residents in the area are doing mitigation work. A number of
residents had water 10 to 14 inches deep under their homes. Landscaping has disappeared.
Drainage factors have been documented and ways to improve drainage in this area are being
looked at. There may be some grant opportunities to assist in some of these areas.

The damage impact in the Mark Twain community is significant.

ssioner McGuffey thanked Mr. Curtis for sending out emergency weather forecasts.

2




Mr. Curtis explained the distribution system and who is receiving the weather forecasts.

County Manager Whitten: Suggested the Commissioners could forward the weather forecasts to
whomever they see fit.

Vice Chairman Gilman: Impressed with the community’s response. Staff is focused on what can be
done in the future. Mr. Gilman understands there is a new flood study under consideration where
issues can be addressed.

Chairman McBride: Are the FEMA and SBA loans all low interest loans. Is there grant money
available?

Mr. Curtis: It is generally low interest loans for private property. Infrastructure loans through
FEMA are usually a grant with match funds. For the near future, a Hazard Mitigation grant for the
Six Mile Canyon drainage is being explored. This is a FEMA project with a match factor.

Chair McBride: Even if loans are low interest, some residents still would not be able to afford them.

Mr. Curtis: An income study for the Mark Twain area is being pursued to develop an “income-
based” factor.

Vice Chair Gilman: Residents need to sign the surveys in order for the County to obtain financial
assistance.

Chair McBride: Public Works has done a tremendous job in the area in cleaning up the
neighborhoods. The service of Joe Curtis is very much appreciated.

Cherie Nevin, Community Services Director:

¢ The income survey will be launched sometime in the fall. We will be working with Rural
Community Assistance Corporation for the survey.

¢ A town hall meeting will be held at the Mark Twain Community Center at the end of August.
The meeting will enable residents to discuss the flood, income survey, and other issues of the
area. More information will be forthcoming.

» Virginia City Highlands is hosting its Community Awareness Day, Saturday, July 25t - 10AM
to 2PM at the Fire Station. A great opportunity to meet neighbors and learn about services in
the community.

» Approximately 75 Fullbright Scholars will be coming to the Comstock on August 198 UNR
pays all the expenses of this visit, including lunch at the park, a train ride, and a panel
discussion held at the Fourth Ward School.

* USDA has developed a program to assist homeowner’s with wells. Income guidelines do
apply and must be met. Information can be obtained from Cherie Nevin or Austin Osborne.

* National Night Out will be held August 4™ from 4PM to 7PM in Virginia City and at the
Loockwood Park.

» Health Fair will be held November 7t at Piper’s Opera House.

¢ Flu shot clinic are scheduled throughout the month of October at the Senior Centers and
Community Centers in the County.




Austin Osborne, Senior Planner:

The Master Plan process is on-going. A meeting was recently held in the Highlands in
response to an invitation from the HOA Boards.

Proposed text for discussion regarding comumercial use in the Highlands was distributed.
Over the years, a number of people - although not necessarily interested in this use - have
asked if this idea could be discussed in a public forum. This would allow residents to express
whether or not they would want a small store or some type of shop in the Highlands.

A number of residents attended this meeting to discuss this item,

A lot of correspondence has since been received most expressing opposition to the idea of
commercial use.

Accordingly, language has been re-drafted regarding this issue and request has been made to
present both drafts to the Boards for discussion by residents. Other types of uses will also be
discussed, including housing, north-east connectors, east-west connectors, north-south
connectors, roads, and whatever else.

[t is important and welcome for the community to provide comments, whether an idea is liked
or not, regardless of any controversy. These comments become part of the official record
which backs-up the Master Plan in the event of a challenge.

Mr. Osborne will be attending the Highlands barbeque on July 25t and will be available to
anyone to discuss the commercial use issue or anything else related to planning and the
Master Plan. Mr. Osborne is also scheduled to attend the VCHPOA on August 11 to discuss
this item.

A meeting has been held with the Comstock Historic District regarding up-date of the sign
ordinance and what would be appropriate to encourage economic development and also to
allow businesses “off the beaten path” to be able to attract business to their locations.
Progress is moving forward on the Courthouse parking lot project.

The Flood Plain Ordinance is being reviewed. This will include planning for Mark Twain.
Van Pools are running at TRI. VPI Van Pools and the local restaurants have teamed up.
Nationwide Insurance through Veterinary Pet Insurance provides pet insurance for anyone.
This insurance is provided to employees at no cost to the County. The County endorses the
company and by being in a group, employees or any members in the group, can get a
discount. We are also working with VPI for Storey County residents to have access to these
discounts.

Hugh Gallagher, Comptroller:

L ]

A meeting was recently held with the Department of Taxation regarding several items. The
tirst concerning SB170, which includes abatements going to SWITCH. [t was determined that
option taxes are not going to be collected on behalf of the Department of Taxation and will go
to the State.

Interim financing for the “quint” fire truck was also discussed. This is a special use truck for
TRI needed for the length of the ladder.

Discussion was also held regarding sales tax collection and distribution to discover if there is a
measuring point.

The V & T Rail Commission was discussed. A meeting was also held with the Rail
Commission regarding payments Storey County makes through a voter-approved Resolution.
The County wants to know if the V & T Rail Commission has abided by the Interlocal
Agreement, This has not been done and the County has withheld funds until such time as

4




comment from the Rail Commission is received. Audit procedures are in place and will be
sent to an independent accounting firm. This should not take very long.

Commissioner McGuifey commented that a proposal has been received from the V & T Rail
Commission. The Department of Taxation needs money to accept the annual audit. The Rail
Commission is looking to Storey County to help out and support this.

Mr. Gallagher does not anticipate the audit taking very long. After receipt of the audit, it is
recommended that the parties enter into a new Interlocal Agreement specifying more detail so
the situation can be followed more closely.

Pat Whitten, County Manager:
On behalf of Chief Gary Hames:

¢ The County has taken delivery of 3 new structure engines. Two of the three are in service -
one in Virginia City and one in the Highlands. The third will be ready and sent to Lockwood
in the next few days.

* New chassis and refurbished cabs on 3 ambulances have been completed and are in service in
Virginia City, the Highlands, and Lockwood.

e AT110foot, aerial ladder truck (“quint”), has been purchased for TRI. Tesla is making the
payments on this purchase as previously approved under the General Services Agreement.
Delivery is expected within 60 days.

¢ Re-staffing and re-opening of Fire Station 75 in TRI is scheduled for August 10%, Crews will
have orientation and training two weeks prior.

County Manager Report:

e Thanks to Mike Nevin and Joe Curtis for the work in Mark Twain. A team is being formed to
address the issues in Mark Twain pro-actively, being conscious of all the comments made at
this meeting. There are steps and mitigation that need to be done.

* The Flood Plan needs to be up-dated and focused on the Mark Twain area.

» With the help of Cherie Nevin, it is hoped that some grant sources will be determined to help
in the Mark Twain area. This may include a community grant. The County is committed to
do whatever is possible.

» The District Attorney’s office has committed to turn up the pressure on nuisance properties.

10. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

Commissioner Jack McGuffey:

e The Fourth Ward School thanks the County for the small increase in the County’s
contribution.

s Heard the NACO conference was a great experience.

¢ The 3r4 Annual Comstock Classics Car Show was held this last weekend. It was a big
success. Everyone loves the park. Due to the number of attendees, there was a small issue
with parking. Use of the baseball field may be requested in the future.

« Attended the Jeep Posse dinner. There was a good crowd and the dinner was great.

Vice-Chairman Gilman:
e The Master Plan process is a critical opportunity for the communities to communicate for far-
reaching land planning and uses, and to debate the things not wanted in the communities.
5




There is disappointment in some of the misunderstandings and mis-interpretations that are
out there. People want to find fault with the fact that items were merely being discussed and
analyzed. Everyone is encouraged to attend Master Plan meetings to discuss what people
want and don’t want. Comments on the record are a defensive position if something comes up
that we do not want in the community. The meetings are an open forum to discuss, review
and consider.

e Mr. Gilman is looking for property tax and rollback relief. Staff is encouraged to look at that
for this coming year.

Chairman McBride:

¢ The NACO conference was attended by Chair McBride and County Manager Whitten. It was
a great event and well run. This was an opportunity to attend workshops and obtain
continuing education. Chair McBride learned how fortunate Storey County and the State of
Nevada are. There are extremely poor Counties in other parts of the country.

¢ On July 31st and August 1%, Virginia City will host the first weekend of Hot August Nights. In
addition to the cars, there will be booths, music, food, and beverages.

¢ Last week the Blue Knights Motorcycle Club was in town. The group is comprised of retired
police officers.

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration of letters on interest and appointment of
planning commissioner to fill the vacancy and represent precinct 4 (Mark Twain) on the Storey
County Planning Commission. The vacancy was posted and letters of interest were received by
June 26, 2015.

Austin Osborne presented this item. Ron Engelbrecht has submitted a letter of interest
requesting appointment to the vacant seat on the Storey County Planning Commission. A
planning commissioner is someone who is impartial, who cares about and is from the
community, and is someone who can make decisions for and represent the people of the area
regarding various land uses in the area.

Chair McBride said there could not be better a candidate to apply for this position.

Mr. Osborne indicated that Mr. Engelbrecht has been strongly involved in his community and
the County as a whole. Mr. Osborne recommends approval of this appointment.

County Manager Whitten thanked Mr. Engelbrecht and his wife for always stepping up to the
plate.

Motion: I, Lance Gilman, motion to appoint Mark Twain resident Ron Engelbrecht to fill the current
Precinct 4 Mark Twain District vacancy on the Storey County Planning Commission, Action:
Approve Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval and acceptance of a Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) award in the amount of $114,206.00 for Cab and Chassis Upgrades to the
Storey County Fire Protection District Lockwood Ambulance and authorization for Cherie Nevin
to sign all associated grant documentation.




Cherie Nevin said this grant was selected as the County’s number one project, submitted and
presented to the CDBG Advisory Committee in March and recommended for approval. This
item is for the grant award, grant agreement and certification letter. This grant does not require a
match.

County Manager Whitten said Ms. Nevin did a great job in securing this grant. The CDBG grants
are getting harder to come by.

Motion: Approve the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) award in the amount of
$114,206.00 for Cab and Chassis Upgrades to the Storey County Fire Protection District Lockwood
Ambulance and authorization for Cherie Nevin to sign all associated grant documentation, Action:
Approve  Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Contract with State of Nevada, Department of Health and
Human Services for provision of Medicaid match services and providing terms on which Storey
County will be billed by the State for its share of Medicaid expenditures.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis presented this item. This is the Medicaid match contract.
Medicaid is the State administered program providing medical services for largely low income
persons. If the program meets Federal requirements, the federal government will put money in
towards paying the costs of providing the benefits. The federal government requires the
provision of benefits and determination of eligibility be uniform across the State. In order to
accomplish this, the State mandates every County to enter into an interlocal agreement with the
State to provide the services the State is going to provide.

Mr. Loomis reviewed the process and what is provided by the State. The agreement provides the
County will make payments based on a mandatory tax of .08 cents per $100 in value under the ad
valorem tax as mandated by statute. Mr. Loomis is of the understanding the County has never
reached this amount, however this is the cap in which the County has liability.

County Manager Whitten stated he believes it is inferred in the agreement that the County can
tax up to .08 cents per $100 in ad valorem - that is the cap. The County is currently taxing at .01

cent, which is generating sufficient funds for this account to fund both Medicaid and anything
else that is eligible under the administration of this agreement.

Mr. Whitten asked Mr. Loomis if this is stating that the tax rate will have to be raised .07 cents -
that the County is compelled to pay .08 cents.

Mzr. Loomis said this is what is required by statute.

Mr. Whitten recommends this agreement not be approved at this time. There would need to be a
fiscal impact analysis if there is going to be an increase.

Motion: Continue Item 13 to August 4, 2015, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,




Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary:
Yes=3)

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of accounts payable checks date 07/10/15 for
$771,734.52.

Chairman Marshall McBride abstains from voting on the check payable to the Bucket of Blood,
Inc. County Manger Whitten indicated the Bucket of Blood item was approved by a previous
Board.

Motion: Approval of accounts payable checks date 07/10/15 for $771,734.53, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried
by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit 2015-021 by Kathryn Ann Muhs, the
applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit to construct a mother-in-law quarters attached to an
existing garage and single-family residence at 2065 Applegate Road, Virginia City Highlands,
Storey County, Nevada, (APN: 003-092-95).

Jason VanHavel, Planner, presented this item. This is an application for a Special Use Permit for
construction of a mother-in-law quarters on property located in the Virginia City Highlands. The
Recommended Conditions of Approval have been updated based on the Planning Commission’s
recommendation to strengthen the language regarding the potential Nevada Department of
Resources well metering requirements. The revisions apply to Provision No. 7.

The Planning Commission and Planning Department recommend approval with the amended
requirements,

Mr. Van Havel read the Findings:

The following findings of fact are evident with regard to the requested Special Use Permit when
the recommended conditions of approval in Section 6 - as amended - Recommended Conditions
of Approval are applied:

The Special Use Permit complies with all federal, state, and county regulations.

The Special Use Permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety
hazards on the adjacent properties or the surrounding area.

The conditions of the Special Use Permit adequately address potential fire hazards
and require compliance with the applicable fire codes, including setback and fire
protection ratings.

The conditions under this Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in SCC Chapter 17.40 Estate Zone and Chapter 17.03.150 Special
Use Permits, or any other federal, state, or county regulations, including
building and fire codes.




Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by Staff, the Planning Commission, the Findings
under 5.1 of the Staff Report and other Findings deemed appropriate by the County Commission,
and in compliance with the conditions of approval in Section 6 of this report, I hereby recommend
conditional approve of Special Use Permit Application Number 2015-021 for the construction of the
mother-in-law quarters located at 2065 Applegate Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County,
Nevada (APN: 003-092-95) as amended, Action: Approve, Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey
Seconded by: Vice Chair McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=3)

16. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

ROSENDIN ELECTRIC - Contractor / 880 Maybury Road ~ San Jose, CA (elect. contractor)
RENOWN HEALTH URGENT CARE -- General / 420 USA Parkway (Urgent Care) TRI
APPLIED SOIL WATER TECHNOLOGIES - Contractor / 56 Coney Island ~ Sparks
(engineering)

HERTZ EQUIPMENT RENTAL - Contractor / 1610 Kleppe Lane ~ Sparks (equipment rental)
LOBO CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 3700 N Virginia ~ Reno {(contractor)

SIERRA ROOFING SUPPLY - Contractor / 5900 S Lake Forest Dr ~ McKinney, TX (contractor)
LRG CONSTRUCTION, LLC ~ Contractor / 2215 Driscoll Drive ~ Reno (contractor)
QUALITY PLUS SVCS - Contractor / 2215 Renaissance Drive ~ Las Vegas (contractor)

A-Z TRUCK MARINE AND RV - General / 3033 Waltham Way (repair, parts, access.) TRI
IONIX, LLC - General / 3033 Waltham Way, Unit 5 (metal fabrication) location change =~ TRI
RICH DOSS, INC. ~ General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

e

ATHZIORED

County Manager Whitten on behalf of the Community Development Department recommends approval
of items a. through h. and j., and continuance of items i. and k.

Motion: Approveitemsa. b, c,d, e, f,g,h,and]j, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair
Gilman, Seconded by: Commissioner McGuifey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(Summary: Yes=3)

Motion: Continue items i. and k., Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chair Gilman,
Seconded by: Commissioner McGuffey, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (Summary:
Yes=3)

17. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Storey County resident, Nicole Barde: What is the status of the freight depot purchase? What is the
intended use of this property?

Chair McBride said the purchase is in negotiation. The property could be used as train depot, a
convention center, or for special events.

County Manager Whitten indicated we're getting a little ahead regarding intended use of the
property. The existing owner has cared for and loves this property greatly. The County has made it
a practice over the last 50 years plus to acquire historic treasures and utilize special award grant
funds to preserve and protect these properties. After that is done, the County can look at uses.




Ms. Barde: What are the Switch abatements?

Mr. Whitten answered that real property taxes are not abated - Switch will pay 100% of property
taxes. There’s a massive amount of equipment going through this company. This would fall under
personal property and those taxes are abated to a level of 75% for 15 years. There are certain hurdles
and thresholds to be met. All but 2% of sales and use taxes are abated, with the 2% going to the State
not the County, for 15 years.

The standard for other companies at this time is 50% abatement of sales and use taxes for 10 years,
and personal property is 50% and 10 years.

Mr. Whitten clarified, keeping in mind that Switch is a privately owned corporation and Mr.
Whitten cannot speak for them, ultimately the amount of their investments over time is staggering. .
Fees charged by the County’s Community Development Department and the Fire District, were
discussed with Switch and OK'd up front. Switch will be paying 100% of all those fees. Since
they’re paying 100% of their real property tax and what should be staggering amounts on personal
property tax, there is no need to request assistance from them in staffing a fire station or adding
more police.

Mzr. Whitten discussed additional impacts and highlights of Switch being in Storey County.

Ms, Barde: Will they also be doing, like in the Highlands, if I put in a pole I pay so everyone else has
to pay for that pole, you had mentioned as part of the Tesla agreement relative to the utilities and
some of the infrastructure, they're willing to front us that money but that as more people come in -
is that more people in the Tesla eco-system, or is it more people anywhere in TRI?

Mr. Whitten responded that this methodology, the NV Energy line extension, was a factor in the
County’s agreement with Tesla but strictly as far as who pays a percentage of that quint fire truck
previously mentioned. The County obtained that particular piece of equipment only because of
Tesla. We had equipment that would service up to 55 feet, but Tesla needed equipment that would
go higher. The County and the Commission agreed that should another building go in at TRI that
exceeds 55 feet in height where the company would also require use of that quint fire truck, then
those payments will be shared between Tesla and that company under the structure mentioned.

Ms. Barde: So you're not doing any bill backs on the Tesla specific?

Mr. Whitten answered not for this project because it does not exceed 55 feet. That only applied to
the quint truck, it did not apply to anything else.

18. ADJOURNMENT 11:40

Respectfully Submitted,

10




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 4, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 07/17/15 $394,138.04 and
$1,791.50. Accounts payable checks date 07/16/15 for $37,514.66, 07/21/15 for
$6,000, 07/24/15 for $2,069,929.89 and $6,923.81 and 07/27/15 for $33,437.45.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims

5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact;
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA __NA__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
i

Agenda Item No. 6




HTENSYIHL

ShSs

YENQISSIWWOD HANOISSTHHOD NYWITYHO

PEIJUOTSETUWOD FOo pIeog Ajuno) Asxols 3yl Aq psaocaddy

70 8€T ‘¥6E PPIBATYS T TRIOL
9T 0T6°'8 FI0IDONPIC 0% IPFSULIL IDBN Te30l,
057 TET 'L 3174 deg TQ UO pzsIX spag sedordwz reIol
, €206 '€E62 13180dad jo9atg ssdordug Tesof
LZ°99L°T i8ypay) Iafordwyg Teacl
Ly TLE QT {BAOSYD IOJAMpaAg Tel0L
TV LOS'EL ‘PALIE JI0F IDFFURILL ISEN TEIOL
Iynowy asfed # peq # ag

/4 dwg  /yosyp

8 L 9 5 ¥ € g 1 :sdnoxp yToxfeg
ST/2T/L0 193eq pus-poiIsg ST/LT/L0 93eq oayD aepInbay 9dAl TrOIARg

AUYNIWITING aazgTbay yooup 003STIET ST/ST/LO  ‘uny
5 abeg WALSAS TTOYAYE ALNNOD XEHOLS Y0TS0ud :3day




HONVEASHI INIWIEILAY YAOA 05" T6L°T ST/0T/% 00¢ STSHED 6LITLO
QweN Jojonpag Junowy a3eg # paa # osun # osuD
TeUTETIO Juswasetdsy
ipeoerdes ussq SeY YOIL AO3oNPSP LBUTACTTIOF oyl

Ia1stboay Juswanerdsy ooyl Z0:ZPi6 ST/LT/LO  uny
T sbeg WELSAS TTIOHAVE AINNQD AFIOLS YE92908d 3day




YANOISSIWHOD

abeg

Sd¥H HOLIMS

NOIIdTHDSET

STd0UYd § SHXYL

HADIOANI

99 PITLE

ST/9T/L 99 p1S°LE

aLva TYLOL
M¥DEHD  MOAHD

NOILVZIHOHLIOY ONV MIIAHY 40 INIWIOQITMONIDY

TYLOL SMOEHO QEJAL

99'¥IS LE

LNOOWY

¥ALSIDTY SHOHHD JZAAL

ALNNGD

ATYOLS

ATANSYFAL 0D LS LBLEB

£1e 9102

AWYN HOONHA #AHOIAY  UVEX QHEWON
TYDSIA ADIHD

ST/9T/L0 ¢ @3wg unyg

06€T8d ‘oN aaoday



1

abeya

00'00G "9

00"ooo’e

Te30L
HosD

00°000'9

Junowy

AENEOLLY 1LDIdlsIa

D mmqﬂomﬁmﬁo

NOILVZINOHLOV ANY MEIATY J0 LNTATITITHONAIT

T st/12/L

#X3YDNOA  33RQ woTidraosag

ST/¥Z/L  8Y09UD DYuOI3DSTH I03 xoasthey
ALRROD ATIOLS

TRIOL B)39YD

LSTAEEOT OOV

7T dNo¥s ¥FL¥0d

IDTOAUT

ST/ET/LO
HDOSETEE

Iopusyp

1

Xacunpg

HoaD
oedeg unyg
PON jxodey



1

00" 20z
$9°Z8E’L £ETLET'E
BLTRS
0B LES 2
LET 96T
08 0z2 08 022
5626 60 0%
8L vz
6179
8L 8T
867 €0T
~£9°59T
95°L5
s8° 19 05 9%
SE°GT
98" ZLT 98 ZLT
05 T8O T 00" 68T
oS z68
00052 00052
00" 60€ 00" 5%
00782
00°0€ 00°0€
9L €LY Z5 2z
00°T2T
92" 2T
99-z€
zE 0L
00° €9
0% 68 0Z° 68
$9° %6 ¥9° 6
85 Z8Y 00 SzE
86" LST
00°LOT 6.0
69° 9%
2501
0t 00% 0€ ¥
PETLY
99°80¢
007009 007009
TYLOL LHOCHY
¥OTHD
sbeg

S59¢€4L

£59¢€L
£59¢L
£59EL
E92EL

LBIEL

¥t
£¥9€L
£yotL
£¥9¢€L
I3 A2 FN
£P9EL
£V9EL

669€EL
999¢L

LLOEYL,

GELEL
8ELEL

LELEL

80LEL
LBItL

9CLEL

99LeL
9GLEL
gaLEL
99LEL
EEFAA
99LEL

SLOETL
CTLEL

SESEL
SESEL

GEQEL
6ESEL
LLLEL
ZeLEl
CHLEL
BLLEL

8zo9cl

HENTUL

ST/%2/L

sT/%e/L
S1/%2/L
ST/v2/L
ST/FE/L

ST/%Z/L

ST/PE/L
g1/ve/L
ST/PE/L
ST/vE/L
ST/vE/L
St/ve/L
ST/¥T/L

ST/0E/9
ST/0E/9

s1/ve/L

ST/vE/L
ST/ve/L

ST/vT/L

ST/vE/L
51/0€/9

sT/ve/L
ST/08/9
ST/0£/9
S1/0€/9
SLt/0g/9
ST/0E/9
ST/0E/9
ST/%2/L
S1/%2/L

ST/0E/9
ST/0E/9

ST/%e/L
ST/%Z/L
sT/ve/L
ST/0E/9
ST/0E/9
ST/¥T/L

ST/ve/L

TL¥a

ST/%E/L

# o/d

LACANS LSNony

TS0 % INO-Md

50 -HOA
T8 % TNN -Md
g8d ¥ TINOQ-Md

SNDIS ¥Od XIW IIIUDNOD

HALTIE TANA -TLd ¥4
Hd¥L-TLYH 44

ATA J30 LOHE TANI-¥Ld ¥4
SYELTIE -MDOLS

SYUHTANCD -dOHS

LIdEED ¥DO0LS

dWT 'WOOT av¥d-$0999Md

TQOOMAD0T SELLITILAN
NITITD ALINOWWOD COOMMIOT

qISINESTE INIWHSINEYD

ST0Z ‘ST-% A7A0
RIDNGO¥E OHIIA INAH 1248

0 INIW-T?0999Md
JIVITL QIAvY

ST0Z ‘ST-2 X100

HONOT SYIE ANYT

TENT BUId HAVI
ONISACT HYTE BAVTI
TYEH EYI4d FAY1

TENd FAId ®¥YT

T304 FEId NOISNIHSWM

NITTIZ NOSUYD TYOoIan. IST
BSAYdI ¥Od LANYIINT

TYAZ HOXSd
NEIXEDE DN¥d dWE Fud

dOHS

d0OHS

AIANOYT S4 LS
SHITTddNS SKHA

SHITIINS SHI

SEITddNS SWA

9T/5T INIYH IN

NOILAIH¥OSECI HEOIOANI

FALSTOFE MDEHD
ALNOOD AHEOLE

ONI E171agv0

ONI QO TIO RITIVA NOSIVD

ONI XYW AQVEY NOSJYD

SLYYd OLAY ALID TW¥LIAWD

NAWIACUAWI TYdINID NOANYD

TYNCISSRIONd 2 S5INISNg

SIMHET IIODS ‘TIEddndg

TONI SNOILONACHd SNu¥N0d

SESIVdEEING AddEd

HYHOEAQ '¥IaNzd

vOLTH# WOINENY J0 MNYE
AQNEM 'S0V

OTT IT ALITIEONW I3IV

SEENTTEM ANV HLIVIH 2d¥

JNI 0081

NI NON SYDNIY
ONI SWALSXAS VIWd QEDNVAQY
HONEA

ST/ZZ/L0

STETEd

w-

¥1828

£LB8E8

Tiges

TI8Z8

0T8z8

60828

808E8

Logze

908€e
sQgee

v08Z8
£08Z8

z08z8

T08E8

ooses

66LZ8
86LZg

YEEWGN
ADEHD

Poaleq uny

TaN

Jaoday



00°5E8'T LBLEL ST/%E/L INIVE Hyde SHELI "11Lady

00°9ST'8TS LBLEL  ST/%T/L JEINOCW HEdWOd WOLSND
00°95T’8TS LBLEL ST/¥E/L JIINNCH ¥WEIWAd WOLISND
000987 ETY LBLEL St/ve/L QHLNAON IFIWNOd WOLSOD
NI'SNIYIVAdY HdId wuvdusad €828
BZ'66T 8Z 652 OZLEL ST/0E/S ANYNS ¥MS ¥0d SEALIND
ONI SESIUdYILNA NOSNOWII j23:14:3
65" L 65" L 088€L  ST/V¥EZ/L SHINALIVE O
ANYAHOD YYNALSYA ££828
000131 00°0TI9’T TLIEL ST/0€/9 LOEL0¥d HOWNIVEC HTIW XIS
DNIAHFINIONE LSEM ddVa zegee
S6°€5 56 €% 0L9EL $T/08/9 MALNED JOOMAIOT -H3Z30D
00 SO¥E NIWIYL reges
AN z%°9 959¢£L ST/%¥Z/L aNnaad
HAXTD HOTINE DEBESR
SLTETS SLUETS EPLEL ST/PE/L ANTEMEL/SHAYWIOOH
VIVEEYE  LHOZYETAONT 62828
¥ 157 89°'¢¢ TGOEL ST/%E/L NYET) H¥E-TL0G 94
¥2'2T PSIEL ST/%2/L 520d YON-40HS
597 %TT $SOEL ST/vT/L duind YD $E~dOHS
oL 2Bl ¥S9EL  ST/vZ/L SYOLOY-YTZZS0S
TL'EBT ¥S9EL ST/¥2/L TId-TUL YU - 08
05'gs PSOEL ST/%T/L LNYTO0D-TLH dd
sg'1¢e PSHEL ST/vEZ/L SIAQTY I¥HS qIAVY ~dOHS
6E' €9 PSOEL ST/¥%e/L SEATYA-9E6TATH
-g8°L02 ¥G9€L ST/%2/L M) AYALLVE-ZRRTSENIS
INI 74408 OLOY ILIOTI7T7E gezees
00°64 00" 6L 2LOEL  ST/vE/L YILNAD U5 dOOMMDOT
NOLIYYOd¥0D S€0 HSIA LZBEB
0Z €82 [EARS: T4 GLIEL ST/%2/L WAYIY BAIL TYONNY
ONI SHWELSAS H¥IS WITIA 9zZges
00701 00°0T LYLEL ST/0€/9 JSIKH
SSYIH WOLSND SZT8ZH
00" %9T 00" %91 ZYLEL ST/%e/L €102 ‘S§1-2 X100
¥ OIAYIDO ‘YI8EHD v¥Z8E8
00°SLE 00°SLE TLLEL ST/0E/3 ONISILEHAQY FNAL
+ VIUEN SIJFONOS FAIIVIND [ R4:4:]
00" S8 00°51 TvLEL  ST/PEZ/L ST0Z ‘S1-Z AInLC
00°08 TPLEL ST/%T/L
DT TITIW ATod NIOLSWOD [44:34:]
00" L8 00" L8 699€L ST/0E/9 D 8 ELE HDIAIO WH -IIAVD
DNI AL ALINOWWCD XDCLSHOD 1£8Z8
00°0%3'%2 00°0%9'T OFLEL ST/%8/L MEOM SANNOWDEIVA
NOILLOQHISNOD SNITICH ogeze
02 E€TT'T 02 ET%'T SLIEL  ST/¥Z/L PTH JLVAdN
ANYAWOD DNIHSITENd EACD 61828
00001 00°00T ZTLEL ST/%2Z/L aNndgy 1Isoda
OFT ‘TUTAMITO 81828
00°000'ST 00'000°ST €LOEL ST/%2Z/L NYIQYNYD DITdnd
JAUNSYANL NOSHYD J0 X1LID LT8Z8
88°' 0L 88 0L 8LOEL ST/%Z/L SMYHILE Lad
d¥02 A144ns AFIHD 91823
507002 T0' 0% SELEL s1/ve/L HOOH/TIIE INOHA
10°0% 9BLEL  ST/PZ/L IIIM NOO 86L9058¥%L6 ANI
£0°0ET 6LLEL  ST/¥Z/L SA¥dI HYId S0%8S88¥L6 ANT
. dIHSHHANIEYS QDTTID 51828
00202
TYLOL LNDOWY HENYEL FTIVA # o/a NOILAI¥OSEA TDIOANT JOANTA HIERAN
ADIHD ADEHD
ST/%2/L WALSIOHYE MDTHD St/2Te/L0 a7eg uny

z ebeg ALNOOD AAFOLS STETEE :ON 1xodey




£

0T e€e

FZ QL6

€T ese

05202

£976EY

060°558

05" £T¢

£5'660°T

8L 606

09" L9

¥B'6ZE
0B'ZLT
Q0 Q00T

BE LTV E

00S¢es

S6'6%
0STZ5Z°00T
00 000°ST
0871481

00" €€8 '3

00" L¥9'559"T
TYLOL

JDEHD

afied

00 00¢e
00 sé

Q1 6€C

£2e2°521
Z0'S¥8

€T €52

ogrget
gs-c8
96769
50°28¢
S9°2Z4
L6"FT
00’558

05'SST
00'8s

£€5°650°T
86°8C¢
00" 0%
ge*0¥s

gsrzee
00'SET

FR'6EE

08 CLT
00" 00T
TE'08%
8v ' T08
LS'SLB
00°SES
S6°6¢
0S"ZSZ'00T
B0 000°ST
08°18T
00"£€8'9

00°528°T
00"5z8°'t

LNIOWY

ToLEL
BESEL

BIZEL

L¥SEL
LYSEL

SE9€L

IPLEL
8v9€EL

TZLEL
659¢4L
6599¢L
6G9¢€L
LELeL

S¥LEL
SPLEL

ggLEl
T69tL
T69€L
EAE AN

[ANANA
ZELEL

I83¢€L
FricL
899€L
LS9EL
LS9EL
LG9EL
£B9EL
TB9EL
ggLeL
S993¢L
COLEL
¥99EL

LBLEL
LBLEL

HONTHL

ST/0€/%
sT/0€E/3

ST/0E/9

ST/vE/L
ST/%2/L

ST/0E/9

ST/%T/L
ST/PE/L

ST/0E/9
ST/%2/L
SL/%C/L
ST/ve/L
ST/0E/9

ST/%e/L
ST/%T/L

ST/%z/tL
ST/¥%2/L
S1/%Z/4
S1/%2/L

ST/¥E/L
ST/bE/L

ST/%2/L
ST/vE/4
ST/vE/eL
ST/vZ/L
ST/%Z/L
ST/PE/L
ST/PE/L
ST/¥E/L
ST/%2/L
ST/VZ/L
ST/0E/9
ST/0E/9

ST/vE/L
ST/ve/L

HLYa

ST/%E/L

TYDISAHd HLYWNI

LOELOYd HOHOd DVNS

2 SHOILDHINI ¥HEMOd O25ID
QDSIZ d¥ SSHTHYIM

dTOSNOD NIF JE¥HS

ST0Z/T/6 -ST/E2/8
2L NOIL¥LS LANWALNI

HHTIIR dZEIM-RUVd M1
TIVH YOLYHEY SEY ZAIAIA

INQHE -SNQLLY¥ITINNWHOD
T0Cd Y04 AaNITH

§T0g 'S1-% AInp

SHIT44NS SWA

Ad dNCd

SHILITILNO

A¥ES GNOd XINNOD avnd

S'8T X SF
¥HE X §%

ES¥NISId LNHWHSINIYD
STAYWAO0HE

ST/%1/L -SIHDINY INTH
D3Y ¥ ISTA-MT

Ddd ¥ 7ISd -M1

DY ¥ IS -W1

HIVAEE O/¥ QOOMADOT
DY ALVIES AN
SINOOWAY ADNYINGNY
Y000 ST0Z LSUMSMOHSIAIA
TIVL ANVdOdd

SNYTd HJIVDISE FIIL DVKWS

LNIVE H¥4@ SWELT 15aav
ANIVG FHd® SWELI 11ady

HOLLATHEOSEG HITOANI

YALSIDHEE XOdHO
ALNOOD XHEOLS

do DNILTINSNCD W ZLEE X¥L

HITIEN 5 SHWYD

OTT EDdN0S 1LI

NI IDW O4NI NIVINOCW NOWI

NI aMvaavodd LOdS LCH

ADIAYES LIQHEYD 10ddg FWOH

T¥EHS " TIVLSNINTYE-NOXIH

CHOS dY¥M HILINOd 2IYOLSIH

RIEHDE AMNEH

2777 SINIWLSIANY dI15

WOL ‘' AYHESNYED
L ADNWN ' HYHD
‘5 SEWYL TIID

SEWYL CSIONVHEL

1T ADUENE SUILTI

YOONI YIV ¥ ONILILYAH LEITI
HHL-DONT AEN 40 JICIS DVII
LYYNLS NINgAYY

2TT dNOYD SMOHS EHIE

d7 SYDTTINNES

DOSSY ® SATHIHS ITHVINEL

HOANEA

ST/2Z/L0

25828

S58€28

vsezg

£5828

z98es

TS8Z8

05823

£¥82Z8

8v8eZs8

L¥828

5¥828

§¥828

rvece

tvezcs

Zrees

78ze

oygege

ceeze

BEBCR

LEBES

9€8Lg

HIEWON
ADFHD

aj3eq uny
STETEd ON 3z0dey




¥

6T £S2'%
¥B TEV'Y
80 FT

9€ ' TLE

00°00€'€
L6 LT
Lo'8g
S¢'TL

S8 S6%

00’ S59
007 00T
8% LEE'C
00°00S7g
00588’
T0°8

00" L
Pb' 852

00T LTE'T

007011

GG 00T
00°96¢
AELOL
ADFHD

afeg

6T €5Z'%
¥RIZEY'T
80'¥1

€5 E€F
TT* 84
ZLT6YT
00°00£'¢
LETLT
L' BL

ST TL
F5°6C
£E9°8
65°9
6T’ T
€059
-08°1¥

8% 6s
88709
$€°9
96788
86'L6

€0 S¥T
sl R3]
0070071
B8P LEE’E
00'005°'¢
00°582°¢
T0°8

00~ Lo
¥¥'86¢

00’62
ooT8ET’T

Q8L
08201

00°00T

INAOWY

€TLEL
seLgL
¥69€L
£69€EL
£69EL
£69EL
S8LEL
QELEL
€99€EL
CE2EL
TELEL
TELEL
TeLEL
TELEL
TELEL
TELEL
caLEL
vZLEL
28LEL
ZBLEL
299¢d
299¢L
[AINA
ETLEL
S¥STL
TLLEL
8vLieL
6ZLEL
T8LEL
T99¢L

LPLEL
LYLEL

[A5-
ZE3EL

093¢l

HENWAL

ST/0E/S
ST/0E/9
ST/PE/L
SI/%E/L
St/veE/L
ST/¥2/L
ST/%T/L
ST/ve/L
51/%2/L
ST/vZ/L
ST/%ZT/L
ST/%e/L
ST/%2/L
ST/¥E/L
ST/¥E/L
ST/PZ/L
ST/%e/L
ST/¥&/4,
ST/%Z/L
ST/¥Z/L
ST/%e/L
ST/%2/L
ST/0E/9
ST/%¥Z/L
ST/VE/L
ST/0%/9
ST/%2/L
ST/¥E/L
ST/%Z/L
S1/ve/L

ST/¥%8/L
ST/VZ/L

ST/%Z/L
ST/%2/L

S1/%2/L

diveq

ST/%T/L

# O/4

HOIWW XINOQD SToZ gNnp
ASYHOUNd ¥MIIYM STOZ FNAL
TYNIA -aNQATE LISOAEA
SONTH4S fSTVES AWIT

daTINA TIRg
SLAYd LETICL-DLOA

SE

HALTTA-G¥n0 VAONOH Md
LI¥ 1739 -$TZEZ908
HEZINVOHO

YOLOEIIA JIMTUT

EZ INYDHO

. ¥EIng

SAINEINS 'JATAVLE
AIYE FATEVLSN0aY
SHITIINS ADIZIA0
SEI744d0s IFDIIE0
SEITAdN8 BOIAA0
SHITddNS EDIIL0
SHITI4NS EOIJIC

LEYD JENOL

SONIJJITD SSHYI
aNndEd LIS04da

YELId IENYELNI 00TXO0O0T
Qv DNTY4S FOWd ‘1TINd

YANIVLEY I5N50Y¥

FANITALS TEYUVE

FYYNCEYH DSIN

S102 'ST-Z Xunp

AHETIOEEWE
HUYOMINY ¥ SIUIHS

ST/E/L

NOILATHOSAd FDIOANI

YELSISEY MDEHD
ALNNCD AZACLS

STYIANTIN 40 AIT AZN
SHEHOUNOSEY NVWOH Id3d AEN
SANAIO¥D ® 207d NIWNAY AHN

HODWUY HIYYW NNV ‘AN

FYYMAAYH FSNOHINNOW

L 1990 STYNOW

WAL ' NYOIW

ONI S¥Y0OM JTDAZ S+ TEYHOIW

02 YOICH THOH TAYHOIW

NI SNOILATOS A3IJJ0 QULIW
N NHOL ’SENODDH

A¥Y ‘RZVN

VSIT ¥ LIODS 'NOSIAVH

DT YIgAW ININdEId NTAAvw
STT SINAAE ENTE AIndIt

NI SHJIANES ENIT dOYNSNYT
SNOS ¥ SIINND N T

LSIMATIN TIYHWIN

¥ NYILSIHWHD "¥ETHOEIN

HIFZGVZITE NEUIVE ‘NOLSNHOCD
'd TIOHOIN ‘NOSNHOD

dCANIA

LLBZ8
aL82Z8
5LB8Z8

vL.ece

€L8E8
2.8¢8
TL8E8
0L8z8

69828

89828
Lages
99828
shece
vogzZe
£9828
2582@
T98E8

098z8

55828

85828
[A=:34:]

HITGNON
ADEHD

ST/ZEfLO * @3eq uny
roN axoday

STETEd




IS T9¢ 60LEL ST/vE/L 20 ¥ ENETALEDY

€' T9T €BLEL ST/¥e/L SHITAING SWE
oOT'£E€ SLLEL ST/0€/9 SATIIdNS SWA
DNI 02ddny 66828
00 00T DO 00T PBOEL ST/¥Z/L NOILATY¥ISENS
OTLYWECANT NIVLNAOW AMDOW 868ER
6 LY 6 LY OTLEL ST/%Z/L INTWISUOEWIHY
dAEL HOUISAD0E L6828
00°000°S 00°'000°S TSLEL ST/%C/L SYAHOVATHE NIFID NATOOM
DNI SMOHSQVOH 96888
007022 00'022 889€L ST/%E/L YAMTIA SFM TTYD FDOIANHES
ONI SESIYAYEING I4d SGBZB
00°00T 007001 9TLEL ST/%E/L VI-ZV86EBSY IDOY SANESIY
INQODDY FANHSHY Y68C8
00" €LE 00 €LE 969EL ST/ve/L HONYNIINIYIW N¥Ed SOLT
NI ONIJYDSONYT NIATYD ONIE £6828
00 0¢ 00°0¢g PLLEL st/oe/e SNINIVEL
LdId NOIIWONAE YEWHN 26828
$0'008°¢ 0Z'¥T TS9€L ST/0€E/9 ISYIEE ALINAWWOD
¥8' 68 IS9EL ST/0E/Y LEVTEE DLW WWOD A¥N
00" 008°1 CDESEL ST/%2/4 ST0Z AIOL WYED0Hd
0oToo0’e 0E9€L ST/%E/L ST0Z AT0L DNILANUYW
ONI SHIDALVILS avy T6BES
PLUERT'Z FL'EFY’Z GTYEL ST/¥%2/L I '¥OI¥aY
INIWFIILEY ATdHE 317903 06BEB
TS 26T 0T TS ' ZT6T ' ¥HL 68LEL ST/VE/L
OLIVENEAWOD ADNEOY DITENI 68828
00' 0% 00°'0ET 069€EL ST/0T/L DNISOLINON $L IS
00°02T 069€L ST/0T/¢L ONI¥OLINOWN FSAOH IdN0D
DNI SHOIAZO NQIIIELOYID 888L8
€682 PE" 68T 989€L ST/¥E/L TIASUNASIA INHWHSTNIYD
I 00 EONWNIJ TYNOISSITIQUA LEBTE
00°2€Z 00" 2Zg2 0SLEL ST/¥E/L STOZ ‘ST-Z AL
a OTEONY ‘INISLEd 988C8
00°05L'%2 oo-osL’'e 6VLEL ST/vZ/L SLYESHINOD OFPETHAAY
DNI OlSEd 58828
ZAd-144 LB ELT S89€L ST/%e/L JISYNESIC LNEWHS INGYES
LB'TTT S89€EL ST/%C/L JISUNESTA INIWHS INUYD
ADNYNIA OLIY NODIHO 8828
76 20¢ SL°TBT DS9EL ST/UE/S D40 B A¥ETY fQEAdY
ET 12T 0S9EL ST/0E/9 AEN¥OLLY LDIHLSIC
OT1 ‘10d3d ¥Yivd FEISAI0 £88E8
66 67T 68 8%1 FILEL ST/¥Z/L HENOL YIINIdEA
DNI LOd3a ADIJH0 28828
T0 90671 BB E0F'T EV9EL ST/0E/9 NOISSIWWOD ONINNYIA
-L8'LE BFIETL ST/0E/9 SINEWAYA
ONI YINYOJITYD A0 TALXAN 14:1:541
00001 00° 0% ELLEL ST/0E/9 INIVH Ja0d
00'0% STLEL sT/%2/L TSI IYLEOd ATHINOW
(O} QLT ENTd YAvAAN 08BZ8
£6° 98¢ 66901 PPIEL ST/0E/9 YANIAYD ATYITTAN AWKW
Y6 6LT THIEL ST/0£/9 VANIAVD/NOSITHHOW QIVOIQHNW
FEINTD TYNOIDHE TVEnd ASN GLBER
SZ°P08°6 52°%08'6 PLOEL ST/%E/L YALYVYAD LST
YIANTIIA OITENG AEN BLBEB
00° TS 00°15 BZLEL SL/0€/9 ATAOLS /SHAI WIVTD DONINIW
TYLOL INOOWY ¥SNWAL ALY # 0/d NOTILITUOSEA FDILOANI HOANIA WIEWAN
ADIHD ADFHD
ST/¥eZ/L YALSISEE MDIHD ST/2E/L0 ¢ @neg uny
S abeq ALNACD XEEOLS STETES ‘oN 3xoday




00" 55T 6GLEL ST/%e/L §I0E 'si-¢ AT

00'€ G6SLEL ST/%2/L
SASTHdHAINT AYEA NAS £1628
00" %2 00" 2 BSLEL ST/¥E/L
no'ee 85LEL S1/ve/L 5T0Z ‘ST-Z XInD
LDINLSIA TO0HDS Q2 IS ZI6E8
00-se 0052 SOLEL ST/0E/9 ¥OSU’ PA €0 TV NIVHL
INTWIIVAEA ZAIL QD I8 IT628
FL'bE6 L TE6 COLEL ST/0€/9 HONYINGWY TIHSSTTANON
HONYINEWY D 1S 016e8
€6°926 £6°976 00LEL ST/ve/L L¥O3ANS YOLVAALO
ONI SHEDIANES ALITILO d9dS 60628
90°6 90°6 90LEL ST/0E/9 SAEW YEHOSHEANOA
UILNID DOUT ¥ AO0d SHLIWS 80628
00°805'2 00 szZ LSLEL ST/vE/L SYEANNYS NYH
D0"SLT'Z LSLEL ST/%2/L SNIVHD AEX
00°'80T TEIEL ST/%2/L SLENSYN
vad 277 SIIULSAANT ADINTS L0628
00" EET DO 9ET 95LEL ST/%8/L STOZ ‘§1-2 A1I00
0oL 9GLEL st/ve/s §T0Z ‘T A1IO0
vad TYNOILYN HLVLS YEATIS 206E8
05728 00°'8% SSLEL ST/%2/L §T0Z ‘ST-Z A1IA0
05 % SSLEL ST/¥Z/L STOZ 'T ATIO0
NITIY NYI¥" ‘IVOHS 50628
007001 00" 00T TILEL ST/%2/L ANAAET LIS038a
WOL % XTO¥YD 'YEONIZLIES v0628
YL IZV 'S 98'09 LEIEL ST/¥2/L 40 2960-L%8
ZE°SLZ'9 LEYEL ST/92/L SNOILVYOINIWKOD-2T#9-25¢8
96 ¥8 LEIEL ST/%E/L D13A  00GL-LP8
DNI SEIIA¥ES IVECTH D9S8 £06€E8
$6 TTT 02762 PELEL ST/%E/L DLoA
0z° 1 BELEL ST/%T/L DNINNY'I
0T¢ VELEL ST/ve/L LL
Lt YELEL ST/¥E/L {DA) EMIZ
96°§ YELEL ST/%T/L UENOISSINWCD
0T YELEL ST/%Z/L L4l
59'% YELEL ST/¥E/L HOIYdSIC TYYLINED
97 ¢ YELEL ST/%2/4 ¥OSSESSY
8 € FELEL ST/ve/L INENdOTIATT ALINOWWOD
LL'g YELEL  ST/PEZ/L (DA} FHIA
66" FELEL  S1/¥E/L AOOMAD0T/TLII
8972 PELEL  ST/PZ/L NIWIY/JETIOULIN0D
021 FELEL ST/%T/L JATHIHS
9E° ¥ BELEL ST/¥T/L an
9E°9¢ FELEL ST/¥E/L JATYAHS
€' € TELEL ST/¥T/L S¥¥oM 2ITdnd
0z PELEL ST/¥E/L (oa) EMIZ
05'9 VELEL ST/%2/L [t lariomlce:y
89°9§ VELEL S1/ve/L pr:cinis)
£5°¢C PELEL ST/%2/L IYL/EAIS
aT NI SEDIANES IVD0T1S 0dg 20628
05°0¢ 00" 82 PSLEL ST/vE/L SI0Z ‘§T-2 A0
02 PSLEL S1/¥Z/¢
ONI WEINZOIMY SXNVW LNIVS T06E8
08-¥vew ’ 08" 2% EGLEL ST/%2/L SHESVID HNIM
SOIHAVED ¥ gEM QEVNOIIVS 00628
00954
IYLOL INOOWT H#SNVEL HL¥A % 0/d NOLLAI¥DSEG HOICANT HOONTA HITWON
ADTHD MDEHD
§1/%E/L  HEISIDTY ADIHD ST/2Z/L0 ¢ ®3ed uny

e sbed AILNOGD AHEOLS S§TETEd :oN 3xoday




L

007 000°S
00802
09°26T
PLUBEE'T
007059
0D 999°T

COCBET'¥

0S°L0Z 6

0089
¥$E0S

00"ZsT

LT LST

08" 69T°S
00" BL

£6°£29

00'6I¥V 2

¥S-8¢

05"S5%6'T

TYLOL
AJFIHD

€2 8ES
000009
0g0'soe
09°26T
YL 6661
00"0s9
00 999°T

002t
007 7L
00'EIL’E
[l

00" ZT¥
00°'002°1
0000z

0s-€8e
00" 29
00"0LT'S
00" 9L¥’T
00° 059
00 TPP T
go'Iet

0088
¥5E0S

0066
00" €9

Ti 86T
99’68

06°B9T°S
00'8L

00°5¢€T
66829

00'S%6'1
00" ¥vrY
00°0%

¥5° gt
05" Z¥T

00'0T9°T
00" s8¢

LNOCHY

LTLEL
EESEL
8TLEL
LTLEL
L99¢EL
LOLEL
PESEL
E9LEL
63LEL
63LEL
6ILEL
69LEL
SLLEL
QLLEL
89LeL
89LEL
B9LELL
g9LeEL
89LEL,
89LEL
goLEL
TESEL
FoLEL

£9LEL
E94LEL

869¢L
g69¢L

zZaled
15LEL

683EL
685¢8L

09iti
09L€el
09LEL
voLEL
65LEL
65LEL
6SLEL

HENTHL

ST/0E/%
ST/%2/L
ST/¥Z/L
ST/%Z/L
ST/0E/9
ST/0E/9
ST/%e/L
ST/ve/L
ST/%E/1,
S1/%2/L
ST/¥E/L
ST/%2/L
ST/0E/9
ST/0E/S
ST/%zZ/L
ST/%2/¢L
ST/ve/tL
ST/%Z/L
ST/%T/L
ST/%%/¢
ST/¥2/4
ST/¥Z/L
ST/%2/L

SL/VE/L
ST/%E/L

ST/vE/L
ST/%Z/L

ST/%T/L
St1/%2/L

ST/%2/L
ST/¥Z/L

ST/%E/4
ST/ve/L
SI/PE/L
ST/¥E/L
ST/%E/L
ST/%E/L
ST/¥E/L

qALYE

ST/¥T/L

# 0/4

LINVId HALEM

9t0E/5T0T

SUITO8 "O4LIN'Ha '"T¥2Ed ' 20
SHINY IHHIT LITALS

STOZ ENOL STVEN dOOMADOT
SHOIAYMES ADOTODIXOL

SHDIA¥ES 1SIRLEE0T

5102 'S1-2 AUar
NOILVIHOISNYIL I%A

ST0Z ‘ST-% AOrC

TYMENIH

ATAL 40 HLY

5T0z ‘ST-% A14r

WEI- N¥Ed SOLT
S/M- NEEd SOLT

ATIWISSY HEHOVETH
ST0Z 'ST-g RIO0
YEIOOD NIATYM TIvL
IOVNNNA HOIW4SIA

STOE ‘ST-2 AIA0

SVJI'ada’asyd’ d0IHD DTV

NOIIdIYOSEd TIDI0ANT

HALSIODIE A2FHO
ALNNOS XFIOLS

00 ATddNS YAYAAN NYHLSHEM
LEIC dOTIARd AIN NAHLSIM
HYT TYINTFWNOIIANT NUSLSHM

WNI ODAEM
A¥HS JOINIS ALNNOD HOHSYM
EDILAC SEAIHEHS 02 HOHSYM

SELYIDOSSY 3 dTATYM

ONI S¥L0OL ALID VINIDWIA

00 ¥¥ ZENONYL ¥ VINTOAIA
(dA)  EDIAACLSCd S0

N 40 SEDIA¥ES HLIS dZLINQ
ONT SHYNLNIA-TEL

INAWNIAQUIKT TVUENID I¥L
HLENNAN JACNIEMYT 'ENMOL

ONI DDH HHEYHL

AWHLYWYHHE

SA0GM0D FNOQLSEWOL HHL

SLINTOUG T00d MOI¥HJINS

HOANEA

ST/Zz/L0
STETES

.

T£€628
34
6T6T8
8Z6Z8
LZ6ES
26T

Sz6E8

vzeee

EZ628
[A4-¥A]

434

0zZezg

6T6Z8
81628

L1628

91678

sigZg

LAY A

HIIWNN
ADAHS

a%ed uny

OR

azoday



8

6B 6T6°6930°'C
00'082°1
00" s89

£L7059°T

TYLOL
MOEHD

abea

TYLOL SHDOEHD

00 0sg’1T
00°5§
25T 6I0'T
oL o0z
0z’ 22
89°6¥

LNACWY

v8LEL
OLLEL
GTLEL
LEZLEL
LZTLEL
LZLEL

{HSNTIL

ST/0E/9
ST/%2/L
ST/%2/L
ST/0E/9
ST/0E/9
ST/0E/9

HELYQ

INIWIJOTIATT dd¥ TTIEOW
NIJAYW YHSTAHD ¥IdM "TAUL
3dId BTX8

SUIYAHEY dWNd M1

SYIVAEY dWnNd MT

SUIVAEE dWNd MT

NOILATMOEEC EDICANI

ST/%E/L HALSIDTE ADIHD

ALNGOD AFYOLS

ONI

'HATLYEED NCXT HOWZ

q I0vd T EEANYE

HOTNIA

StT/eT/L0
SIETEd

£LéCs

ZEGTE

YIGHON
ADEHED

93eq Uy
roN JIodoy



e TnoTssTIme
...................... il
..................... TR
........ SR i

HITTOULAROD
A S P
ST/9T/L HI¥Q AJEHD 68'6Z6°650°2 IYL0L SALHHS

NOILVZIYCHLINOY ANY MAIAZY 40 INIWIDATTIMONNDY




18°€26'9

S0 TET 0zsg ST/vE/L ANIT ALVATEE SHWEL OT6ETE60LYOGLL
00" PET 0Zs ST/PE/L  SINAWIOVIATL Lvd Sdn TO-£TTOTT-0G¢E
z9°88 0zs ST/vL/L 1580 HOIYASIA ZSS6PESHT
00°SL 0zs St/ve/L 1sd 11 LZEILLSET
008§ 0zs ST/%Z/L HSYM VD ANYEA-96€L90
66 60T 0ZS ST/¥Z/L WEML/NYETO QH TYNNILXY ENYEC-0Z06%0
66" P9 0zs ST/%Z/t VYAV HLIZM X¥ALLYE Sdn ANYIQ-ZET970
66" ¥E nZs ST/%E/L AYATD aad ANYAG-ZZTOH0
TE' 90T ¥ES ST/bpE/L ST/8/L ¥IV0D0D ANOD -MNELLIBM
SL'ELE'T vES ST/%Z/L ST/ST/L LIVAH  dNOD OOWN - NELLIHM
6L°00T vES ST/%2/¢L SI/L NSAY WY HINVITY 4NOD - NALLIHM
¥3'08 ZEs ST/ve/L SSYTE) dd SWDAA  SHHJS LI0SHM ANYOSNL
vL'G [4] ST/ve/L B8¥'ID dd SYOEA HONNT L% 8 I1dg 00Vl
2T 0T zes ST/vE/L S55VID dd SWDIA HONNT WNYL % WYS AVMENS
¥5°9T ZES St/¥vT/L S8YTID) ' NCAQES /BRI 0T LEYINHL ' SRONAUVLS
LE"6Y ZES ST/¥Z/L  SS5Y1) dd SWOHA ISJNd D 2 8 SADNHYVLIS
9% ST 2ES ST/vZ/¢L SYID dd SYDIA Igand L o® 5 SANGAVLS
96°9 9z5 ST/%2/L FOVLSQd T.QaV ¥aos
007661 LZS ST/¥Z/L INWAIYVLIS NI ONII ¥NQ D9DDIEISAVOLYH JHd
00°5LE LZS ST/%e/L 29y JNOD ¥Iud 9T8EISHOACOYH AEA
66°¢9 €8 ST/¥Z/L HACIODTH
LT LL (4% ST/¥Z/L NS DSIW % HDMNA FI0H € 1Lod3d "HI1440
811 CES sT/ve/L S8Y'ID 44 SYHEA MENNID £ % S §10OKW
T8 ET ZES ST/%2/L SSYI> 4d SWOHIA HONAT 025 S,doK
S6'¥¥T B82S ST/PE/L TANYHD STITEEAS ALEAYS dNS 2 ALIIAYS A¥OTIVH
L4 98T £24 ST/¥Z/L OHS ILAID/SOVE ONIJAOHS NIDWIIYE dALIYM § ai
00°5% £29 ST/¥E/L UV4/SHHOIHMANYS INZDOd SAIANYD samy ad
00'SE€ €29 ST/%8/L dOHE LAID/SHYE ZLOL WOMd HILUYE WOLSND ad
98 bLL £E8 ST/PZ/L IOL SO HIY 902 EONVIVE NEY ALUVA LOTAWYD O
L6"62 £Es ST/¥%2/L DISNN ATAL J0 HLP WOD ' SENNLI Td¥ ai
027 6€ 0€S ST/%Z/L ¥OWAS'SALNY ALIOND-DSM SEMOT-M NOSYD
LS LY ¥€S ST/vE/L ST/9T/L S¥D  O¥d QALING - NYWIID
LB'ST 52§ ST/%2/L FHYLE0d YANTAYS
€% 892 1A ST/b2/L aood HIVKNI N3Zsoa
866 44 ST/vZ/L SYIVATY LATIOL 1odEd TWOH aa
L6 ET 44 ST/¥Z/L ¥ AINL HIY 40 INAWSIHS X8 484 gg
L ZA8-1:3-1 [ 241 ST/¥T/L SAITE4NS AD1dd0 LOAEQ E0IAA0 MD
818§ ZES ST/¥%e/L SS¥ID ad SYbAA JAAD qOd 5¥D N TTOHID
£€1'€9 z€g ST/v2/L SSVID dd S¥REA dIIL ¥OI SYD NOIATHD
58°LE ZES ST/ve/L SYOEA NI SSYID d4 SYH NOWAATHD
00" LE ZES ST/vZ/L  SYID 44 ¥ENNIG 0 % 5 AYOIOVE SAYOHD
26° 9% 82S ST/PZ/L ¥IS0d ¥ELLAT GATIILEID HHLS0d SASN WITANYHD
8ETET ZES ST/ve/L 98YTI0 dd §¥DIA HONQT £ % § §)3NYD
ZETE2T ZE§ ST/¥E/L SSYID dd SYDIAA MIANNIC L® g OI¥ Eav¥d
00°9 1Zs ST/%E/L 892ZIXT HSWM ¥V¥D SYINNIM -NIAZEN'D
T1'ES 12§ sT/v2/L ANOHd HLITIZIVS IS0dAYod -NIAEN D
00°EE 125 ST/PE/L dFT ST/L0 SINAEWHSTHITE HSIQ -NIAZN'D
00T oL 128 ST/¥2/L NID dOOMMIOT -ILINEHINT LI¥ -NIAZN'D
[VEeRaE 128 ST/%2/L E¥LS 2 5 ZLE ~LANNHLNT II¥ -~NIAZN D
ZT'Le TS ST/vE/L FOYLSO SNANE
00'E% 525 ST/PE/L TIAVYL 902 SvH OHONIINY
00" 625 ST/ve/L

0§ w0t 626 ST/0£/9 SSYID AOD NYWIVHD BEESOED' ' '# aY
05°%0€ (341 ST/0€E/9 SSYIO A0D NISNYH 6EZESVE0" ' # AFN

INEWAYd UVl TYIDYAWWOD ANO STIEM LS
TYLOL INNOHY #SNTRL JILYA NOIIAYUDSEA # EDIOANI I4Za-aNNd UOANHA HTAUON

dQUYD od
YHLSIORT qQUVD ISVHDUNA ST1/2T/L0 @ 83eq uny
ALNAQD AEUOLS I508%59d :oN 3zodsy

i

T abeg




168 EC6'9

TYLOL
qUED

4 sbea

FENOISSIWWOD

HETIOULIWOD
SvEEy ) e

TLVJ NOTIVZTHOHILNY ANV MEIARY 40 INHWIDATTMONNDY

LHOONY #ENWEL arLva NOLILATYDSEA

HILSIDAY qQUYD ISWHOUOI
ALNOOD AFEOLS

*TBICL PIeD«

# EDIOANI I4Zd-ANAJ

qoaman

St/zz/LO
1L508¥Ssd

VHHNAN

o4
T os%ed uny
foN 3xoday



HENCISSINNGD

HENQ LSS ITWWOD
NYWATYHD
HEANSTHAL
YHTTOALIWOD
ALTA NOIIVZTYOHLNY aNV MIIAIY 40 LNAWIDIHITMONAOY
S¥LEYEC TYLOL SXJOZHD TAJAL
ST/LE/L S% LED'EE JIANSYIHL OO 1S 4374
ALEId0OEd I¥lL SHXYL JIYIFLIA DY S LEPEE SLL 2102
NOILdI¥d53ad HFHITOANT II¥d TYLOL LHAOWY AWVN YOANEA $THODHY HYEA YIEHON
HOEHD  ADEHD TYOSId MDFHD
YELSIDHEY SHMOIHD dEIAL ST/LE/Le ¢ 93eQ UnY

abeg ALNOQD REEQLS 06ETEd oM 3Jxoday




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 4, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required | ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to Tax Roll for
Exempt Property

2. Recommended motion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961
4. Staff summmary: Parcel 001-082-05 and 001-084-02 were not given the proper amount of

exemption for the portion of the properties that is considered tax exempt pursuant to NRS
361.110.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter with adjusted assessed value.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
X Department Hea}/ % Department Name: Assessor’s Office

/

Wy Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Medifications
[1] Denied [ Continued

Agenda [tem No. 7




STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE

m m 26 South B Street
P.Q. Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR Virginia City, NV 89440

(775) 847-0961 Phone
(775) 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

August 4, 2015
Memo to: Storey County Comumissioners

Re: 001-082-05 and 001-084-02

The above referenced parcels were billed in error for the 2015-16 tax year. The portion of these
properties that are exempt from property taxation pursuant to NRS 361.110 was not calculated.
In accordance with NRS 361.768, I am requesting the following changes be made by the County
Treasurer:

Current Net i Adjusted Net Lurrent Year Net.
PN Assessed Owner - Exemption Amount Assessed Value
— [ —— Assessed Assessed -
- _ _ Override
001-082-05 Fraternal Order of Eagles 3,763 31,233 3,470 3,470
001-084-02 Odd Fellows . 38457 34,129 34,128 34,128

Please approve these corrections, and advise the Treasurer to make the changes and issue a
refund to the taxpayer.

N
T T ‘:El‘c.\
y
e
y

Jand Seddofi
Storey County Assessor

Thank You— -

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 4, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to 2015-16 Tax
Roll for Exemptions

2. Recommended motion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961

4. Staff summary: Exemption applications and renewals are typically due to our office on or
before June 15" of each fiscal year, but circumstances beyond a taxpayer’s control may
cause a delay and, as a result, an exemption not being applied to the tax bill. In cases where
the Assessor’s Office feels that the taxpayer could not have reasonably filed their
exemption application or renewal by the deadline, the tax bill may be amended by the
Clerk-Treasurer at the direction of the Board and a new tax bill or a refund be mailed to the

affected taxpayer.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter with adjusted assessed values.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by: <
X __ Department Head Department Name: Assessor’s Office

@&@ty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved ] Approved with Modifications

[
[1] Denied [] Continued
Agenda Item No, 8




STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
26 South B Street

P.O. Box 494

Virginia City, NV 89440

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR

(775) 847-0961 Phone
(775) 8470904 Fax
Assessor@storeyCounty.org

August 4, 2015
Memo to: Storey County Commissioners

Re: Corrections for Exemptions

The owners of the properties listed below should have had a Veteran’s Exemption applied to
their property for the 2015-16 tax year. For various reasons, the exemption renewals were not
received and processed by our office before the close of the 2015-16 re-opened roll. Therefore,
we were unable to apply the exemptions prior to the printing of their tax bill. The adjusted net
assessed values and the net assessed value overrides should be;

APN Current Net Exemption Amount Adjusted Net
Assessed Assessed

003-111-34 90,137 2,560 87,577 .-
003-162-13 54,120 25,600 28,520
003-182-01 57,760 19,200 38,560 Lk
003-314-03 31,138 2,560 28,578

003-393-10 162,623 2,560 160,063

003-543-17 29,449 2,560 26,889 - -

Please approve these corrections, and advise the Treasurer to make the changes and send a new
tax bill or refund as necessary.

Thank You—

.
S

J aga Seddon
Storey County. Assessor

Storey County Is an Equal Opportunity Provider




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 4, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to 2015-16 Tax
Roll for Partial Property Tax Abatements pursuant to NRS 361.4722 through 361.4724

2. Recommended motion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961

4. Staff summary: Nevada Revised Statutes 361.4722 through 361.4724 provide a partial
property tax abatement (implemented as a “cap”) for certain existing owner-occupied and
qualifying residential rental properties. Status verification cards and affidavits are typically
due back to our office on or before June 15™ of the preceding fiscal year, but circumstances
beyond a taxpayer’s control may cause a delay and, as a result, the proper “cap” does not
get applied to the tax bill. If the Assessor’s Office determines that the proper “cap” has not
been applied, the tax bill may be amended by the Clerk-Treasurer at the direction of the
Board and a new tax bill or a refund be mailed to the affected taxpayer.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter, which lists affected properties.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: N

__X__ Department Heal Department Name: Assessor’s Office

unty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
N Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued '

e
e et

Agenda Item No, q




STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
26 South B Street

P.0.Box 424

vVirginia City, NV 89440

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR

{775) 847-0961 Phone
{77%) 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@storeyCounty.org

August 4, 2015
Memo to: STOREY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Re: Corrections for Partial Property Tax Abatements

The following have been approved by the Storey County Assessor’s Office to receive the 3%
Property Tax Abatement (“Cap”) for the 2015-16 fiscal year:

APN OWNER(S) PROPERTY LOCATION
. .. 186 Elizabeth Lane

1 003-314-13 | Martin, Patricia K Mark Twain Bstates
670 Cartwright Rd

2 | 003-431-15 | Nevada Group Real Estate LLC Highland Ranches

3| 003-521-06 | Baldwin, Tom A & Marcia 6 Rue de la Azure
Rainbow Bend

. 155 Rue de la Orange

4 | 003-524-11 | Berge, Christopher K TTEE Rainbow Bend

5 | 004-141-10 | Denham, Donnarae 625 Canyon Way
Lockwood

Please advise the Treasurer to:

1) Adjust the tax bills listed above by applying the corrected cap percentage, and
2) Issue a new tax bill or refund, as necessary.

Thank you, .. >
S o

Jgha Seddon
Sterey County Assessor

Storey County Is an Equal Opportunity Provider




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 4, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda{] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to Tax Roll

2. Recommended motion: Approval
3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961
4, Staff summary: Parcel 003-461-55 was assessed a new glass-enclosed porch and billed
accordingly for the 2015-16 tax year. The owner provided additional information to the

Assessor’s Office after the close of the reopened 2015-16 tax roll, and it has been
determined that the porch should have been assessed as screen-enclosed, which affects the

assessed value.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter with adjusted assessed value.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: <
_ X Department Head 5 epartment Name: Assessor’s Office
‘\/ﬂ/] )

dunty Manager ther agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved

] [ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

[ I —

Agenda Item No. | O




STOREY COUNTY CQURTHOUSE

m m 26 South B Street
P.0Q. Box 494

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR Virginia Gity, NV 89440

(775) 8470961 Phone
(775) 847-0804 Fax
Assessor@storeyCounty.org

July 15,2015
Memo to: Storey County Commissioners

Re: 003-461-55, 1080 Combination Rd

The above referenced parcel was assessed with a new glass-enclosed porch for the 2015/16 tax
year. After the close of the tax roll, the property owner informed our office that the porch is, in
fact, a screen-enclosed porch with removable plexiglass covers. The corrected assessed value
should be:

Assessed Corrected

Land 8,645 8,645

Improvements 59,049 57,498

Economic Obsolescence 4,062 3,960
2015-16 Net Assessed Value 63,632 62,174
Prior Yr GAV Qverride 38,253 38,253
Owner-Occupancy Cap % 3% 3%

New Improvements Assessed 21,798 20,247
$2015:16 Secured Tax Amount| $  2,117.89 | § = 2,064:22.

Please approve these corrections, and advise the Treasurer to make the changes and issue a new
tax bill or a refund as necessary.

Thank You,
C e

Storey Gounty is an Equal Opportunity Provider




)

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meecting date: 08/04/15 Estimate of time required: 10 min.,

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda{] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Update to Siorey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
including: Policies 302, Candidates and Recruitment; 303, Job Announcements; 311, Rehire; 313,
Casual Employment; and 314, Volunteer Program.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff and in conformance with the Storey
County Administrative Policies and Procedures, [ (Commissioner) motion to approve the
amendments to Storey County Administrative Policies: 302, Candidates and Recruitment; 303,
Job Announcements; 311, Rehire; 313, Casual Employment; and 314, Volunteer Program.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: The purpose of the Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures is to
establish authority to implement the personnel program on a consistent basis, The
Policies and Procedures require that review and necessary updates ocour every five
years.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosures: draft policy chapters 302, 303, 311, 313, and 314.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewedby:
- Department Head Department Name:
@Mlounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[]  Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

) Eisiad

Agenda Item No. | |

Page 1 of 12




Enclosures: Draft policy chapters 302, 303, 311, 313, and 314

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 302

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 08-19/08
REVISED: 01-20-09/ 08-04-15
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: Source of Candidates; Open Recruitment; Promotion; Transfer and Eligible
List to Vacant Positions

1. PURPOSE

To establish a standard policy regarding open-recruitment, promotion, transfer and eligible list of
employees to vacant positions.

2. POLICY

2.1 Filling Positions

Regular positions may be filled by applicants selected from an existing eligible lists applicant
pool. If no eligible-list eligible applicant pool exists-has been established or the pool contains
no qualified applicants, the employer may initiate a recruitment {epés-er-promotional from
within or open to outside the organization) to create or renew an eligible list-applicant pool.
The general policy of the county is to fill vacant or new positions from within the organization
when possible, depending upon qualifications and interest of existing regular full-time, part-time,
and casual employees. Employees are encouraged to apply for any vacancy for which they may
qualify. The following apply in recruiting and establishing applicant pools.

a. Applications from present exiting employees may be considered for open positions before
non-employee applicants are considered.

b. An—empleyee’s An applicant’s past performance, qualifications, potential, abilities,
knowledge of the job duties, and job experience are important factors that-are considered in
the selection.

¢. Where all factors are considered substantially equal among two or more qualified
employees-applicants, seniority may be considered.

d. The pesition-vaeancy internal or external announcement for the position will be posted
on bulletin boards within the occupied county office buildings for a period of retJess-than
fifteen—{15) no less than 15 calendar days prior to the last date for application or the date
scheduled for testing, whichever is earlier (specification see Policy 303).

e. Internal transfers* or promotional vacancies are limited to existing full-time, part-time,
and casual employees, not including reserves or volunteers, with at least aine {55 9
months of service et-and no longer in the required orientation/probation period, See also
Policy 313 Casual Intermittent Employees.

*An internal transfer is a lateral change of an employee from one position to another position in the
same class or to a different class in the same salary range. A transfer does not include an employee
moving from one office to another while maintaining the samc position classification (Policy 1002
Definitions).

Page2 of 12




2.2

2.3

Internal transfers* er and promotions do not change the persen’s employee’s date of hire.
However, the anniversary date for future performance evaluations and merit salary
increase considerations ehanges-will-be shall become the date of transfer or promotion.

Casual employecs who transfer to regular part-time or regular full-time positions
shall begin a new orientation/prebation period in accordance with Policy 310 or the
applicable bargaining agreement.

Fligibility-List Eligible Applicant Pool

The employer may maintain eligible-lists applicant pools consisting of the names of
applicants eligible for hire based on the recruitment process. While generally used to fill a
single position, eligible-lists applicant pools may be used to fill additional positions which
occur within six-(6) 6 months of the establishment of the list pool. or-until-e—published
expiration-date,- whichever-eccurs-frst: Eligible applicant pools for law enforcement and

fire protection positions may be maintained for up to 12 months when published
accordingly.

Any person on an appropriate reinstatement list shall be considered for appeintment
employment in accordance with the employer’s established layoff policy.

An applicant will be removed from an-the eligible-list applicant pool if the applicant
submits a written request to be removed, or if the applicant fails to respond within an
allotted time period to instructions regarding participation in an examination or selection
interview. matled-to—the-eligible-applicant: An eligible applicant who refuses an offer of
employment will be removed from an-eligiblelist the eligible applicant pool unless the
specific circumstances of the refusal warrant otherwise as determined by the employer.

Type of Posting

When deeiding-what-type-of determining the recruitment method(s) recruitment to initiate, the
employer-Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director will consider such factors as the
impact ef-the decision will have on the employer’s efforts to have create a workforce which is
representative of:

c.

f.

The local population;
The qualifications and level of responsibility required by the position;

The extent to which the knowledge and skills required for the position can readily be
acquired on the job;

The qualifications of existing employees potentially available for placement on a
promotional list.

The effects on retention of present employees; and

The likelihood of attracting well-qualified outside applicants.

After an the employer has-determined-how-they determines how it will announce the a vacancy,
they it will develop a recruitment plan by determining the applicant peetthey-wish population it
wishes to target and in what geographic region they it will advertise; determining-what types of
media will be used to advertise;; and ensuring what outreach efforts will be employed to reach
diverse applicant groups.

Page3 of 12




RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 303

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 8-19-08
REVISED: 1-20-09/08-04-15
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: Job Announcements

1. PURPOSE

To establish a standard policy regarding announcing all vacancies for regular positions.
2. POLICY

2.1  Announcement

The employer will announce internally or externally all vacancies—forregular vacant
employment positions. An announcement may be for the purpose of filling a single
vacancy or o establish an eligible Hst applicant pool (see Policy 302) for one or more
vacancies in the same job class.

Position vacancies will be publicized to allow potentially qualified and interested
individuals to learn of employment opportunities and to encourage applications from
diverse backgrounds.

The employer may request an external posting for which any person within and outside
the organization may apply, or an infernal posting ealyfer-existing for which omnly
existing full-time, part-time, and casual county employees with at least 9 months of
service and mo longer in the required orientation/probationary period. Pesition
vacaneies—will-be-publicized—to-allow—potentially-quelified-and-interested—individuals—to
learn-of-employment-oppertunities-and-to-encourage-applicantsfrom-diverse-backgrounds
to-apply:

Recruitment announcements will always be posted on a-bulletin boards within the-each
occupied county office buildings-for a period of net no less than fifleen-(15) 15 calendar
days prior to the last date for application or the date scheduled for testing, whichever is
earlier and in such other places as the employer feels appropriate.

The announcement will normally include the following:

i.  Title, and pay range, grade, and FLSA exempt or non-exempt status of the
vacant positionfelass-ofthe-vacaney.

il.  Nature of the work to be performed, including the essential job functions.

fii.  Minimum and/or eligibility requirements as well as any preferred qualifications,
including education, license or certifications, employment, training, experience
criteria, knowledge, skills, abilities and whether equivalent factors will be

recognized.

iv.  Whether the advertisement is an internal only or external posting;

Page 4 of 12




v.  Whether preference or priority will be given to county employees.

vi.  Whether county or other seniority or length of service will be considered in-a
factor, and if so, what weight will be given to such consideration in measuring or
rating applicants,

vil.  Manner of applying (where, how and deadlines).

viii.  Whether there will be competitive testing, and if so, the date, time and place of the
test; the nature and scope of the test subject matter; and any reference material or
sources upon which the test is based.

ix.  Whether the test will consist of written, oral, and or physical demonstration
components or other appropriate screening mechanisms.

X. A declaration that the employer is an Equal Employment Opportunity (EEQ)
employer, and Americans with Disabilities (ADA) accommodations are available.

xi.  The dates of the posting.

b. Regular employees will be released from work, on paid status, to take an examination and
participate in an interview for Storey County positions held during their scheduled work
time. Casuval {ntermittent)—workers employees will not be paid for time taken fo
participate in an examination or interview.

2.2 Application Forms and Files

Applications for employment must be made in writing on prescribed forms (reference: Employer
Employment Application). Applicants must complete a separate application form for each vacancy
unless the job announcement indicates otherwise. The employer may also require resumes,
completed supplemental questionnaires, and other evidence of education, training, experience, or
other lawful requirements. Applications and other materials submitted become part of the
application file and the property of the employer.

2.3 Signatures

Applications must be signed by the applicant. Only original completed applications with the
applicant’s signature will be accepted. Faxed and email copies of the application form will not
be accepted. may-be-acceptedwith-the provision-that-a-sipned-esiginalmust-berédeived-before-the
employer-can-officially-consider-the-application:

2.4  Application Filing Periods

a. Recruitment announcements will specify the application filing period. Applications must be
received or postmarked by the date specified. The filing period may end on a specific date
and/or may allow acceptance of applications until a sufficient number of appropriately
qualified candidates have applied. The Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director,
consulting with department management, will determine when sufficient applications have
been received.

b. Application periods will end at the close of the business day or at the specific time stated
on the recruitment announcement. A job announcement may be closed at any time and for
any reason as determined by the employer.

¢. An application period may be ended when no job openings are anticipated or for other
reasons as determined by the employer.

Page Sof 12




RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or soonet as necessary.

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 311

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 9-16-08
REVISED: 1-20-09
REVISED: 8-03-10/08/04/15
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: Rehire

1. PURPOSE

To establish a standard policy regarding rehiring employees who previously left the
organization and who may be considered for rehire.

POLICY

2.1 Consideration for Rehire,

Regular employees, including employees serving an orientation period following promotion,
who subsequently terminate employment, may be considered for rehire:

a.

Without undergoing any further examination within twe—{2)—year 2 years of the
effective date of their termination.

The rehire must be to a position in the same class or a class comparable to the one in
which the employee formerly served as a regular employee.

The decision to rehire shall be at the complete discretion of the employer, and no
former employee shall have any right to or expectation of such rehire.

Upon rehire, the employee shall be required to successfully complete an-erientation
probationary period.

No credit for former employment shall be granted in determining eligibility for leave
or other benefits.

Job classification seniority may be continued provided the employee is rehired into the
same job classification. Following a voluntary interruption or break in service,
seniority shall commence as of the date of last entrance into county service. The
employee’s new anniversary date shall be the date of rehire.

Personnel records of former county employees should be reviewed prior to offering re-
employment to ascertain the employee’s eligibility for rehire.

NOTE: Limitations exist for rehiring retired public employees (NRS 286.523),.

2.2 Eligibility for Rehire

Page 6 0f 12




Employees are ineligible for rehire with the county under certain circumstances that are
outlined in this policy. Employees separating from county employment under these
circumstances are ineligible unless the County Manager and the Administrative Officer
and/or Personnel Director-Administrative-Officer authorizes re-employment,

a. Employees separated from employment for reasons that are not cardinal or serious
infractions, such as absenteeism, poor performance, or quitting without proper notice,
etc., will not generally be eligible for rehire. They will have to demonstrate suitable
employment elsewhere and provide at least two references, (education, work, or
otherwise) that can validate the individual’s dependability and performance.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Administrative Officer and/or Personnel
Director Administrative-Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as

necessary.
STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 313
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 9-16-08
REVISED: 08-04-15
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: Casual {Intermittent) Employment

3. PURFPOSE

Because some of the employer’s work is indefinite and/or irregular with regard to schedule and
duration, the employer may need to employ casual workers at all levels of responsibility from
time to time on an as-needed basis or to work for limited periods of time at the discretion of the
employer.

4. POLICY

2.1 Authorization to Hire Casual Workers

In general, a casual worker may be hired for work which will require fewer than twenty

£203-20 hours per week or fewer than ene-hundred-twenty-(126} 120 consecutive working
days to complete, if the employer has appropriated sufficient funds in the budget to pay the

worker. Work requiring more hours to complete will usually require the establishment of a
regular position. The employer will not hire casual workers to avoid establishing a regular
position when the work to be performed is ongoing. However, the employer may, from
time to time, find that its best interests are served by assigning work to a casual worker for
longer than ene-hundred-twenty-(120) 120 days or more than tweaty-(20) 20 hours per

week.

2.2 Duration of Casual Employment

A casual worker has no right to or expectation of continued employment, or any property
right regarding employment. A casual worker may be terminated at any time, with or

Page 7 0f 12




without cause, with or without notice, and shall have no right to appeal except when the
action is alleged to have violated the employer’s policies regarding fair employment
practices and/or prevention of illegal harassment, in which case the casual empioyee is
expected to comply with policy 201 and/or 203.

2.3 Employment in a Regular Position

The employer may hire a casual worker into a regular position only after the candidate has
been found to be qualified as a result of completing an authorized recruitment and selection
process for that position.

The employee’s service-anniversary date will be determined according to the date of hire
in the regular part-time or regular full-time position. with-No credit will be given toward
completion of an-introductory of a required orientation/probation period or toward the
accrual of benefits for the time an-employee-was-hired-foreasual-worl: that the individual

served as a casual employee.
2.4 Rate of Pay

The rate of pay for casual employees will be administered in accordance with Policy
504.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary,

——

STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 314

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 9-16-08
REVISED: 11-8-10/08-04-15
REVISED: 4-05-11
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: Volunteer Program

. Purpose: The employer recognizes that there are benefits to members of the community to

become involved in the delivery of the employer’s programs and services on a volunteer basis.
Being a volunteer is a privilege for the volunteer and for the organization s/he serves.
Individuals have an interest in assisting public agencies by applying their knowledge, skills,
and experience to a worthwhile endeavor. Also, the community and the employer receive
enhanced services because of the individual’s specialized skills and commitment. Using
volunteers is a true win-win situation for those willing to volunteer for the employer and for
the community.

. Policy: This policy covers the essential elements of an effective volunteer program which is

compliant with applicable state and federal regulations pertaining to the employer’s volunteers.
As this policy is broad in scope, individual departments should establish additional specific
requirements consistent with this policy to guide the use of volunteers within the specific
program areas.

2.1 Definition of Volunteer

County volunteers are uncompensated individuals who perform services directly related
to the business of the county for the benefit of the volunteer, to support the humanitarian,

Page 8 0f 12




charitable, or public service activities of the county, or to gain experience in specific
endeavors, To qualify as a county volunteer, an individual must be willing te provide
service according to the procedures of the county administrative policy and the policies of
the respective department,

In order to maximize the effectiveness of volunteers and minimize risk exposure to both
volunteers and the county, this policy will apply to all county departments and
volunteers. Exceptions to the conditions of this policy may be brought to the
Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director, and the county’s risk management
officer, for review and approval on a case-by-case basis.

2.2 Types of Volunteers

a, General Volunteer: One who is not assigned to sensitive areas or situations and
does not require particular licensing or certification. Examples of departments
using such volunteers might be, but are not limited to, building and plauning,
public works, and general administrative offices.

b. Public Safety Volunteer. One who perform services related to law enforcement and
public safety. Placement of volunteers in these areas may require the full law
enforcement background check including complete physical, psychological,
polygraph and drag screenings, or a background investigation similar to that of
law enforcement personnel. Reserve Deputy Sheriff's shall not lose the status of
volunteer if or when on an occasional basis they might receive a flat stipend for
special events or where a private company, entity, or individual provides
compensation for such activity to offset costs to the Sheriff by contract or other
written agreement.

¢. Internal Velunteer: one who is an employee of Storey County, Storey County
Sheriff’s Office, Virginia City Tourism Commission, or the Storey County Fire
Protection Distriet, and who is volunteering for a job distinctly different from
their job classification. Current public officers and employees may act in a
volunteer capacity, but are not permitted to voluntarily perform services which
are the same or in any way similar to the duties for which they are paid to perform
by the same agency. The duties of the internal volunteer shall in no way conflict
with the mission, objectives, or activities of the employer.

2.3 Program Planning and Implementation

Prior to implementing a volunteer program,-a-the subject department will-develop-a-planfor

ulilizing—veluntesrs—must develop and maintain a written plan and procedurcs to
supplement this policy that address specific methods to recruit, imterview, select,
orientate, train, supervise, track, and recognize volunteers. Department heads will
designate an employee within the department to be responsible for the volunteer program
and who will serve as the primary contact person for the volunteer.

The program will be reviewed by the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director
for validation that it conforms to the county administrative policies before the program is
implemented.

a. The plan may include:

#—Job-assignment-desoriptionsfor-eachvolunteer:
ﬁwmﬁrﬁﬁa%emn@éesenkmghwaﬂé—by—%em—wﬁﬂma&awmem—

Hi, A program to recognize and award volunteer services is encouraged.

Page 9 of 12




iv. A program for opporfunity to advance or assume greater responsibility in the
volunteer position or program.
b. The plan must include:
i. A statement that the program will conform to administrative policies of the
county and department.

ii. A statement describing hew and by which department employee the
volunteexrs will be overseen, and to whom the volunteer will report.

iii. Job assignment descriptions for ecach volunteer position.

iv. A position statement for the designated volunteer coordinator which must be
included with the employee’s job description in accordance with county
policy.

v.  Absenteeism standards and procedures.

vi. A needs assessment and a statement outlining how volunteers will be used to meet
these needs.

vil. A budget for any personnel costs for overseeing the program, operating costs,
and direct and indirect costs.

site—{optional}-A-program-to-recognize-and-award-volunteerservces:

¢. In addition to the above items, the Personnel Director/Administrative Officer and/or
the County Manager may require the department head to submit comprehensive
written sub-policies that address unique circumstances and needs of the volunteer
program, such as for example, those particular to. the Virginia City Tourism
Commission’s “Living Legends”, “Gunfighter Liaison: Program”, and the Sheriffs
Office’s “Citizen Emergency Response Team”. The department sub-policies shall be
assessed by the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director, the County
Manager, and other applicable agencies (e.g., Storcy County Fire Protection District
or Sheriff’s Office) for conformance with the provisions of the Storey County
administrative policies and other applicable federal, state, and county regulations and
policies.

2.4 Recruiting, Screening, Interviewing, and Selecting Velunteers

As with employees, the employer’s ability to meet its goals and objectives is directly related to
the skills and ability abilities of volunteers selected. Criteria for selecting volunteers will be
developed in the same manner as used for selecting new employees.

The employer prohibits discrimination, harassment, or retaliation directed at volunteers on the
basis of their race, color, religion, age, gender, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry,
disability, veteran status, pregnancy, genetic information, gender identity or expression,
political affiliation, membership in the Nevada National Guard or United States armed
services, or domestic partnership similarly as it does with its regular employeces.

The recruitment, screening, and interviewing process should be planned and sufficiently
thorough to result in selecting the best volunteer possible for departmental needs.

Volunteer applicants engaged in activities for the employer on a regular basis shall complete
the employer’s volunteer application, including an acknowledgment that the function to be
performed is not a paid position and the person is truly volunteering his/her services at the
pleasure of the county, as well as complete new-member workplace orientation and
training.

The employer will solve problems associated with the volunteer’s performance or behavior,
However, if problems cannot be corrected, the-services-efthe-volunteer should discentinue: the

volunteer should be dismissed from volunteer service.
Page 10 0f 12




Specific requirements that apply to employees in certain occupations such as fingerprinting,
detailed background checks, and screening for drug use apply to volunteers performing similar
occupations.

2.5 Managing Volunteers

a.

.ef—ehe—weﬂeﬂaeﬁeﬁw &

Supervision. Volunteers shall receive appropriate oversight for the functions performed
including an orientation to the employer’s policies and procedures, departmental
operating procedures, safety practices, and other relevant information. Day-to-day
oversight of volunteers shall be conducted as with employees.

Adequate equipment and supplies, as well as a safe working environment, will be
provided for volunteers.

The employer will maintain detailed and accurate records of volunteer activities
including a roster of active volunteers. The date, time, and duration of each volunteer
activity session must be recorded, along with the work performed. The employer will
remove volunteers from the roster whenever volunteers are inactive for more than thirty
£303 30 days, except under certain circumstances as approved by the employer.,
Annual performance evalnations may be completed for each volunteer. However,
volunteers serve at the pleasure of the employer and are subject to dismissal at
any time with our without cause.

Adrtal-perfe se—completed—on—voluntesrs—Veolunteers
M&Wm%&m@mmd—am%e@e@mﬂ%&aﬁm%
without cavse:

Yelunteer-must-be-covered-by-the-employer s-workers-comper
may%e—wmb&meé%ewxpememeam@%&h&a—ﬂw&aﬁew—mww&e

-%m%@md%ease%bb—bea&ﬁﬁ—a&é#e#amkmm%%&m%we&aﬁewhe

%3@ - nnot-be-in-an-smeunt-or-ofa-type-that-imphies-that the-velustese is
i wgem&%ﬁe&ﬁmwpeﬁ%—&%luﬁea—m—@%&qmmmyﬂr—qwhﬁ

ee—by—the

emplew—&?eﬁeﬂﬁemﬂee%ewﬁ&ém&sﬁma%@meef—
Safety Sensitive Positions and Vehicle Use. Volunteers serving in safety sensitive
positions pursuant to county policies or operating county vehicles shall be subject
to licensing, physical and other examinations, drug and alcohol testing, and other
requirements as regular employees pursuant to county policy.

Conflict of Interest. Volunteers, like employees, are required to disclose any
business, commercial or financial interest that they may have, where such interest
might be construed by a reasonable person as being in real, potential, or apparent
conflict with their official duties for the organization. A determination may be
made by the organization to terminate or modify a volunteer assignment if a
serious conflict of interest exists, including if the volunteer assignment causes
conflict with the scheduling and performance of the employee with the employer,
if the volunteer cannot or chooses not to modify or end such conflict on his/her
own accord.

Use of Organization Affiliation. A volunteer shall not use his/her affiliation as a
volunteer with the county in connection with partisan politics, religious matters, or
community issues conirary to the position taken by the county.

Speaking on Behalf of the County. A volunteer shall not represent themselves as
anything other than a volunteer while performing duties as a volunteer, unless
specifically authorized and to the extent specified in writing for a special purpose.
Confidentiality. The county is committed to maintaining client’s and customer’s
rights to protection of their persenal information as allowed by law. Employees

Page 11 of 12




and volunteers in the county must be committed to maintaining the privacy and
confidentiality customers and clients, particularly their personal and personal
health related information subject to HIPAA. Breaches of privacy that put the
county at risk of legal consequences may result in immediate dismissal of the
volunteer.

g. Open Door Policy. Should a volunteer have concerns about his/her work
environment, s’he should report it promptly to the department designated
volunteer coordinator or the department head. If the velunteer is not satisfied with
the response of the volunteer coordinator and the department head, s/he may raise
the issue with the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director. Every effort
will be made to achieve expedient and effective reselution in a manner consistent
with county policy.

2.6 Risk of Injury and Property Damage:

a. Workers’ Compensation. Volunteer must be covered by the employer’s workers’
compensation plan. _

b. Rewiunerativin and reimbursement. Volunteers may be reimbursed for expenses incurred.
In addition, the emplover may provide limited and reasonable benefits and/or nominal
remuneration to volunteers. The benefits provided eannet must not, however, be in an
amount or of a type that implies that the volunteer is being paid a wage or salary for time
spent as a volunteer, or for the quantity or quality of the work performed. All such benefits
must be approved, in advance, by the employer’s Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer.

¢. Damage to Volunteer’s Property. In the event the personal property of the volunteer is
damaged while the volumteer is serving in authorized or unauthorized volunteer
status, the county nor any designated volunteer management agency under contract
with the county will be responsible to reimburse for the damage. Members of the
Storcy County Sheriff’s Office volunteer and Reserve programs are covered under
the same conditions as Sheriff’s employees.

d. Damage to Private Property. In the event private property is damaged by a volunteer
serving in only an authorized volunteer status, provisions of the administrative
policies will apply.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 12 of 12




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: §-H4-\6 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: None
g District Attorney
8. Reviewed &
x__ Depatffaéat Head Department Name: Community Development

@Mﬁw Manager Other agency review:

9, Board action:
1] Approved
[ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

.
R -

Agenda [tem No. ] b3




Storey County Community Bevelopment
Buginess  Litenging

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 + (775) 847-

66 + Fax (775)847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office July 27, 2015
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the Angust 4, 2015, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda;

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

L. K. TOWNE CONSTRUCTION -- Contractor / 949 East Roland Street ~ Carson City (contractor)

A.

B. SIMERSON CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 2701 Conestoga Drive ~ Carson City (contractor)

C. THE BUCKNER HOUSE — General / 81 North A Street (short-term house rental) vC

D. TESLA MOTORS, INC. - Contractor / 3500 Deer Creek Road ~ Palo Alto, CA (general contractor)

E. VIVID VISTAS — HB/ 401 Canyon Way #20 (handyman) LW

F. VETERAN CONSTRUCTION, LL.C - Contractor / 170 James Avenue ~ Dayton (contractor)

Inspection Required
ec: Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office

Dean Haymore, Economic Deyv., Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept. Commissioners’ Office




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x | Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Medium-term obligation for the purchase of a 2011 HME, Ferrara, 110’ Quint Platform
Ladder

2. Recommended motion
I make a motion to approve the Medium-term obligation for a 2011 HME, Ferrara, 110’
Quint Platform Ladder Fire Truck.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: (775) 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Due to the height of the proposed Tesla Manufacturing plant, it has become
necessary to purchase a ladder truck capable of reaching the top of the roof. This
obligation is to be repaid by guarantees from Tesla Manufacturing for a period of nine
years. During this time frame any other building owner(s) which may require such Fire
Apparatus will be required to fund an equal portion of said obligation at time of receiving a
certificate of occupancy.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: _x_Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

@Mty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e

Agenda Item No. l 5




RESOLUTION 15-430
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A MEDIUM-TERM OBLIGATION

INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, the Storey County Commissioners of Storey County, Nevada at a regular meeting on August
4, 2015 at 10:00 A.M. to determine that the public interest requires a Medium-term Obligation; and the
following findings of act determine this:

The purchase of a 2011 HME, Ferrara, 110’ Quint Platform Ladder Fire Truck in a Principal amount not to
exceed &725,000 plus interest.

WHEREAS, proper notice was given of the intention to act upon the Resolution Authorizing a Medium-
term obligation pursuant to Nevada Revised Statures 350.087 and Nevada Administrative Code 350.100
through 350.160.

NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Storey County Commissioners of Storey County,
Nevada purposes to borrow a sum not to exceed a total of $725,000 plus at annual interest rate of
3.43% to be paid over a period of 9 years.

The proposed obligation is to be repaid by guarantees from Tesla Manufacturing for a period of nine
years. During this time frame any other building owner(s) which may require such Fire Apparatus will be
required to fund an equal portion of said obligation at time of receiving a certificate of occupancy.

It is further resolved THAT the County Comptroller forward the necessary documents to the Executive
Director, Department of Taxation, Carson City, Nevada.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 4™ day of August 2015 by the Governing Body consisting of three (3)
members.

THOSE VOTING AYE: THOSE VOTING NAY

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ATTEST:

Marshall McBride, Chairman CLERK OF THE BOARD




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 8 ' 4 15 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Contract with State of Nevada, Department of Health and Human Services for provision
of Medicaid match services and providing terms on which Storey County will be billed by
the State for its share of Medicaid expenditures,

2. Recommended motion Move to approve the contract with the State of Nevada, Division of

' Health and Human Services regarding the provision of Medicaid match services with
authorization for the Chairman to sign.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis

Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4, Staff snmmary: See attached

5. Supporting materials: Proposed Contract with the State of Nevada Health and Human
Services

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: | Compftrolier
7..Legal review required:
X Distriet Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissjoner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[ Approved i Approved with Modifications
{1 Denied [ Continued

Agenda Item No. | o




STAFF SUMMARY

Medicaid is a combined federal/state program providing funding for
medical expenditures incurred by qualifying low-income persons. It is a voluntary
program in which the State of Nevada has chosen to participate. Nevada has also
chosen to participate in the Medicaid expansion authorized by the Affordable
Care Act. Medicaid programs are administered by the States. Funds for payment
of Medicaid expenditures are obtained by ad valorem taxes imposed by the
counties and by matching funds provided by the federal government.

Under the proposed agreement with the State, state administrative entities
i.e., the Division of Welfare Services (DWSS) and Division of Health Care Financing
and Policy (DHCFP} will provide administrative services required by Medicaid.
DWSS will determine the eligibility of Storey County residents applying for
Medicaid benefits and provide a hearing and appeal process for those disputing
an eligibility determination. DHCFP will; (a) process claims for medical services,
(b) reimburse medical providers for eligible claims, (c} bill the County for its share
of Medicaid authorized expenditures, {d) provide monthly reports to the County
of eligible County residents and the expenditures made on their behalf , (e)
determine the amount owed by the County for the non-federal share of Medicaid
costs and, (f) determine the cash reserve to be paid by the County, in advance, for
the non-federal share of Medicaid costs. The County agrees to accept DWSS
eligibility criteria, to accept DHCFP determinations of medically necessary
services, to pay the bills sent by DHCFP on a monthly basis and to pay in advance
the reserve balance determined by DHCFP. '

County payments are capped by the amount of revenue raised tiy imposing
the ad valorem tax at the rate of .08 per $100.00 as required by NRS 428.285.




INTERLOCAL CONTRACT BETWEEN PUBLIC AGENCIES

A Contract Between the Staie of Nevada
Acting By and Through Its

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Division of Health Care Financing and Policy (DHCFP)
1160 East William Street
Carson City, Nevada 89701
(775) 684-3636

And

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Division of Welfare and Supportive Services (DWSS)
1470 College Parkway
Carson City, Nevada 89706
(775) 684-0650

And

STOREY COUNTY
PO Box 176
Virginia City, Nevada 89440
{775) 847-0958

WHEREAS, NRS 277,180 authorizes any one or more public agencies to contract with any one Or more
other public agenicies to perform any governmental service, activity or undertaking which any of the pubilic
agencies entering into the contract is authorized by law to perform; and

WHEREAS, it is deerned that the services of Storey County (the County), and the Division of Welfare and
Supportive Services (DWSS) hereinafter set forth are both necessary to the Division of Health Care Financing
and Policy (DHCFP) and in the best interests of the State of Nevada;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideraticn of the aforesaid premises, the parties mutually agree as follows:

1. REQUIRED APPROVAL. This Contract shall not become effective until and unless approved by appropriate
official action of the governing body of each party.

2. DEFIN[TIONS. “State” means the State of Nevada and any state agency identified hereln, its officers,
employees and immune contractors as.defined in NRS 41.0307,

3. CONTRACT TERM. This Contract shall be effective retroactively from july 1, 2015 to June 30, 2017, unless
gooner terminated by either party as set forth in this Contract.

4. TERMINATION. This Contract may be terminated by either party prior to the date set: forth in paragraph

(3), provided that a termination shall not be effective until 90 days after a party has served written notice
-upon the other party. This Contract may be terminated by mutual consent of both parties or unilaterally by

Page 1 of &




either party without cause, The parties expressly agree that this Contract shall be terminated imumnediately if
for any reason federal and/or State Legislature funding ability to satisfy this Contract is withdrawn, limited,
or impaired.

5. NOTICE. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under this Contract shall
be in writing and shall be deemed to have heen duly given if delivered personally in hand, by telephonic
facsimile with simultaneous regular mail, or mailed certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid
on the date posted, and addressed to the other party at the address set forth above.

6. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS, The parties agree that the services to be performed shall be specifically
described; this Coniract incorporates the following attachments in descending order of constructive

precedence:
ATTACHMENT A: SCOPE OF WORK

7, CONSIDERATION. The County agrees to pay the DHCFP for the services set forth in paragraph (6) at a cost
not to exceed eight (8) cents on each $100 of assessed valuation of all taxable property as established by NRS
428.285 each year for the contract term. Any intervening end to a bienmial appropriation period shall he
deemed an automatic renewal (not changing the overall Contract term) or a termination as the results of
legislative appropriation may require,

8, ASSENT. The parties agree that the terms and conditions listed on incorporated attachments of this
Contract are also specifically a part of this Contract and are limited only by their respective order of
precedence and any limitations expressly provided.

9. INSPECTION & AUDIT.
a. Books and Records. Bach party agrees to keep and maintain under general accepted accounting
principles full, true and complete records, agreements, books, and documents as are necessary to fully
disclose to the State or United States Government, or their authorized representatives, upon andits or re-
views, sufficient information to determine compliance with all state and federal regulations and statutes.
b. Inspection & Audit. Each party agrees that the relevant books, records (written, electronic, computer
refated or otherwise), including but not limited to relevant accounting procedures and practices of the
party, financial staternents and supporting documentation, and documentation related to the work product
shall be subject, at any reasonable time, to inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at any office
or location where such records may be found, with or without notice by the State Auditor, Employment
Security, the Department of Administration, Rudget Division, the Nevada State Attorney General's Office or
its Fraud Control Units, the State Legislative Auditor, the County and with regard to any federal funding, the
relevant federal agency, the Comptroller General, the General Accounting Office, the Office of the Inspector
General, or any of their authorized representatives.
¢. Period of Retention. All hooks, records, reports, and statements relevant to this Contract must be
retained a minimum three years and for five years if any federal funds are nsed In this Contract. The
retention period runs from the date of termination of this Contract. Retention time shzll be extended when
an audit is scheduled or in progress for a period reasonably necessary to complete an audit and/or to
complete any administrative and judicial litigation which may ensue.

10. BREACH: REMEDIES. Failure of either party to perform any obligation of this Contract shall be deemed a
breach. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this Contract, the rights and remedies of the parties shall
not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or-equity, including but

Fage 2015




not limited to actual damages, and to a prevailing party reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. ltis specifically
agreed that reasonable attorneys' fees shall include without limitation $125 per hour for attorneys.

1%, LIMITED LIABILITY. The parties will not waive and intend to assert available NRS chapter 41 liability
limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive damages,

12. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Contract if it is prevented from
performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, civil or military
authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, including, without limitation, earth-
quakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not be through the fault of the
party asserting such an excuse, and the excused party is obligated to prompily perform in accordance with
the terms of the Contract after the intervening cause ceases.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Neither party waives any right or defense to indemnification that may exist in law or

equity.
14. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC AGENCIES. The parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and

to the extent set forth in this Contract, and in respect to performance of services pursuant to this Contract,
each party is and shall be a public agency separate and distinct from the other party and, subject only to the
terms of this Contract, shall have the sole right to supervise, manage, operate, control, and direct performance
of the details incident to its duties under this Contract. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed or
construed to create a partnership or joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-employee or
principal-agent, or to otherwise create any liability for one agency whatsoever with respect to the
indehtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other agency or any other party.

15, WAIVER OF BREACH. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of the
Contract or its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not operate as 2 waiver by such party of
any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach.

16. SEVERABILITY. Ifany provision contained in this Contract is held to be unenforceable by a court of law or
equity, this Contract shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the nonenforceability of such
provision shall not be held to render any other provision or provisions of this Contract unenforceable.

17. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party shall assign, transfer or delegate any rights, obligations or dutles under this
! Contract without the prior written consent of the other party.

18. OWNERSHIP OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. Unless otherwise provided by law any reports, histories,

stndies, tests, manuals, instructions, photographs, negatives, blue prints, plans, maps, data, system designs,

5 computer code (which is intended to be consideration under this Contract), or any other documents or
drawings, prepared or in the course of preparation by either party in performance of its obligations under
this Contract shall be the joint property of both pariies.

19. PUBLIC RECORDS, Pursuant to NRS 239,010, information or documents may be open to public inspection
and copying, The parties will have the duty to disclose unless a particular record is made confidential by law

or a common law balancing of interests,

Pagedeors




20. CONFIDENTIALITY. Each party shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form, produced,
prepared, observed or received by that party to the extent that such information is confidential by law or

otherwise required by this Contract.

21. PROPER AUTHORITY. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract
on behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the parties are
authorized by law to perform the services set forth in paragraph {6).

22. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION. This Contract and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall
be governed by, and construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada, The parties consent to the
jurisdiction of the First Judicial District Court, in Carson City, Nevada for enforcement of this Contract.

23. ENTIRE Al ODIFICATION. This Contract and its integrated attachment(s} constitute the

entire agreement of the parties and such are intended as a complete and exclusive statement of the promises,
representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may have been made in connection
with the subject matter hereof. Unless an integrated attachment to this Contract specifically displays a
mutual intent t¢ amend a particular part of this Contract, general conflicts in language between any such
attachment and this Contract shall be construed consistent with the terms of this Contract. Unless otherwise
expressly authorized by the terms of this Contract, no modification or amendment to this Contract shall be
binding upon the parties unless the same is in writing and signed by the respective parties hereto, approved
by the Office of the Attorney General. _

/

\\\\\\MM\\\\\\\\H\\\\\\\

Pagedofs




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be signed and intend to be legally
bound thereby.

STOREY COUNTY
Commission Chair, Storey County
Marshali McBride Date  Title

DEFARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF WELFARE AND SUPPORTIVE SERVICES

Administrator, DWSS
Steve H. Fisher Date  Title

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF HEALTH CARE FINANCING AND POLICY

Chief Fiscal Officer, DHCFP
Leah Lamborn Date  Title

Administrator, DHCFP
Laurie Squartsoff Date  Title

. " Interim Director, DHHS
Richard Whitley Date  Title

APPROVED BY BOARD OF EXAMINERS

Signature — Nevada State Board of Examiners

On

Approved as to form by: (Date)
On

Deputy Attorney General for Attorney General, State of Nevada {Date)

Page 5of§




ATTACHMENT A
COUNTY MATCH
SCOPE OF WORK

A. PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES:

The Department of Health and Human Services is the designated “single State agency”
responsible for medical assistance provided in Nevada under authority of Title XIX of the Social
Security Act. The Division of Welfare and Supportive Services (DWSS) and the Division of
Health Care Financing and Policy (DHCFP) are responsible for implementing the State Plan
under Title XIX, pursuant to Title 42, Chapter IV, Subchapier C of the Code of Federal
Regulations, and Chapter 422 of Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS).

This Interlocal Agreement authorizes the Division of Welfare and Supportive Services and the
Division of Health Care Financing and Policy to provide the administrative services necessary to
implement the program of medical assistance to individuals who meet financial and medical
eligibility criteria as defined below and the Counnty to provide the non-federal share to DHCFP
for medical, administrative and transactions costs incurred as a result of this medical assistance

program.
B. THE DIVISION OF WELFARE AND SUPPORTIVE SERVICES (DWSS) AGREES:

1. To determine Medicaid eligibility based on criteria established and set forth in the Division’s
Title XTX State Plan and related policies and procedures. The criteria DWSS uses to determine
eligibility includes a percentage of the Supplemental Security Income Federal Benefit Rate
(SSUFBR) prescribed annually by the Director. Eligible Medicaid recipients covered by this
coniract meet institmtional level of care criteria and ave provided with efther institutional or
community ~based waiver services,

2. To determine county of residence in accordance with NRS 428.020. Disputes concerning county
of residence will be referred by the disputing county to the Nevada Association of Counties
(NACO), which, it is specifically agreed has authority to issue a final decision;

3. To provide a copy of newly approved applications, either by paper or an electronic PDF
document, or provide electronic access to the necessary eligibility information the County may
need,

4. To provide the Division of Welfare and Supportive Services’ hearing process to those individuals
or their guardians/authorized representatives who disagree with the eligibility determination.

C. THE DIVISION OF HEALTH CARE FINANCING AND POLICY (DHC¥F) AGREES;
1. To process claims for medical services through the Medicaid fiscal agent;

2. To reimburse qualified providers for services coverad in the Medicaid State Plan at the same rate
as for all Medicald patients;

3. To resolve provider inquiries and complaints regarding reimbursement;




. To process patient liability for hospital and/or nursing home costs as determined by DWSS and to
apply cost avoidance claims processing procedures when third party lisbility has been
established;

- To invoice the County retrospectively, on 2 monthly basis for the non federal share of Medicaid
costs, based on actual expenditures as determined by the criteria established and set forth in the
Division®s Title XXX State Plan and related policies and procedures.

. To send monthly itemized reports to the County that include the names of eligible county
patients, dates of service, dates of payment, and total dollar amount of all payments made to
Medicaid. The monthly reports will reflect all oredits or debits as a result of claim adjustments by
the fiscal agent and medical services credits including Medicaid Estate Recovery (MER) and
Medicaid QIT Recoveries, which will be calculated and applied against the amount owed for the
month,

- To determine the amount owed by each county for the non-federal share of Medicaid costs,
including medical claims payments, Medicare Part B premiums, Medicare Part D payments, and
administrative costs. Administrative costs include, but are not limited to, the cost for staffing,
processing claims, institutional audits, and mainframe computer use. Administrative costs will be
re-determined each fiscal year based on negotiation with the fiscal agent and Division of Welfare
and Supportive Services studies. The DHCFP will notify the County of the administrative cost
per case at the begitming of each fiscal year and provide the County with the methodology used
to determine the Administrative costs;

To determine the amount of cash reserve to be paid in advance by the County for the non federal
share of Medicaid costs. This reserve will be determined by projecting the monthly average
expenditures based on the previous fiscel years actual expenditures. The cash reserve will be
applied to the June actual expenditures. If a shortfall in the June expenditures exists, DHCFP will
bill the County to receive the additional funds prior to the end of the fiscal year. If 2 surplus
exists, it will be applied to the following fiscal year, unless otherwise requested.

. THE COUNTY AGREES:
. To accept DWSS’s criteria for Medicaid eligibility;

» Toallow eligibility disputes to be appealed through DWSS’s hearing process by the applicant or
authorized representative/guardian,

. Torefer dispuies concerning county of residence to NACO whose decision will be final. The
disputing county originally billed is responsible for payment of ¢laims until the dispute is
resolved at which time NACO will issue a written determination to notify the counties involved
in the dispute and to notify DHCFP to make adjusting entries;

. To accept and abide by DHCFP’s determination of medically necessary services;

. That eligible recipients, pursuant to this Agreernent, will he entitled to receive the full range of
medical services contained in the Nevada Medicaid Program State Plan;

. No state appropriation is available to fand this program. From the time of billing, county funds
must be paid within thirty (30) calendar days to be used as the non-federal share of costs;




. Payments made by the County shall be derived from general county fax revenues or other general
revenues of the County, per 42 C.F.R. 433.51and in accordance with NRS Chapter 428.

. To pay, up front a reserve balance to the DHCFP which will be determined by the DIICFP based
on a monthly average of the previous state fiscal year. The County will pay an amount
determined by DHCFP within thirty (30) working days of receipt of the notice,

ALL PARTIES AGREE:

It is specifically understood this Agreement is designed to expand Medicaid income eligibility
criteria to inelude those individuals whose net countzable income is specified above in B.1,
including Medicaid receiving institutional and comnmnity-based (waiver) services. It is further
specifically understood that the non-federal share of Medicaid expenditures for those qualifying
ndividuals will be paid by the County;

. Itis specifically understood by all parties that Medicaid eligibility can only be determined fo be
effective no earlier than three (3) months before the month of application;

This Agreement will antomatically termirate in the event federal funding is not available.

. For those Counties with a population above 100,000, the billable amount for the “New
Population™ as determined by 2011 3B485 will be capped at the legislatively approved budget
amount. The “Original Population” will be invoiced based on actual expenditures.

For all Counties with a population below 100,000, the billable amount for the “New Population”
as determined by 2011 SB485 will be capped at the legislatively approved budget amount. The
total hillahle amount for both populetions will not exceed the eight (8) cent cap as established by
NRS 428,285,




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: August 4, 2015 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ]| Regular agenda[ ] Public hearing required x]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve the second reading of Ordinance 15-266, an
ordinance amending Storey County Code section 17.12.064 Public Utility Uses to establish a
procedure for permitting aboveground utility projects and renewable energy generation projects and
providing for other properly related matters.

2. Recommended motion: I move to continue Ordinance 15-266 to September 1, 2015.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Tel: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: As part of the master plan process required by Nevada Revised Statutes 278.1 65,
the planning commission must prepare and the board approve an aboveground utility plan that
designates corridors for the construction of aboveground wutility projects that is consistent with any
transmission plan prepared by the Office of Energy, that ensures the continuity of transmission
corridors and is consistent with the aboveground utility plan of adjacent jurisdictions, and that is
consistent with any Bureau of Land Management resource management plan.

(Continued on next page.)

S. Supporting materials: Ordinance 15-266
6. Fiscal impact: None
7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

wunty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ —

Agenda Item No. | 7




4. Staff summary continued:

The utility corridor plan is being prepared as part of the Storey County master plan process. In
addition, NRS 278.26503 require the governing body to establish a process for the issuance of
permits for aboveground utility projects and renewable energy generation projects. If the project is
located in a master plan aboveground utility corridor just a permit is required. Ifthe project is
outside of a master plan aboveground utility corridor a special use permit is required. A special
use permit is also required for the construction of a renewable energy generation project with a
nameplate capacity of 10 megawatts or more. This ordinance provides for that process. Staff has
determined that the ordinance should continue to be worked on and request that the board continue
the item to the meeting of September 1, 2025. The additions made to the text are shown in blue
underlined italics and deletions are shown as strike-outs in red. The current changes define
aboveground utilities and reduce the minimum size of a renewable project that comes under this
section to 1 megawatt.




Ordinance No. 15-266

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code section 17.12.064 Public Utility Uses
to establish a procedure for permitting aboveground utility projects
and renewable energy generation projects.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code section 17.12.064 Public Utility Uses
to establish a procedure for permitting aboveground utility projects and certain
renewable energy generation projects and providing for other properly related

matters.

Recitals

As part of the master plan process required by Nevada Revised Statutes 278.165,
the planning commission must prepare and the board approve an aboveground utility plan
that designates corridors for the construction of aboveground utility projects that is
consistent with any transmission plan prepared by the Office of Energy, that ensures the
continuity of transmission corridors and is consistent with the aboveground utility plan of
adjacent jurisdictions, and that is consistent with any Bureau of Land Management
resource management plan. The utility corridor plan is being prepared as part of the
Storey County master plan process. In addition, NRS 278.26503 require the governing
body to establish a process for the issuance of permits for aboveground utility projects
and certain renewable energy generation projects. This ordinance provides for that
process.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does
ordain:

SECTION I:

17.12.064 Public utility uses-Issuance of permit for utility projects.

T

OO e

EARY)

Draft 7-6-2015




A. “Aboveground utility” means an aboveground electric transmission line,
transmission substation, and power substation which is designed to operate at 200
kilovolts or more and which has been approved for construction after October 1, 1991,
by the State or Federal Government or a governing body.

B. Any aboveground utility project, which is planned to be located in an everhead
aboveground utility corridor identified on the master plan, must submit the plans for the
project to the planning department. The director of planning must review the plans and if’
the director determines the plans are complete and the location is within the master plan
designated corridor, the director may epprove-theproject-determine that the project is
an allowed use and allow it to move forward with applicable permitting.

C. Any aboveground utility project that is located outside an aboveground utility
corridor identified in the master plan is required to have a special use permit. In
addition to meeting all the general requirements for a special use permit including a
public hearing, the special use permit must not be approved unless it meets the following
additional criteria;

1. The construction of the aboveground utility does not conflict with any existing or
planned infrastructure or other utility projects.

2. The board determines that the proximily of the proposed corridor to any school,
hospital or urban residential area with a density greater than 2 units per gross acre is
acceptable.

If the aboveground utility project is on federally owned land, al the beginning of the
Jederal review and permit application process, the applicant must have a pre-application
meeting with the planning department. The applicant may submil, as an application to
the county, the appropriate documents related to the environmental review by state and
federal land management agencies. If the applicant is required to apply to the Public
Utilities Commission of Nevada, the copy of the application is required o be served on
the county, pursuant to NRS, will constitute the environmental documents that make up
the application to the county.

D. Any renewable energy generation project with a nameplate capacity of 16
megewatts 1 megawatt or more is required fo have a special use permit and must be &
pernrifted-nse-an allowed use or allowed use with a special use permit in the zone
where the plewt renewable energy generation facility will be located,

E. An applicant for the issuance of a special use permit for the construction of any
utility project or for the construction of a renewable energy generation project with a
nameplate capacity of +0-mesgevatts | megawatt or more who:

1. Believes that the decision of the planning commission or governing body to
approve or deny the applicant’s application was rnot timely; or

2. Disagrees with any conditions imposed by the special use permit issued by the
planning commission or governing body; may, in the manner prescribed by the Public
Utilities Commission of Nevada by regulation, petition the Public Utilities Commission of
Nevada 1o review the decision of the planning commission or governing body.

Proposed on , 2015.

by Commissioner

Draft 7-6-2015




Passed on , 2015,

Vote: Ayes Commissioners

Nays Commissioners
Absent Commissioners
Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on

Draft 7-6-2015 3




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 08/04/15 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required ]

1. Title: (Continued from 06/01/15 meeting) Discussion/Possible Action: Application No. 2014-
020 by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to amend the text of Storey County Code
Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) by adding Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone.
The intent of the proposed I-C Zone is to provide for certain mixed-use industrial and
commercial uses where found appropriate by the board with recommendation by the
planning commission. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and
the draft zone text may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or
planning@storeycounty.org.

2, Recommended motion: (Continue item until October 20, 2015, board meeting.) Based on findings
of fact shown in Subsection 4.1 and the conditions of approval shown in Section 5 of this
report, and conformance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the master plan,
and the recommendation for approval by staff and the planning commission, I
(Commissioner) motion to approve Storey County Zone Text Amendment Application
No. 2014-020 to include “Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial Commercial Zone” to Storey
County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: Text amendment of Storey County Code Title 17 (Zoning Ordinance) as
explained and recommended in Staff Report No. 2014-020.

5. Supporting materials: Staff Report No. 2014-020 and exhibits provided at the 12/02/14 board
meeting and packet are available at the Planning Department at 775.847.1144.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
z Department Head Department Name:
. Wt}( Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ S -

Agenda Item No. 1




Storey County

Board of County Commissioners
Staff Report — Zone Text Amendment

To:
From:
Meeting Dates:

Meeting Location:

Case Number:

Request:

Applicant:
Property Owner:
Staff Contact:

Guiding Documents:

Property Location:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Storey County Planning Department
December 2, 2014

Storey County Courthouse
26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

2014-020

The applicant requests a text amendment to Storey County Code
Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance that will add Chapter
17.39 I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone.

Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC

Not applicable

Austin Osborne, Planning Director

Storey County Code (SCC) 17.03 Administrative Provisions; SCC
17.28 Commercial Zone; SCC 17.34 Light Industrial Zone; 17.35
Heavy Industrial Zone; SCC 17.84 Signs and Billboards; Storey

County Master Plan, River District, Industry, and Economic plans.

Not applicable

Page 1 0f 26




1. BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

1.1 Request summary

The applicant requests an amendment to the text of Storey County Code Title 17, also known as
the Storey County Zoning Ordinance (zoning ordinance), that will create Chapter 17.39 I-C
Industrial-Commercial Zone. There is no particular parcel or property associated with this
request. However, the applicant of the text amendment submitted a zone map amendment
application (see Application No. 2014-021) to apply the proposed 1-C Zone, if approved by the
board, to land located adjacent to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center at McCarran.

1.2 Purpose and intent of the proposed zone

The proposed I-C Zone combines certain commercial, light industrial, and heavy industrial uses
now allowed pursuant to SCC Chapters 17.28 Commercial Zone, 17.34 1-1 Light Industrial
Zone, and 17.35 1-2 Heavy Industrial Zone. Unlike the existing Commercial zone that provides
for general neighborhood and regional commercial uses, and the Heavy Industrial zone that
provides for heavy manufacturing and other high-intensity uses, the I-C zone is intended to
facilitate a heavy commercial and light industrial mixed-use environment that may be well-suited
for heavy arterial traffic corridors, such as Interstate 80 or USA Parkway, that interface and serve
large industrial developments.

1.3  Land use compatibility
1.3.1 Compatibility with surrounding uses

The subject application for zone text amendment does not apply to any parcel of land. However,
the potential application of this zoning designation to land in the future should be considered.
Table 1.1 —- Use Comparisons, demonstrates allowed uses in the proposed I-C zone and compares
them with those allowed in the Commercial, Light Industrial, and Heavy Industrial zones, from
which each listed I-C use originated. The Purpose and Intent of the proposed [-C zone
(17.39.015, proposed) states that:

The purpose of the I-C Industrial-Commercial zone is to provide areas with the county
where certain industrial and commercial uses and activities may be established and
maintained together to promote efficiency, ensure compatibility, and provide for
mixed non-residential uses. It facilitates a heavy commercial and light industrial
mixed-use environment that may be well-suited near principal traffic arterials, such as
the Interstate 80 corridor, and industrial development with which the allowed use are
compatible.

I-C zoning is intended to be applied to land that is in close proximity to principal traffic arterial
routes and existing industrial type uses with which allowed uses in the I-C zone are compatible.
It is not considered an appropriate zone for residential areas or general neighborhood commercial
areas, such as Gold Hill, Virginia City, and Lockwood where C Commercial or CR Commercial-
Residential zoning may be more appropriate.

Page 2 of 26




1.3.2  Compatibility with mixed-uses within the zone

Table 1.1 shows allowed uses in the I-C zone. Because the I-C zone provides for a mixed-use
commercial-industrial environment, it should be assumed that the listed uses may occur together
on a single property (e.g., such as in a strip-mall or cluster development) or in a group of
independent but closely situated properties.

To ensure compatibility between the allowed uses, setback distance requirements in the I-C zone
(17.39.070, proposed) are particular to the use category, that being commercial, light industrial,
or heavy industrial (see setbacks, height, and area requirements in Table 1.2 — Comparison of
Use Allowances). Planning staff finds that that the required setback distances facilitate a mixed-
use environment with necessary separation and other considerations between allowed uses.

A special use permit is required for certain heavy intensity uses in the I-C zone that may be
incompatible with each other, or may be incompatible with allowed uses in zones likely to occur
adjacent to the I-C zone (see Section 3.1.1). Board and planning commission approvals are
required for special use permits. It is, therefore, found that these uses have the necessary case-by-
case governing body oversight to assure that their application will cause no zoning or use
conflicts with other conditions that may apply.

il imercial
1 Retail (principle) X X
2 | Retail {super regional) X X
3 | Commercial offices X X
4 | Personal services X X
5 | Hotels and boarding X X
6 | Tourism and visitor X X
7 | Recreation facilities X X
8 Public infrastructure X X
9 | Schools and higher ed. X X X X
10 | Equipment repair X X X
11 | Indoor firearms use X X
12 | Outdoor firearms use X X*

13 | Automotive services X X X X
14 | Truck stops X X* X X
15 { Agriculture X X

16 | Billboards X X* X*
17 | Automotive paint X X X
18 | Casinos (large-scale) X X* X
19 | Fortune tellers X X*

20 | RV parks X X
21 | Mini-storage X X X X
22 | Hospitals / urgent care X* X* X X
23 | Crisis care, permanent X X X
24 | Open-air markets X X

Page 3 of 26




25 | Fairgrounds X X*
26 | Amusement parks X X*
27 | Film and movie sets X X* X*
28 | Race tracks X X* X
29 { Education boarding X* X* X*
30 | Light manufacturing X X X*
31 | Heavy manufacturing X
32 | Warehouses X X X
33 | Chemical/oil storage X X X
34 | Chemical manufacture X*
35 | Laboratory testing X! X X!
37 | Non-renewable energy X*
38 | Renewable energy X* X*
39 | Solid waste recycling X* X X
40 | Solid waste landfill X*
21 | Solid waste collection X* X X
22 | Natural resources X* X* X*
23 | Concreate plant (perm) X*
24 | Adult retail X X* X*
24 | Mining X*
25 | Mine processing X# X*

Uses shown above are categorized into general use categories; see Storey County Code
Chapters 17.24, 17.32, 17.35, 17.76, and 17.84 for specific uses in each zone.
*Asterisks indicate uses requiring a special use permit,

The use of live animals in laboratory testing is prohibited,

1. Height

C — 45’ or 3 stories

1-1 — 35 or 3 stories

I-2 — 75 or 6 stories

I-C - 1207 or 10 stories

2. | Setback distances

C - zero front and sides; 10° rear

I-1-20°

1-2 - 50°

I-C - heavy industry, 50°; light industry, 20°; commercial, 20° front, 10° rear

3. | Minimum parcel area / use density

C-15,000sq.°
I-1—1 acre
1-2 — 3 acres

I-C —heavy industry, 3 acres; light industry, ¥ acre; commercial, 10,000 square-feet

Page 4 of 26




2. General Compliance with Guiding Documents

2.1 Master Plan

Chapter 3.2 of the Storey County Master Plan (1994) states that considerable development has
occurred in the River District over the years and that development is expected to continue. It
recommends that planning officials “give serious consideration to development and zoning for an
industrial park in the [River District] area” (pp. 19-20). Attracting additional businesses;
diversification to the county’s economy; broadening the county’s tax base; enhancing efficiency
of water, sewer, and other utility service; and managing growth are described benefits to
improving and consolidating industrial development in the county. Specific goals and objectives
listed in the master plan in this regard include:

» Chapter 3 Economy — Goal 1, enhance diversification of economic opportunities within
the county; Goal 1, Objective 1.1: develop and adopt standards for industrial park
development before a large project is proposed.

e Chapter 5 Conservation and Natural Resources — Goal 2, protect the quality of present
and future water resources; Goal 4, regulate the use of open-range and watershed areas to
minimize fire danger and prevent degradation; Goal 4, Objective 4.1, assist property
owners and interested groups in controlling grazing and public use of critical watershed
and riparian areas.

o Chapter 9 Land Use — Goal 1: maintain a healthy environment for all residents of the
county; Goal I, Objective 1.1: ensure that land use permit decisions are compatible with
the zoning map, master plan, and previous planning decisions; Goal 4: preserve existing
agricultural areas; Goal 4, objective 4.1: through zoning regulations, direct non-
agricultural development to non-agricultural areas.

» Section River District — Goal 4, Objective 4.1: coordinate land uses on the south side
[Storey County] of the Truckee River with developments on the north side [Washoe
County] of the river and visa-versa; Goal 5: design zoning districts to allow for a mix in
land use development; Goal 5, Objective 5.1: consider zoning the Tracy-Clark and the
surrounding area for industrial use.

As stated in Section 1.3, the subject text amendment application does not apply to any particular
land. However, planning staff and the applicant have identified potential land adjacent to the
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center that may be ideal for an I-C zoning designation. Aligned with the
purpose and intent of the I-C zone, this land abuts or is in immediate proximity to Interstate 80,
interfaces heavy industrial uses at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, and is near existing
infrastructure that would support the listed uses. There are other areas in the county near the
interstate or industrial development that too may be considered for this zoning designation.

With the expressed purpose and intent of the proposed I-C zone corresponding to such land
application, planning staff find that the [-C zone conforms to the goals and objectives of the
county master plan.

Page 5 of 26




2.2 Zoning Ordinance (SCC Title 17)
2.2.1 Conformance with zoning

Storey County is divided into zoning districts of such number and character as necessary to
achieve compatibility of land uses within each district, and to implement the master plan and
related official plans as needed to meet the purpose and intent of the Storey County Zoning
Ordinance. The purpose of the zoning ordinance is to serve the public health, safety, comfort,
convenience, and general welfare; to provide the economic and social advantages resulting from
an orderly planned use of economic, natural, and community resources; to encourage, guide, and
provide for the future growth and development of the county; and to implement the goals,
objectives, policies, and procedures of the master plan (SCC 17.02.020).

As stated in Sections 1.3 and 2.1 above, planning staff finds that the purpose and intent, and the
uses allowed in the I-C zone conform to the elements of the master plan, as well as the
regulations and provisions of the county zoning ordinance.

2.2.2 Application for zone text amendment

SCC 17.03.220 states that amendments to Title 17 (zoning ordinance) may be initiated by the
board, planning commission, or an owner of a lot or parcel, by applying with the Planning
Director a signed and completed application. The Planning Director must consider whether or
not information provided by the applicant substantiates findings for approval. The applicant will
then proceed with its presentation of such to the planning commission and board for
constderation. The subject application was initiated by the land owner and is hereby presented to
the planning commission and board with discussion, findings, and recommendations.

2.2.3 Zone map amendment, applicability

While not subject to this request, a property owner who desires to apply the I-C zone (if
adopted), or any other zone to a piece of land, is required to apply for a zone map amendment
that will be considered in public hearing by the board with recommendation by the planning
commission. The board and planning must consider: (a) how the proposal will impact the
immediate vicinity; (b) how the proposal supports the goals, objectives, and recommendations of
the master plan concerning land use and related policies for the neighborhood where the subject
parcel is situated; (c) if the proposed amendment will impact properties within the use district;
and (d} any impacts on public services and facilities, and availability of water resources.

Notwithstanding approval of the I~C zone, any proposal to apply it to land will require further
review by the board and planning commission.

3. Public Comment

31 Public comments regarding proposal

Staff has received no public comment for this application request.

Page 6 of 26




4. Findings

4.1  Motion for approval

The following are found regarding the zone text amendment under the recommended conditions
of approval shown in Section 5. A motion for approval should include at a minimum these
findings and may include other findings deemed appropriate and factual by the body.

4.1.1 The zone text amendment complies with federal, Nevada State, and Storey County
regulations.

4.1.2 The zone text amendment substantially conforms to and supports the goals, objectives,
and recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan concerning land use and related
policies.

4.1.3 The zone text amendment considers uses that pursuant to the master plan and zoning
ordinance occur on abutting lands, and it reasonably mitigates potential adverse impacts that
may be caused by its uses.

4.1.4 The zone text amendment does not conflict with the minimum requirements of Title 17
zoning ordinance or SCC Chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions for zone text amendments.

4.1.5 The proposed zone text amendment will not cause uses that will likely negatively impact
existing or planned public facilities, and it will not adversely impact the public health, safety,
and welfare.

4.1.6 The proposed zone text amendment will not create any non-conforming conditions, such
as non-conforming setback distances or minimum parcel area and width requirements.

4.2 Motion for denial

Should a motion be made to deny the zone text amendment application, the following findings
with an explanation of the motion for denial should be included in that motion.

4.2.1 Substantial evidence suggests that the zone text amendment does not conform to federal,
Nevada State, and Storey County regulations.

4.2.2 Substantial evidence suggests that the zone text amendment does not conform to and
support the goals, objectives, and recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan
concerning land use and related policies.

4.2.3 Substantial evidence suggests that the zone text amendment does not sufficiently
consider uses that may pursuant to the master plan and zoning ordinance occur on abutting
lands, and it does not reasonably mitigate potential adverse impacts that may be caused by its
allowed uses.

4.2.4 Substantial evidence suggests that the zone text amendment may cause uses that will
negatively impact existing or planned public facilities, may adversely impact the public
health, safety, and welfare, and may create non-conforming conditions.

Page 7 of 26




S. Conditions of Approval

All of the following conditions must be met to the satisfaction of the applicable County
Department, uniess otherwise stated.

5.1 Official zoning text requirements

The official Storey County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance, must be amended to
include Chapter “17.39 I-C Industrial Commercial Zone”, and existing Chapter 17.08 Zones
Generally and other applicable zoning chapters must be amended to appropriately reference the
subject zone.

5.2  Official zoning map requirements

The Official Storey County Zoning Map must be amended to depict the subject zone designation
that is added to Storey County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance. The Official
Storey County Zoning Map must be identified by the signature of the chairman of the Board
attested by the Storey County Clerk under the following words: “This is to certified that this is
the Official Zoning Map of Storey County referred to in Section 17.08.040 of the Zoning
Ordinance of Storey County, Nevada” together with the date of adoption.

5.3 Changes made promptly

The changes approved by the board with recommendation by the planning commission must be
entered by the Planning Department on the Official Storey County Zoning Map (and the
applicable area zoning maps) promptly as reasonable after the amendment has been approved,
with the entry indicating the ordinance number and date adopted. Regardless of the existence of
the purported copies of the Official Storey County Zoning Map and the applicable Area Zoning
Map which may periodically be made or published, the Official Storey County Zoning Map and
Area Zoning Maps shall be kept in the Office of the Storey County Clerk and Recorder. The
Storey County Recorder shall be the final authority as to the current zoning status of the land and
water area, buildings, and other structures in the county.

5.4  Copies of official zoning text and map

Signed and sealed copies of the Official Storey County Zoning Map and Area Zoning Maps, and
official Storey County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance, must be available for
public viewing at the Offices of the Storey County Clerk and Storey County Recorder.

5.8  General requirements

The zone text amendment and related map amendment must comply with and remain in
conformance with all provisions set forth by this zone map amendment and all applicable
federal, Nevada State, and Storey County codes and regulations.

Page 8 of 26




6. Power of the Board and Planning Commission

The Board of County Commissioners has the power to make planning and zoning decisions for
Storey County and has created the planning commission to advise the Board as provided in Title
2 of the Storey County Code (*SCC”) and NRS 278 and 278A. The Planning Commission must
perform all duties and functions delegated to a county planning commission by the terms of NRS
278.010 to 278.630, inclusive, and SCC Chapter 2.12 (Planning Commission). The planning
commission is advisory to the Board. The Planning Commission must hear applications on
special use permits, variances, and appeals of administrative decisions, changes to the county
master plan, zoning districts, amendments to SCC Title 18, and all other appropriate subjects and
make recommendations to the Board. After considering the Planning Commission’s
recommendation, the Board by majority vote may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the
application, or return the recommendation to the Planning Commission for further consideration.

7. Planning Commission Action

At its November 13, 2014, hearing, the planning commission heard testimony from the applicant,
county staff, and the public. Discussion at the meeting included environmental and safety
compatibility concerns; access and traffic impacts for several allowed uses; zoning and use
entitlements; potential impacts to areas where the zone may be allowable; potential location and
placement of the zoning designation; and overall benefits and impacts that the I-C zone may
have on the county and its communities. There was no public comment for or against the
proposal. Commissioner Tyler asked several questions about traffic and other impacts generated
by large-scale casinos allowed by the zone. Planning staff stated that the I-C zone is only
allowed near major arterial routes such as Interstate 80 and USA Parkway, which are typically
developed to standards that would accommodate large-scale casinos and other uses.
Commissioner Tyler and the planning commission asked that a special use permit be required for
large-scale casinos. Staff read into the records its recommended findings to be included with a
motion for approval. Members of the planning commission who were present voted unanimously
(4 votes with 4 planning commissioners present) to approve the zone text amendment in
accordance with stated findings and as recommended by staff, except that a special use permit
shall be required for [arge-scale casinos,

8. Proposed Motions

This section contains three motions from which to choose. Motion 1 for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with findings under Subsection 4.1. This motion is
recommended by staff, but does not conform to the recommendation by the planning commission
regarding special use permitting for large-scale casinos. Motion 2 for approval, as an
alternative, may be made in accordance with findings under Subsection 4.1 and the
recommendation by the planning commission, but against the recommendation by staff regarding
special use permitting for large-scale casinos. Motion 3 for denial may be made and that motion
should cite one or more of the findings shown in Subsection 4.2. The findings of fact in the
respective section of this report, and other findings of fact determined appropriate by the body
should be made part of the motion.

Page 9 of 26




Motion 1 — Recommended motion (approval)

Based on findings of fact shown in Subsection 4.1 and the conditions of approval shown in
Section 5 of this report, and conformance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the
master plan, and the recommendation for approval by staff and the planning commission, except
against the recommendation by the planning commission that a special use permit shall be
required for large-scale casinos, I (commissioner) motion to approve Storey County Zone Text
Amendment Application No. 2014-020 to include “Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial Commercial
Zone” to Storey County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance.

Summary: Approve zone flext amendment as presented, except modify planning
commission recommendation so a special use permit is not required for large casinos

Motion 2 — Alternative motion (approval)

Based on findings of fact shown in Subsection 4.1 and the conditions of approval shown in
Section 5 of this report, and conformance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the
master plan, and the recommendation for approval by staff and the planning commission, except
against the recommendation by staff that a special use permit not be required for large-scale
casinos, I (commissioner) motion to approve Storey County Zone Text Amendment Application
No. 2014-020 to include “Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial Commercial Zone” to Storey County
Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance.,

Summary: Approve zone text amendment as recommended by the planning commission,
and require a special use permit for large casinos

Motion 3 — Alternative motion (denial)

Based on findings of fact shown in Subsection 4.2 and the conditions of approval shown in
Section 5 of this report, or other findings found appropriate, and against the recommendation for
approval by staff and the planning commission, I (commissioner) motion to a deny Storey
County Zone Text Amendment Application No. 2014-020 to include “Chapter 17.39 I-C
Industrial Commercial Zone™ to Storey County Code, Title 17 Storey County Zoning Ordinance.

Summary: Deny text amendment

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Planning Director

Enclosures:
Exhibit A: Proposed Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone
Exhibit B: Application No. 2014-020

Page 10 of 26




Exhibit A: Proposed Chapter 17.39 I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone
Chapter 17.39

1-C Industrial-Commercial Zone
Sections:
17.39.010  Applicability.
17.39.015  Purpose and Intent
17.39.020  Allowed Uses
17.39.030  Uses Subject to Special Use Permit
17.39.040  Height and Width of Buildings and Structure
17.39.050 Minimum Parcel Area
17.39.670 Loading Area
17.39.080  Setback Requirements

17.39.010 Applicability

The provisions of this chapter apply to the I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone. Uses in the C Commercial
Zone are regulated by chapter 17.28 C Commercial Zone and uses in the CR Commercial-Residential
zone are regulated by chapter 17.30 Commercial-Residential zone.

17.39.015 Purpose and Intent

The purpose of the I-C Industrial-Commercial zone is to provide areas within the county where certain
industrial and commercial uses and activities may be established and maintained together to promote
efficiency, ensure compatibility, and provide for mixed non-residential uses. It facilitates a heavy
commercial and light industrial mixed-use environment that may be well-suited near principal traffic
arterials, such as the Interstate 80 corridor, and industrial development with which the allowed uses are
compatible. It is not intended for residential areas or general neighborhood commercial areas, such as
Gold Hill, Virginia City, Lockwood, or other such residential communities where C Commercial or CR
Commercial Residential zoning may be more appropriate.

17.39.020 Allowed Uses
The commereial, light industrial, and heavy industrial uses listed in this section are allowed in the I-C
Industrial-Commercial Zone.
A. Commercial uses including:
1. Retail sales and shopping centers including:

a. General stores, shopping centers, convenience stores, principal grocery stores,
neighborhood stores and shopping centers, regional stores and shopping centers, and super
regional stores and shopping centers.

b. Seasonal holiday sales and uses.

¢.  Seasonal farmers markets,

2. Commercial offices and financial institutions:
a. Real-estate permanent office, banks and credit unions, accountants, insurance,

employment agencies, consulting firms, manufacturer representatives, newspapers,
secretarial services, associations and other similar office uses and activities.

Page 1 of 26




b. Building maintenance and services.

C.

d.

Business and professional offices and buildings.

Convention and meeting facilities.

3. Personal services:

C.

d.

Barbers, hair stylists, beauticians, manicurists/pedicurists, spas, salons, tailors, massage
establishments, and similar type uses.

Wedding chapels and travel agencies.
Childcare of any number of children.

Laundromats, personal dry cleaning, and laundry services.

4. Boarding accommodations including hotels, motels, hostels, bed and breakfast inns, timeshares,
and vacation rentals.

5. Tourist and visitor services:

a,

d.

Eating and drinking establishments such as restaurants, cafes, drive-in diners, fast-food,
coffee shops and coffee houses, soda-fountains, saloons and taverns, and micro-breweries
with on-site and off-site sales.

Entertainment and casual education services such as docents, guided tours on foot, gold
panning, and museums.

Equestrian facilities and uses including riding arenas, stables, horse and pony rides, and
carriage and stagecoach rides.

Theaters.

6. Recreation, Bowling lanes, billiard parlors and pool halls, arcades, gaming (when incidental to a
primary use and limited to no more than 15 slot and/or video machines), golf driving ranges,
miniature golf, country clubs, health clubs and personal fitness gyms, swimming pools and
saunas, tennis courts, permanent indoor and seasonal outdoor roller and ice skating rinks and
facilities, seasonal or temporary outdoor theatres, and other similar recreational uses and

activities,
7. Civic uses:
a. Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sheriff,
b. Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.
¢. Crisis care use uses and facilities, permanent.
d. Libraries and cultural services, governmental offices, post offices, community centers, and

courts of law.

Page 12 of 26




e. Education including elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and academies, coileges
and higher education, technical and vocational education, apprentice training, whether
public, private, or parochial. A special use permit is required for education institutions and
academies that include student residential accommodations.

f.  Highway rest areas, picnicking areas, parks and playgrounds, dog parks, walking and
bicycle trails, interpretive trails, restroom facilities, and information kiosks.

g. Parking lots and structures, park-and-rides and carpool transfer centers, multi-modal
transit hubs, parking garages and storage, railroad and light rail infrastructures, train
tunnels, and railroad switchyards and turntables.

h. Indoor and outdoor veterinarian services and shelters for large and small animals,

8. General services:

a. Catering, equipment and appliance repair, gun repair, general contractors offices, heavy
and light equipment rental, feed and tack stores, manufactured home sales and service,
pawn brokers, pet sales and grooming, print shops, upholstery shops, video rentals, and
other similar general services uses and activities.

b. Uses involving indoor archery and indoor discharge of firearms.

9. Congregational establishments including religious institutions, fraternal lodges, recreational and

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

social clubs, labor halls, service clubs and facilities for other private clubs.

Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the permitted uses.
Uses also include community gardens.

Casinos and gaming establishments of more than 5,000 square feet of total floor area where slots
and/or video machines are located, where there are more than 15 slots and/or video machines,

and where other forms of gambling such as poker, craps, blackjack, keno, sports book and other
similar activities may take place.

Public utility service yards, buildings, electric substations, gas transmission substations, and
ancillary uses.

Recreational vehicle (RV) parks.

Mini-warehouses and storage facilities for rent including recreational vehicle, boat, utility trailer,
horse trailer, and similar equipment storage.

Open-air markets, flea-markets, farmers markets, and the display, sale, barter, or frade of items
associated with a business outside of a permanent building.

Race tracks and arenas involving the use of automobiles, trucks, tractors, and other motorized
vehicles,

Radio-controlled (RC) cars, vehicles, watercraft, and aircraft facilities and uses.

Signs as regulated by chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

Page 13 of 26




19. Automobile paint shops and body repair shops.

20. Accessory use, buildings and structures if they are clearly incidental to a permitted use, placed

21

upon the same lot or parcel with a permitted use, and in conformance with section 17.12.048,

. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be consistent with the uses

permitted within the zone.

B. Light industrial uses including the following:

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

IS,

16.

Limited indoor manufacturing and assembly involving the production process that uses already
manufactured components to assemble, print, or package a product such as cloth, paper, plastic,
leather, wood, glass, stones, or computer and electronic parts.

. Contractor services, including general contractor offices, contractor service shops, carpet

cleaning, pest control, printing and publishing, and similar uses.

. Agricultural use types including general agricultural uses, agricultural animal production, custom

animal processing, agricultural research, agricultural supplies sales, and agricultural
entertainment and commercial uses.

Trade and craftsman industries, including furniture and carpentry manufacturing and refining,
upholstery shops, monument works, and similar uses.

. Outdoor storage and maintenance of building materials, vehicles, trailers, and heavy equipment

associated with 2 commercial building contractor or business when not directly associated with a
construction project on the premises.

. Manufactured home and modular home sales lots.

Propane sales and storage.
Firewood sales and storage.
Temporary real-estate tract offices not located within a permanent structure.

Laboratories and testing services. The use of live animals in laboratory, testing, and
experimentation is prohibited.

Building material manufacturing.

Breweries, distilleries, wineries.

Warehouses, warehouse complexes, distribution operations, and wholesale distribution.
Laundromats and personal dry cleaning.

Automotive, truck, and heavy equipment services including washing and defailing (manual
hand-washing, coin-operated, and production line methods), service and fueling stations, repair
(including painting and body repair), sales, and rental.

Truck stops.

Page 14 of 26




17. Solid waste recycling collection center,

18. Solid waste recycling center.

19. Brick, tile or terra cotta products manufacturing.

20. Hunting, fishing, and skiing facilities and lodges, wildlife refuges, and game farms.

21. Sewage treatment plants and facilities and other sewage or sludge processing, treatment, or
storage.

22. Watchman’s dwelling, whether permanent or temporary.

23. Outdoor storage or maintenance of building materials, vehicles, trailers, and heavy equipment
associated with a commercial building contractor or business when not directly associated with a
construction project on the premises.

24, Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be consistent with the uses
permitted within the zone.

C. Heavy industrial uses including the following:

1. Manufacturing and assembly involving the production process which uses already manufactured
components to assemble, print, or package a product such as cloth, paper, plastic, leather, wood,
glass, stones, or computer and electronic parts and manufacturing operations involving primary
production of commodity of raw materials, except those listed in section 17.39.030 as requiring
a special use permit.

2, Storage and distribution of paints, shellac, turpentine, varnishes, and other similar chemicals
within a warchouse facility.

3. Storage and distribution of petroleum and liquid petroleum products within a warehouse facility.

4. Manufacturing of paints, shellac, turpentine, vamishes, and other such chemicals, Manufacturing,
reclaiming, refining, storage, and distribution of cyanide, hazardous materials, and liquid
petroleum products are prohibited.

5. Paper manufacturing.

6. Bottling plants.

7. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be consistent with the uses
permitted within the zone.

17.39.030 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit
Unless stated otherwise, the following uses may be permitted subject to securing a special use permit
pursuant to chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions.

1. Fortune tellers, astrology parlors, clairvoyance and palmistry. Additionally, uses under this
subsection must comply with the regulations under Title 5 Business licenses, and be located no
closer than 1,000 feet from a public or private school, religious institution, public building or
facility, or another permitted fortune teller, astrology parlor, clairvoyance and palmistry use, and

Page 15 of 26




i0.

1.

12.

3.

14.

15.

16.

17.

I8.

300 feet from any E, R, or SPR zone,

. Permanent outdoor skateboard parks and related facilities.

. Fairgrounds, rodeo arenas, horse and other animal competition tracks and arenas, and similar

USes.

Amusement parks involving various devices for entertainment such as thrill and theme rides,
roller-coasters, water slides, and games and concession booths.

. Facilities and uses that include outdoor sets and props for the development and production of

movies, film, television, and similar visual media.

Education facilities that include student residential and boarding accommodations.,

. Permanent outdoor theatres.

. Billboards as regulated by chapter 17.68 Signs and billboards.

Zoos, animal theme and amusement parks, and other maintenance, display, or possession of one
or more wild animals.

Healthcare facilities including hospital services, medical services, urgent care, clinics,
convalescent services, civic convalescent and group care service, continuum of care facilities for
seniors, and group care services.

Tattoo, permanent cosmetics, and invasive body piercing facilities. These uses are only allowed
within the boundaries of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center which is zoned 1-2 Heavy Industrial,
[-C Industrial-Commercial, or C Commercial. They are prohibited within 1,500 feet of a public
or private school or religious institution.

Retail establishments featuring the display, lease, or rental of “adult material” books,
merchandise, periodicals, video tapes, video disks including DVDs and other recorded video
devices, computer disks, instruments, devices or paraphernalia “adult” material, The
merchandise shall only be available for sale or lease for private use by the purchaser or lessee off
the premises of the business.

Temporary (less than 1 year) concrete and asphalt batch plants when not incidental to an on-site
construction project or when located within 2,500 feet from a CR, E, R, or SPR zone.

Milling and processing related to mining and extraction.

Natural resources including river and waterway restoration, wetland creation, water restoration
and recycling.

The keeping of 7 or more dogs or potbelly pigs more than 12 weeks of age. A minimum of 10
acres is required.

Commercial kennel. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

Other uses similar to the above that are determined by the board with action by the planning
commission to be consistent with the uses requiring a special use permit within the zone.

Page 16 of 20




17.39.040 Height and Width of Buildings and Structures

A building, manufactured building, or structure may not exceed a height of ten stories or 120 feet,
whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a variance. The requirements of this section do not
apply to church spires, belfries, cupolas, domes, chimneys and smoke-stacks, grain silos, water towers,
flagpoles, and commercial and amateur wireless communication towers and antennas, Wind energy
turbine support structures are regulated by chapter 17.12.044, Height of buildings and structures.

17.39.050 Minimum Parcel Area

Parcel arca requirements shall be as follows: (A) commercial uses may be located on a parcel of no less
than 10,000 square-feet; (B) light-industrial uses may be located on a parcel no less than one-half acre;
and (C) heavy-industrial uses may be located on a parcel no less than 3 acres. The minimumn area
requirement for uses requiring a special use permit shall be determined by the special use permit, except
that the area shall be no less than 10,000 square-feet.

17.39.060 Loading Area
Loading area must have adequate room for vehicular circulation and staging. All truck parking and
docking area must be designed so that right-of-ways and travelled ways are not adversely impacted.

17.39.0°70 Setback Requirements

Setback requirements shall be as follows: (A) heavy-industrial uses may be located no closer than 50 feet
from any property line; (B) light-industrial uses may be located no closer than 20 feet from any property
line; and (C) commercial uses shall have a minimum 10 foot rear and side setback and a 20 foot front
setback. Uses requiring a special use permit shall have setback distances established by the granted
special use permit, except that the minimum allowable setback distances shall be no less than 10 feet from

any property line.

Page 17 of 26




Exhibit B: Application No. 2014-020 {(Zone Text Amendment)
The following application includes a request for both a zone text and zone map amendments. For
zone map amendment applicability, refer to Application and Staff Report No. 2014-021.

1{ _'
Storey County Planning Department

26 South “B” Street, P.O. Box 175, Virginia City, NV 35440
Phone: {775) 847-1144 Fax: {775} 847-0949
planning@storeycouniy.org

Development Application

Submit this eampleled application and all afiachments alonp with the application fee (860 page tweo for type of
application and fees) at least 30 days prior to the meeting you wish to have your request scheduled. The application
will not be avcepted unfess complets, including attachments {appllcant vAll be nofified within 15 days i application s

zbla and what Is stil required), The application fee s non-refundable, Please make checks payable to
Storey County Planning Development.

Project Number;

Property Qumney,_Tahoe—Reno Industrial Center, LIL
A Innd owrioey mast b Bstod on this applnation. Typo or prinl inglidy ¥t bleck or blus i
c/o Robert M. Sader, 8600 Teclmology Way, Suite 104

Maillng Address:
City: Reno State;_ NV Zip:_B9521

Telaphone (Home) ( 3 KA Business [ 742 3 329-8310

Applicant___ SAME

A spplicanis musl ba Suled an Bls eppication.

Mailing Address; SAME

City:, State; Zip:,

Tefephone (Home) { } Buslnass { 3

[ Jcsod Hall Cvirginia City [ Vﬁ I:;%i;iands A Hig:hlﬁggje:;mhes [ ‘\a"irg;ln"ltt“igI 5:;:?\9&
|OMark Twain [JHated Clockwood  [IPalnted Rock BRI Jother

P’roj&& Address: Waltham Way and I-80

~161 and 99; 004-162-01 and 02;
Assessor's Parcal Mumbers (APN); %%%wlg]i:%g 02, 03, 04 and 05 ’

319.852

Lat; N/A Block:, N/A Acreage:

lTots

Page 18 of 26




Application Type | _Application Fee spiication Type:| Application Fee
T 1 Abandonment 1 $200.00 Amended Map n/a )
] Condition nia Boundary Line $250.00 + 25.00 per lot
Ameandment _ Adjustment
1 Cevelopment $1,000.00 1] Extension of Time | 50% of Original Fee
Agreement (Requires a Request (One Year
Special Use Permif) Extension Only)
[Jland Division Map | $500,00 + $50.00 per | |_] Lot Consolidation | n/a
(40 acre minmum)  {lot
‘T LT Master Plan Map $2,800.00 RY Master Plan Text $800.00
Amendment ~ Amandment
|_I Natural Resources | $65.00 per hour [_] Street Neme réa
Exploration and Request
Registration
Parcel Map — $250.00 + 25.00 per lot | [_| Parcel Map Final nfa
Record of Survey _ _
[ Pianned Unit $500.00 + 1.00 perfot | [_| Planned Unit $200.00 + 25.00 per lot
Development (PUD) - Development - Final
Tentative _ _
[T *Special Use Permit | $250.00 [ J*Special Use Permit | 5450.00
— Minor - Routine
] "Spacial Use Permit | $750.00 ] *Special Use Permit | $2,500.00
— Major N - Malor Industrial -
Subdivision Map - | $500.00 + 1.00 per lot | [_| Subdlvision Map - | $200.00 + 25.00 per lot
Tentafive Final
[ TVarance « n/a [ Variance $100.00
Administrative o
[ | Wireless [ ] wireless nfa
Communication Facility Communication
o Facility, Modification
Zoning Map Change | $1,000.00 il Zoning Tex{ Change | hia

Note: Additional fees to cover cosls accrue by the county in association with the application, including
staff ime and consultation with outside legal and professional council may be charged to the
applicant. No additional fees will be charged withaut expressed written permission by the applicant.

e

Applicants inltlals

*If you are applying for a Special Use Permit, please refer also to the Storey County Speclal Use
Permit Deflnitions List when determining a minor, major, routine or major industrial permit,

2ol §

Page 19 of 26




Storey County Developrnent Applicition

Detail DescriptionfJustification of Project

i Aftached addilionsl pages as necessary

SEE ATTACHED

3uik

Page 20 of 26




INTRGDUCTION

This application requests an amendment to the Storey Counly Master Plan text, a
zoning map change, and zoning ext change for real property {the *Property™) owned by
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (“TRI"} which was formerly in Washoe County but
now has been moved by a boundary line adjustment to Storey County. The Property
came to Storey County without master plan or zoning designations. The legal description
of the Property is attached to this application, including a map of the parcels.

There are nine (%) parcels subject (o this application. Their location can generally
be described as south of 1-80, notth of Truckee River, west of Tracy Power Plant and east
of Mustang,

BACKGROUND

The 20N3 Nevada State Legislature enacted Senate Bill 272, which authorized a
boundary line adjustment between Washoe County and Storey County under Sections 1.5
and 3(3) of that ac1 by resolutions approved by each county's board of commmissioners.
On June 17, 2014 the Board of Commissioners of Storey County passed Resolution 14-
403 approving the adjustment. On the same date the Board of County Commissioners of
Washoe County approved a resolution on the same adjustment.

The result of these actions was to transfer eighteen (18) parcels from Washoe
County to Storey County. Nine (9) of those parcels are owned by TRI and are subject to
this application.

TRI is the master developer of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center {"Center”). The
current northwestern boundary of the Center is separated from the Property by the
Truckee River. 1t s a logical extension of the Center for TRI fo develop a portion of the
Property as a parl of the Cenler.

The basic emitlement for the Center is the Development Agreement dated
February 1, 2000 between TRI and Storey County. The Center is pravided water and
sewer service by TRI General Improvement District (“TRIGID™). Applications to anmex
the Property to the Development Agreement are being made concurrently with this
application. An application to expand the service territory of TRIGID will be made to the
Trustees upon approval of the Development Agreement annexation.

The zoning for the Center is 1-2 Heavy Industrial (1999 Storey Coumy Zoning

Code edition), which allows light industrial zoning uses and also allows commercial
zoning uses on 10% of the land, This application seeks to add a portion of the Property

Page 21 of 26




EVELOPMENT APPL.
JUSTIFICATION OF ¥

INTRODUCTION

This application requests an amendment to the Storey County Master Plan text, a
zoning map change, and zoning text change for real property (the “Property™) owned by
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (“TRI™) which was formerly in Washoe County but
now has been moved by a boundary line adjustment to Storey County. The Property
came to Storey County without master plan or zoning desipnations. The legal description
of the Property is attached to this application, including a map of the parcels.

There are nine {9) parcels subject 10 this application. Their location can generally
be described as south of 1-80, north of Truckee River, west of Trasy Power Plant and east
of Mustang.

BACKGROUND

The 2013 Nevads State Legislature enacted Senate Bill 272, which avthorized a
boundary line adjusiment between Washoe County and Storey County under Sections 1.5
and 3(3) of that act by resolutions approved by each county’s hoard of commissioners.
On June 17, 2014 the Board of Commissioners of Storey Coumty passed Resolution 14-
403 approving the adjustment. On the same date the Board of County Commissioners of
Washoe County approved a resolution on the same adjusiment.

The result of these actions was to transfer eighteen (18) parcels from Washoe
County to Storey County. Nine (9) of those pareels are owned by TRE and are subject to
this application.

TRI is the master developer of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center "Center”). The
current porthwestern boundary of the Center is separated from the Property by the
Truckee River. 1t is a logical extension of the Center for TRI to develop a portion of the
Propesty as a part of the Cenler,

The basic entitlerneni for the Center is the Devclopment Agresment dated
February 1, 2000 between TRI and Storey County. The Center is provided water and
sewer service by TRI General Tmprovement District (“TRIGID™). Applications (w0 annex
the Properly to the Development Agreement ate being made concurrently with this
application. An application to expand the service territory of TRIGITY will be made to the
Trustees upon approval of the Development Agreement annexation.

The zoning for the Center is I-2 Heavy Indusirial (1999 Storey County Zoning

Code edition), which allows light industrial zoning uses and also allows commercial
zoning uses on 10% of the land. This application secks to add a portion of the Property

Page 22 of 26




i
i
f
[

Storey County Development Application

Professional Consultant/Representative(s}

Name; Robert M. Sader _
Address: 8600 Taeclmology Way, Suite 101

Clty: Rend State: Nevada Zip._ 89521
Phone: (7757-329=5310 Emailzmsader@robertmsadexitdscom. Cell: N/A
Applicant’s Affidavit:
L, NiA , being duly swom, depose and say thal | am the applicant of the described
{Frinted nams}

project andfor request, and 2l e staterments and answerts hersin conltained and the Information herewith submilked are in
all reepects complete, true and correct to the best of my knowletge and ballef, | understand thal no assurancs or guarahtoe
canh ba givan by membaers of tha Storey County Planning Deparrment Staff,

Bignatire of Appiican Tiata

State of Nevada,
County of Slarey

Slgned and sworn to before me on B by,

Wolarys Eimahire

Hy Commizzion Explres

Property Owner's Affidavit;

1, Tahoe-Reno Toduatrial, LLL neing duly swom, depase and ssy that | am an owner® In fee of the described
{Prinfed nams}

property [nvolved |n this application, that | have knowlsdge of, and agree fo, the filling of this application, and that the

statements and enswers hersin contalned and the information horewith submitted are In all respects complats, frue and

comect to the best of my knowledge and bellef. { undarstand that no assurance or guarantee cen be given by members of

the,Starey County Planning Depariment Staff,
?{:C{Aj: ‘W } Q\,‘ﬁ‘/‘ Dafe, ,n':/é/; ‘]L

sﬂggggg{ ?cﬂéﬂéder, Legal Counsel

Stote of Nevada,
County of Bbeey Washoe ) P
_ TINA FORD
Signed and sworn to betors me on, by, | NOTARY PUBLIC
- T e
3 . NO, 82 pgana. ]
fﬂ.@"f TL' /M i 56&’8?"' . MY APPT. EXPIRES Juigr:‘gi 2018

4ot

Page 23 of 26




Storey Counly Development Application

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

SBubmittal Requirements

Application Type

Addiional Imfotmation -

Deatailad
Descriplontlusificalion
Qriginal Map Mylar
Map & st in CAD
Format on Disk
Floor Pian

Titde Report
Prainage Report
Solis Report

Traffic Report
Water Rights
Reclamation Plan

BDepartment

Abandonmant

| Pald Tax Receipt

i | Legal Description - Deed

[ *{ Reduced Map {11 x 17}

x| Plot Plan

Amended Map

Condition Amendment

Boundary Line Adjustment

b
>
>
>

Development Agreenent
(Recuires Special Use Permit)

»
bt
=
»
-
=
>
o
| >
>
"

Extangan of Time Request (One
Year Extension Only)

Land Davision Map {40 acre
N

Page 24 of 26

F A E S S L

Lot Consolidation”

s sl 3 | 3¢ | e | ve| ¢} e| e| Vicinity Mep

Master Plan Map Amendment

haster Plan Text Amendment

MO DI ENE] ML oW R [ M BE] W B&velopmentApplicaliq{’_a ]

AR IR A A R

Natural Resources Exploration
and Registration Review

-
>
=
o

Parcel Map - Record of Survey

Parcel Map X

»
™
™
»
>
b
%

Plarned Unit Developmeant, X
Tentatlve

o
-
»
>
»
x
»
ket
>
>
>
>

ool oooolo| 0] ginbOng

Planned Unit Development, Flinal | X | X X | X | x x| X

PRIk MDD MOE o | M| e a3 Check with Planning

*Administrative lot consolidation procedure
Nate: Additional information and materials may be required with the application.

Hof B



Storey Connty Pevelupment Application

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SusMiTTAL REQUIREMENTS

Submiital Requirements

Application Typ

DesgoriptionfJustification
Original Map Mylar

- Map & Data In CAD
Format on Disk
Yicinity ldap
Legsl Dageription - Deed

Detalted
Tifle Reparl

Floor Flan

Drainage Report
Additlonal nformation —

Sells Report
Traffic Report
Water Rights
Raclamation Plan
Depariment

Special Use Permit - Minor

Specizl Use Pemit - Routine

Spocial Use Permit — Major

A IR Pakd Tax Recsipt

e x| Reduced Map {11 x17)

Speciat Use Parmit —
Majer industrial

Strest Name Request

M| M| oM

x

Sutsdivision Map - Tentative

3

Page 25 of 26

Bpe M x| || i Plot Plan

»
=
o
>

| Subdivision Map - Final

WYariance « ?_E_.:mm#mmﬁ

Varignce

Wireless Communicstion

Faciity

Wireless Communicalion
Facitity, Modificalion

Zoning Map Change

MWW IM X
»

Zoning Text Change

s i s oW oI Em x| x| x| R ] Development Application

m] == =) = E EEEE RN EREE
xx:xxxxx}cx.xxxxx
=

AR A
LI S IR
”

Ciher X

W dlech s | b ol x| x| 3 | wix| % Check with Planning

Note: Additional information and materlals may be required with the application.




DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SuamMITTAL REQUIREMENTS GUIDE

1. Development Application « You can get an applicafion from tha Pianning Deparimant at tha Starey County
Courthouse or onling at StoreyCounty.org.

2. Dstaited DescriptionMustification — The description of your project and the reason far the project. Be as detailed
as possitle and submit any Information to help explain your project {pholos, maps, eto.).

3, Paid Tax Recaipt — This is & recsipt showlng your property taxes are current or pald in full. A copy can be
obtalned from the CleridTraasurers office located on the 2°% fioor in the Storey County Courthouse.

4, PictPlan - A diagram showing the location of all buildings, well snd septic (f any). This can be oblained from the
Butlding Department or Assessar’s office or neatly havid drawn by the applicant.

5. Reduced Map (11 x 17— Applications with large maps must supply one that can be scannad in for uss in reports.

6. Qriginal Map Mylar - This map is done by a professional survayor,

7. Map & Data in CAD format on Disk ~ This map Is done by a professional surveyor,

8. Vicinity Map — This map shows surrounding parcels to application parcel. A copy can be obiained from the
assessor's office located on the 1% floor in the Storey Gounty Courthouse,

9. Floor Plan « These are bulding plans for a house (subdivision) and dane by a bullder.
1. Légal Description - Deed -~ Dong by a professional surveyor,
11. Title Report - Done by a professional company.

12, Drainage Report ~ Done by s professional company.

13. Soils Report — Dane by a professional company.
14, Traffic Report — Done by a professional company.
15, Water Rights — You can obtafn this from State Water Department.

16, Raclamation Plan - Done by a professional company.

LED &)

(Proposed text amendment attached to application is located in Exhibit A above.)

Page 26 of 26




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 08/04/15 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ]| Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: {Continued from 06/01/15 meeting) (Agenda Language included in Enclosure A)

2. Recommended motion: (Continue item wntil 10/20/15 board meeting), Based on findings of fact
shown in Subsection 4.1 and the conditions of approval shown in Section 5 of this report,
and conformance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the recommendation for
approval by staff and the planning commission, I (Commissioner) motion to approve
Storey County Zone Map Amendment Application No. 2014-021 modifying the official
zoning map of Storey County to include the Forestry, Natural Resources, Public, and
Industrial-Commercial zones as presented by staff in this report.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: Amendment of the Official Storey County Zoning Map as explained and
recommended in Staff Report No. 2014-021.

S. Supporting materials: Staff Report No. 2014-021 and exhibits provided at the 12/02/14 board
meeting and packet are available at the Planning Department at 775.847.1144,

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: ___ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed, by:
. epartment Head Department Name:
%ty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action: .
' [] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. |




Enclosure A: Agenda Language for Application No. 2014-021

(Continued from 06/01/15 board meeting) Discussion/Possible Action: Application No,
2014-021 by the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC., and Storey County on behalf of The Nature
Conservancy, LLC and the Union Pacific Railroad Company to amend the Official Storey County
Zoning Map. The amendments will apply regulatory zones to approximately 600 acres of land
located in McCarran, Nevada (River District near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) which was in
July of 2014 transferred from Washoe County to Storey County by means of boundary line
adjustment, The subject area is described approximately as portions of: Section 31 and 32,
Township 20 North, Range 22 East; Section 6, Township 19 North, Range 22 East; Section 36,
Township 20 North, Range 21 East; Sections 2 and 11, Township 19 North, Range 21 East; and
Section 1, Township 19 North, Range 21 East, all in the Mount Diablo Baseline and Meridian
(MDB&M). The specific zones and subject properties will be as follows; (a) F Forestry zoning will
be applied to land located at Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APN) 004.161.98, 004.161.99,
004.162.01, and 004.162.02; (b) N-R Natural-Resources zoning will be applied to land located at
APNs 004.161.85, 004.161.86, 004.161.88, and 004.161.96; (c) I-C Industrial-Commercial zoning
will be applied to land located at APNs 005.121.01, 005.121.02, 005.121.03, 005.121.04, and
005.121.05; and (d) P Public will be applied to land located at 004.161.87, 004.161.89,
004.161.90, 004.161.91, 004.161.92, 004.161.93, 004.161.94, 004.161.95, and 004.161.97, all
within the approximate subject area described above. The purpose of the zone map amendment is
to apply zoning to newly acquired land in Storey County that is consistent with surrounding uses
and the Storey County Master Plan. Prior to their transfer into Storey County, the properties were
zoned in Washoe County as Agriculture, Medium Density Rural, Industrial, and Public
Infrastructure. Additional information including, but not limited to, reports and maps may be
obtained from the Planning Department at 775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org.




Storey County

Board of County Commissioners
- Staff Report — Zone Map Amendment

To:
From:
Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Case Number:

Request:

Applicants:

Property Owners:

Staff Contact:

Guiding Documents:

Property Location:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Storey County Planning Department
December 2, 2014

Storey County Courthouse
26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

2014-021

Request for amendment to the Official Storey County Zoning Map
to apply Forestry, Natural Resources, Public, and Industrial zoning
to parcels all located within approximately 600 acres of land
recently transferred from Washoe County to Storey County by
boundary line adjustment.

Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, L1.C; and Storey County on behalf
of The Nature Conservancy, LLC and Union Pacific Railroad
Company.

Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LL.C; The Nature Conservancy,
LLC; and Union Pacific Railroad Company.

Austin Osborne, Planning Director

Storey County Code 17.03 Administrative Provisions; SCC 17.24
Agriculture Zone; 17.32 Forestry Zone; 17.35 Heavy Industrial
Zone; 17.76 Natural Resources Zone; 17.84 Signs and Billboards;
17.92 Mineral Exploration and Mining; Storey County Master
Plan, River District plan and Industrial development plan; Washoe
County Master Plan, Truckee Canyon Area Plan.

The subject area is described approximately as portions of: Section
31 and 32, Township 20 North, Range 22 East; Section 6,
Township 19 North, Range 22 East; Section 36, Township 20
North, Range 21 East; Sections 2 and 11, Township 19 North,
Range 21 East; and Section 1, Township 19 North, Range 21 East,
all in the Mount Diablo Baseline and Meridian (MDB&M).
Specific subject properties are listed in Table 1.1 and Exhibit C.

Page 1 of 32




1. BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

1.1 Site location and characteristics

The properties subject to this request for zone map amendment are located on approximately 580
acres along the Truckee River and Interstate 80 between Mustang and McCarran, Nevada. The
approximate location and placement of each subject parcel is illustrated in Figures 1.1 and 1.2.
McCarran is approximately 12 miles east of Sparks and about halfway between it and Fernley.

In 2003 the Nevada State Legislature enacted Senate Bill 272 which authorized a boundary line
adjustment between Storey County and Washoe County by resolution approved by each county’s
board of commissioners. On June 17, 2014, the Board of Storey County Commissioners passed
Resolution 14-403 approving the adjustment. On the same date, the Board of Washoe County
Comimissioners approved a resolution on the adjustment. The result of these actions was the
transfer 22 parcels and approximately 580 acres from Washoe County to Storey County. The
area of land transfer is described in Table 1.1 and illustrated in Figures 1.1 and 1.2.

I 1004-161-98 | Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 10 | Agricultu Forestry

2 1 004-161-99 | Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 6 | Agriculture Forestry

3 | 004-162-01 | Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 26 | Agriculture Farestry

4 | 005-121-01 | Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 36 Industrial 1IC

5 1 005-121-02 | Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 104 Industrial IC

6 | 005-121-03 | Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 65 Industrial IC

7 | 005-121-04 | Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 3 Industrial IC

8 | 005-121-05 | Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 17 Industrial IC

9 [ 004-162-02 | Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center 55 Rural Forestry
10 | 004-161-85 | The Nature Conservancy 3 Rural Nat Resource
11 | 004-161-86 | The Nature Conservancy 0.23 Rural Nat Resource
12 1 004-161-88 | The Nature Conservancy 47 Rural Nat Resource
13 | 004-161-96 | The Nature Conservancy 59 Rural Nat Resource
14 | 004-161-87 | Union Pacific Railroad 30 | Infrastructure Public

15 1 004-161-89 | Union Pacific Raflroad 48 | Infrastructure Public

16 | 004-161-90 | Union Pacific Railroad 11 | Infrastructure Public

17 | 004-161-91 | Union Pacific Railroad 1 | Infrastructure Public

18 | 004-161-92 | Union Pacific Railroad 7 | Infrastructure Public

19 | 004-161-93 | Union Pacific Railroad 5 { Infrastructure Public

20 | 004-161-94 | Union Pacific Railroad 27 | Infrastructure Public

21 | 004-161-95 | Union Pacific Railroad 5 | Infrastructure Public

22 | 004-161-97 | Union Pacific Railroad 10 | Infrastructure Public

Note: “IC" — Industrial-Commercial (Storey); “Rural” — Medium Density Rural (Washoe)

Page 2 of 32




7€ Jo ¢ 98eg

(TT°1 pue 71| s2an3ig ur soSewn dn-osopd 39s) Sutwoz pasodosd pus torid 0) 35u319)a1 pue digsIoUMO pue - 'y 2andig

3o ML

ALNTRIY ARBGLT

WHNAS IYORLLEOAN ONIR AOHVE
N INBRIACRA RS

¥ AR

X

e

NE]

2 ]

{ AUV ATV ELL O 5 NO DRI Y it




zEJo ¢ 98eq

asew '] N3y Jo (IS9M PUE [BI)UID) 3] WOoZ — [']'T 21051

AR

w b iR

K £




7€ Jo g o8eg

ageunl 1'1 240314 Jo (3sea pue [e43udad) 1431 WoeZ — T'1'T 2andig

SN e e

[ B
b

a8 NDIIEs




R
v

%3

g
(RN

Tan / Tahoe-Reno

M

Industrial Center

-
¥
ol
& g
> =
@ 3
“ e
g
[
=
oo
S o
@ in
[
s @
fn
g E
s 8
D u
[T

"
]
B
=
=
o
L

10n 1S approximate.

ect area highlighted green indicates land transferred from Washoe to Storey County. Informati

j

1.2 — The sub

Figure

Page 6 of 32




1.2 Zoning and master plan considerations

The properties in Washoe County were zoned Industrial, Agricultural, Medium Density Rural,
and Public Infrastructure prior to their transfer into Storey County (Washoe County, Truckee
Canyon Regulatory Zone Map, 2013). The properties, now in Storey County, have not yet been
assigned zoning designations. There are three principal owners involved in the subject
properties: The Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (TRI-Center); The Nature Conservancy,
LLC (Nature Conservancy); and the Union Pacific Railroad Company (Union Pacific).

L3 Application background and requested zoning designations

Planning staff consulted with TRI-Center and the Nature Conservancy in determining
appropriate zoning designations for their subject parcels. Planning staff also contacted
representatives of Union Pacific by telephone and USPS mail. Union Pacific did not express
interest in applying for any zoning designation for its land. However, the company representative
informed staff that it would accept Public zoning for their land, a Storey County zone that is
similar to its prior Washoe County Public Infrastructure zoning. The following describe existing
land uses in and around the subject properties, and zone map amendment proposals for each
group of subject properties.

1.3.1 Land owned by TRI-Center

Parcels 1-9 shown in Table 1.1 — Ownership and Zoning, are owned by TRI-Center. Five of
those parcels were zoned Industrial in Washoe County, three were zoned Agriculture, and one
was zoned Medium Density Rural. TRI Center requested that the five parcels previously zoned
Industrial be classified similarly in Storey County, and that its four remaining parcels previously
zoned Agriculture and Medium Density Rural be zoned Forestry.

Preceding its request for zone map amendment, TRI-Center applied for an amendment to Storey
County Zoning Ordinance text to create an “I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone”. The I-C zone
allows mixed commercial, light industrial, and heavy industrial uses where deemed appropriate
by the board with recommendation by the planning commission. For the purpose of this report, it
is assumed that the I-C zone is adopted prior to this zone map amendment request.

TRI-Center described to planning staff its subject property along portions of the Interstate 80
corridor as ideal for mixed-use commercial-industrial zoning, Planning staff finds this interstate
frontage appropriate for I-C zoning. It also finds the I-C zone to be consistent with the prior
zoning designation and area uses in both Storey and Washoe Counties (see compatibility in
Section 1.4). Staff recommends that the remaining four parcels mentioned above remain rural
type zoning similar to their previous Agriculture and Medium Density Rural zoning, However,
because there is no known agricultural activity occurring on that land, staff and the property
owner recommend that these parcels are zoned Forestry, Storey County’s closest equivalent and
appropriate zoning classification.

1.3.2  Land owned by Nature Conservancy

Parcels 10-13 shown in Table 1.1 are owned by the Nature Conservancy. The subject land is
located within the floodway and riparian area of the Truckee River. The property owner manages

Page 7 0f 32




|
|
|

the land for the purpose of restoring riparian habitats and improving natural flood storage
capacity of the river. Planning staff and the property owner agree that N-R Natural Resources
zoning designation would be the most appropriate classification for this land. The N-R Zone is
established to promote the preservation of land to conserve and enhance natural and scenic
resources, archeological, and cultural sites, primitive areas, watersheds, and flood-prone areas
from unreasonable impairment. Staff on behalf of the property owner is applying for this zoning
designation.

1.3.3 Land owned by Union Pacific

Parcels 14-22 shown in Table 1.1 are owned by Union Pacific. These parcels make up a narrow
strip of land through entire stretch of the subject area that facilitates the existing Union Pacific
transcontinental railroad. The land was zoned Public infrastructure in Washoe County.

Storey County’s Public zone is the most equivalent zone to Washoe County’s Public
Infrastructure zone, Its purpose is to accommodate a wide-range of public uses including, but not
limited to, “railroads and light rail infrastructure”, and similar uses (SCC 17.15.020.A.12).
Planning staff finds this zoning designation most appropriate for the subject properties. Staff on
behalf of the property owner is applying for this zoning designation.

1.4 Land use compatibility

Table 1.2 Compatibility with Surrounding Land, and Table 1.3 Comparison of Uses, demonstrate
master plan and zoning designations, and allowed uses for each land use zone proposed in the
subject land and surrounding area. Uses shown in the tables are relatively consistent with those
allowed in the previous Washoe County zones, and the current zoning in the surrounding Storey
and Washoe County land. Uses in the proposed zones, particularly the 1-C zone, that may be
found to be incompatible with existing conditions are only allowed with a special use permit. A
special use permit is required for certain heavy intensity uses in the I-C zone that could be
incompatible with each, or incompatible with other uses in the abuiting zones. Board and
planning commission approvals are required for special use permits. Tt is, therefore, found that
these uses have the necessary case-by-case governing body oversight to assure that their
application will cause no zoning or use conflicts with anticipated abutting uses or zones.

Land Use Taster Plan'D ti S Zoning
Applicant's Land Vacant; one historic single- Light and heavy industrial; riparian | Formerly rural, industrial,
(TRI-Center; Nature | family structure used as work restoration; agricultural uses. agricultural, and public.
Conservancy; and space for river restoration Currently no Storey County
Union Pacific land) | project; railroad. zoning designation.
Land to Vacant; Truckee River, Light and heavy industrial; riparian | F Forestry
Southwest restoration; agricultural uses.
Land to Vacant; several single-family Light and heavy industrial; riparian | I-2 Heavy Industrial; F
South residential uses; light and heavy | restoration; agricultural uses. Forestry; and A Agriculture

industrial uses; Truckee River,

Land to Vacant; Truckee River Light and heavy industrial; riparian | A Agriculture
central southwest restoration; agricultural uses.
Land to Washoe County; Interstate 80; Industrial, commercial, residential, | Industrial; Commercial;
central northwest light industrial uses. and rural vses. Agriculture; Rural
Land to Washoe County; Interstate 80; Industrial, commercial, residential, | Industrial; Commercial;
Northwest vacarnt. and rural uses. Agriculture; Rural
Land to Washoe County; Interstate §0; Industrial, commercial, residential, | Industrial; Commercial;
North light industrial uses; mining. angd rural uses. Agriculture; Rural

Page 8 of 32




Land to Washoe County; Interstate 80; Industrial, commercial, residential, | Industrial; Commercial;
Northeast vacant; light industrial uses. and rural uses. Apriculture; Rural
Land to Light and heavy industrial uses Light and heavy industrial uses. I-2 Heavy Industrial
East (Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center)

‘Washoe County ~
Industrial, commercial, and medium-
deusity rural use designations

Interstate 80

A .
Figure 1.3: Current Storey County

R it

zoning designations (excluding the subject land).

T

RTTEIR,
e
ans?®

b

BT 7  — -

Figure 1.4: The previous Washoe County zoning designations and land use patterns are
conststent with the proposed zoning. Red outlines the subject land.

Page 9 of 32




1 | River/riparian restoration X* X* X*
2 | Agriculture X X* X X*
3 | Residential X* X X*
4 | Home occupation X X*

business
5 | Retail X x
6 | Commercial offices X X
7 | Personal services X X
8 | Boarding (motels, hotels) X X* X
9 | Tourism/visitor X X* X X
10 | Government uses X X* X X
11 | Automotive related X X
12 | Transit infrastructure X X* X X
13 | Mining X* X*
14 | Mine processing X* X X
15 | Non-renewable energy X* X*
16 | Renewable energy X* X*
17 | Permanent concrete plant X* X*
18 | Schoois and higher ed. X X* X X
19 | Education instifution X* X* X
20 | Heavy manufacturing X
21 | Craftsman industry X X
22 | Laboratory/research X* X* X X
23 | Warchousing X X
24 | Chemical manufacturing X*
25 | Petroleum uses X*
26 | Truck stop X X
27 | Solid waste recycling X* X
28 | Solid waste landfill X*
29 | Explosives and hazmat X*
30 | Saw mills X*
31 | Hazardous recycling X
32 | Tattoo parlors X* X*
33 | Billboards X* X* X* X*
34 | RV Parks xX* X
35 | Agriculture youth rehab X¥*
37 | Sewage treatment X X*
38 | Public infrastructure X X* X X* X X

Uses shown above are categorized into gemeral use categories; see Storvey County Code

Chapters 17.24, 17.32, 17.35, 17.76, and 17.84 for specific uses in each zone.

*Asterisks indicate uses requiring a special use permit.

Page 10 of 32




Height

A —35° or 3 stories

F - 35 or 3 stories

P — 45’ or 3 stories

I-2 — 50’ or 6 stories

I-C — 120° or 10 stories

2 | Setback distances

A — Same as abutting zone, but not less than 10 for residential and 20° for boarding

F— 30" front, 40" rear, 15° side

P — same as abutting zones (F= 40’; A= 50; [-2= 50°; P= n/a; I-C= 50")

-2 =50

I-C - heavy industry, 50°; light industry, 20°; commercial, 20’ front, 10’ rear

3 | Minimum parcel area / use density

A =3 acres

F —40 acres

P — no minimum

1-2 — 3 acres

I-C ~ heavy industry, 3 acres; light industry, % acre; commercial, 10,000 square-feet

2. General Compliance with Guiding Documents

2.1 Master Plan

Chapter 3.2 of the Storey County Master Plan (1994} states that considerable development has
occurred in the River District over the years and that development is expected to continue. It
recommends that planning official “give serious consideration to development and zoning for an
industrial park in the [River District] area” (pp. 19-20). Attracting additional businesses;
diversification to the county’s economy; broadening the county’s tax base; enhancing efficiency
of water, sewer, and other utility service; and managing growth are described benefits to
developing and improving a consolidated industrial development. The master plan also states
that protecting the Truckee River and its riparian area should be a priority when considering uses
in the River District.

A significant portion of the area subject to this request for zoning map amendment abuts existing
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center land and is, therefore, contiguous to I-2 Heavy Industrial Zoning,
It also abuts or is in immediate proximity to existing infrastructure including, but not limited to,
Interstate 80; the Patrick interchange that connects Interstate 80 to TRI-Center’s second primary
arterial route, Waltham Way; the Union Pacific transcontinental railroad; municipal sewer and
water services; power generation and distribution systems; and high-pressure natural gas. The
southern portion of the subject area abuts the Truckee River and its riparian area.

Staff finds that the proposed 1-C zone is ideal for this location because it allows a mixture of
certain commercial and industrial uses that are tailor-fitted to a transportation orientated

Page 11 of 32




environment such as the interstate corridor. Staff also finds that alignment of the proposed F and
N-R zones provides sufficient natural buffering between uses allowed in the [-C zone and the
adjacent Truckee River and its riparian area. As such, the proposed zoning designation conforms
to the following goals and objectives of the county master plan:

2.2

Chapter 3 Economy — Goal 1, enhance diversification of economic opportunities within
the county; Goal 1, Objective 1.1: develop and adopt standards for industrial park
development before a large project is proposed.

Chapter 5 Conservation and Natural Resources — Goal 2, protect the quality of present
and future water resources; Goal 4, regulate the use of open-range and watershed areas to
minimize fire danger and prevent degradation; Goal 4, Objective 4.1, assist property
owners and interested groups in controlling grazing and public use of critical watershed
and riparian areas.

Chapter 9 Land Use — Goal 1: maintain a healthy environment for all residents of the
county; Goal 1, Objective 1.1: ensure that land use permit decisions are compatible with
the zoning map, master plan, and previous planning decisions; Goal 4: preserve existing
agricultural areas; Goal 4, objective 4.1: through zoning regulations, direct non-
agricultural development to non-agricultural areas.

Section River District — Goal 4, Objective 4.1: coordinate land uses on the south side
(Storey County} of the Truckee River with developments on the north side (Washoe
County) of the river and visa-versa; Goal 5: design zoning districts to allow for a mix in
land use development; Goal 5, Objective 5.1: consider zoning the Tracy-Clark and the
surrounding area for industrial use.

Zoning Ordinance (SCC Title 17)

SCC Section 17.03.220 Zone Map Amendments and Zone Text Amendments states:

Before a zone map amendment may be recommended for approval, the applicant must

provide evidence to the board and the planning commission concerning the physical use
of the land and zoning currently existing in the general vicinity, and which have
occurred in the previous five-year time period, and describe: (a) how the proposal will
impact the immediate vicinity; (b) how the proposal supports the goals, objectives, and

recommendations of the master plan concerning land use and related policies for the
neighborhood where the subject parcel is situated; (c) if the proposed amendment will

impact properties within the use district; and (d) any impacts on public services and
facilities, and availability of water resources.

The collaborative efforts between staff and the property owners in determining the
appropriate zoning designations for the subject properties conforms to and exceeds the
requirements of SCC 17.03.220. The zoning designations and uses allowed therein also
conform to the master plan and do not conflict with the provisions of the zoning ordinance.

Page 12 of 32




3. Public Comment

3.1 Public comments regarding proposal

Staff has received no public comment for this application request,

4. Findings
4.1 Motion for approval

The following are found regarding the zone map amendment under the recommended conditions
of approval shown in Section 5. A motion for approval should include at a minimum these
findings and may include other findings deemed appropriate and factual by the body.

4.1.1 The proposed zone map amendment complies with federal, Nevada State, and Storey
County regulations.

4.1.2 The proposed zone map amendment will impose no substantial adverse impacts or safety
hazards on the abutting properties.

4.1.3 The conditions of approval for the zone map amendment do not conflict with the
minimum requirements of SCC Chapters 17.03 Administrative Provisions for zone map
amendments and zone text amendments; or the purpose and intent of SCC 17.15 Public zone,
17.32 Forestry zone, 17.39 Industrial-Commercial zone, 17.76 Natural Resources zone, and
17.84 Signs and Billboards regulations, as applicable.

4.1.4 The uses allowed by the new zones do not appear to cause substantial adverse impacts to
the uses allowed in the abutting zones.

4.1.5 The proposed zone map amendment is in substantial compliance with and supports the
goals, objectives, and recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan.

4.1.6 The proposed zone map amendments will provide for land uses compatible with existing
adjacent land uses and will not have detrimental impacts to other properties in the vicinity.

4.1.7 The proposed zone map amendment will not cause uses that will negatively impact
existing or planned public facilities and will not adversely impact the public health, safety,
and welfare,

4.1.8 The proposed zone map amendment will not create any non-conforming conditions,
such as non-conforming setback distances or minimum parcel area and width requirements.

Page 13 of 32




4,2 Motion for denial

Should a motion be made to deny the zone map amendment application, the following findings
with an explanation of the motion for denial should be included in that motion.

4.2.1 Substantial evidence suggests that the zone map amendment will conflict with the
minimum requirements of SCC Chapters 17.03 Administrative Provisions for zone map
amendments and zone text amendments; or the purpose and intent of SCC 17.15 Public zone,
17.32 Forestry zone, 17.39 Industrial-Commercial zone, 17.76 Natural Resources zone, and
17.84 Signs and Billboards regulations, as applicable.

4.2.2 The conditions of approval under the zone map amendment do not adequately mitigate
potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential safety hazards for
surrounding uses.

4.2.3 No reasonable level of conditions of approval imposed on this one map amendment
would be sufficient to reasonably mitigate visual, safety, or other potential impacts on
adjacent and surrounding residences and land uses.

4.2.4 The proposed zone map amendment will not provide for land uses compatible with
existing adjacent land uses and will have detrimental impacts to other properties in the
vicinity.

4.2.5 The proposed zone map amendment will negatively impact existing or planned public
services or facilities and will adversely impact the public health, safety, and welfare.

5. Conditions of Approval

All of the following conditions must be met to the satisfaction of the applicable County
Department, unless otherwise stated.

5.1 Official zoning map requirements

The Official Storey County Zoning Map must be amended to depict the zone map amendment
approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners (Board) with recommendation by the
planning commission. The Official Storey County Zoning Map must be identified by the
signature of the chairman of the Board aftested by the Storey County Clerk under the following
words: “This is to certified that this is the Official Zoning Map of Storey County referred to in
Section 17.08.040 of the Zoning Ordinance of Storey County, Nevada” together with the date of
adoption.

5.2 Changes made promptly

The changes approved by the Board with recommendation by the planning commission must be
entered by the Planning Department on the Official Storey County Zoning Map (and the
applicable area zoning maps) promptly as reasonable after the amendment has been approved,
with the entry indicating the ordinance number and date adopted. Regardless of the existence of
the purported copies of the Official Storey County Zoning Map and the applicable Area Zoning
Map which may periodically be made or published, the Official Storey County Zoning Map and
Area Zoning Maps shall be kept in the Office of the Storey County Recorder. The Storey County

Page 14 of 32




Recorder shall be the final authority as to the current zoning status of the land and water area,
buildings, and other structures in the county.

53 Copies of official zoning map

Signed and sealed copies of the Official Storey County Zoning Map and Area Zoning Maps must
be available for public viewing at the Offices of the Storey County Clerk and Storey County
Recorder.

5.4  General requirements

The zone map amendment must comply with and remain in conformance with all provisions set
forth by this zone map amendment and all applicable federal, Nevada State, and Storey County
codes and regulations.

6. Powers of the Board and Planning Commission

The Board of County Commissioners has the power to make planning and zoning decisions for
Storey County and has created the planning commission to advise the Board as provided in Title
2 of the Storey County Code (“SCC”) and NRS 278 and 278A. The Planning Commission must
perform all duties and functions delegated to a county planning commission by the terms of NRS
278.010 to 278.630, inclusive, and SCC Chapter 2.12 (Planning Commission). The planning
commission is advisory to the Board., The Planning Commission must hear applications on
special use permits, variances, and appeals of administrative decisions, changes to the county
master plan, zoning districts, amendments to SCC Title 18, and all other appropriate subjects and
make recommendations to the Board. After considering the Planning Commission’s
recommendation, the Board by majority vote may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the
application, or return the recommendation to the Planning Commission for further consideration.

7.  Planning Commission Action

At its November 13, 2014, hearing, the planning commission heard testimony from the applicant
(Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center representing itself, and planning staff representing Nature
Conservancy and Union Pacific). Planning staff on behalf of the applicants and the county
provided textual information, maps, and aerial visuals showing the land, as well as past, current,
and proposed zoning conditions. Discussion at the meeting included environmental and safety
compatibility concerns; access and traffic impacts for several allowed uses in the proposed I-C
zone; zoning and use entitlements; existing uses in and around the subject land in Storey and
Washoe Counties; and overall benefits and impacts that the proposed zones may have on the
area. There was no public comment for or against the proposal. Planning staff stated that the
proposed zoning was consistent with the master plan and current zoning, and that the proposed
zones in their proposed configuration were consistent with the surrounding environment,
including existing uses and the Truckee River. Staff read into the records its recommended
findings to be included with a motion for approval. Members of the planning commission who
were present voted unanimously (4 votes with 4 planning commissioners present) to approve the
zone map amendment in accordance with stated findings and as recommended by staff.

Page 15 of 32




8. Proposed Motions

This section contains three motions from which to choose. Motion 1 for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with findings under Subsection 4.1; those findings should
be made part of that motion. Motion 2 for approval, as an alternative, may be made in
accordance with findings under Subsections 4.1 and/or 4.2; those findings should be made part of
that motion. Motion 3 for denial may be made and that motion should cite one or more of the
findings shown in Subsection 4.2. Other findings of fact determined appropriate by the body
should be made part of their motion.

Motion 1 — Recommended motion (approval)

Based on findings of fact shown in Subsection 4.1 and the conditions of approval shown in
Section 5 of this report, and conformance with federal, state, and county regulations, and the
recommendation for approval by staff, I (commissioner) motion to approve Storey County Zone
Map Amendment Application No. 2014-021 modifying the official zoning map of Storey County
to include the Forestry, Natural Resources, Public, and Industrial-Commercial zones as presented
by staff in this report.

Summary: Approve zone map amendments as proposed

Motion 2 — Alternative motion (approval)

Based on findings of fact shown in Subsection 4.1 and/or 4.2 and the conditions of approval
shown in Section 5 of this report, and conformance with federal, state, and county regulations,
but against the recommendation for approval by staff, I (commissioner) motion to approve
Storey County Zone Map Amendment Application No. 2014-021 modifying the official zoning

map of Storey County to include the (describe zones or parcels) as presented
by staff, but to deny the (describe zones or parcels) as presented by staff in
this report.

Summary: Approve __x__ zones and deny x_ zowes

Motion 3 — Alternative motion (denial)

Based on findings of fact shown in Subsection 4.2 of this staff report and/or other findings
deemed appropriate by the planning commission, and against the recommendation of staff, I
{commissioner) motion to deny Storey County Zone Map Amendment Application No, 2014-021
modifying the official zoning map of Storey County as presented in this report. This is a denial
of all proposed zoning designations,

Summary: Deny all zone map amendments

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Planning Director
Enclosures:
Exhibit A: Letter and map submitted by applicants.
Exhibit B: Legal description (posting) of the subject area and properties
Exhibit C: Uses allowed in the I-C zone

Page 16 of 32




Exhibit A: Application No. 2014-021 (Zone Map Amendment)
The following application includes a request for both a zone text and zone map amendments. For
zone text amendment applicability, refer to Application and Staff Report No. 2014-020.

Storey County Planning Department

26 South "8 Street, P.Q. Box 175, Virginia City, NV 82440
Phone; (775) 847-1144 Fax: (775) B47-004%
planning@storeycounty.org

Development Application

Bubmit this compleled application and ai Sttachments aloeyg with the application fee {sae pags two for typs of
anplication and fees) ot jeast 30 days prior to the mesting you wish to have your request scheduled, The application |
will not i}a aucepted unless complete, Including sitachmants {apwwiwiﬂ by notifled within 15 days If applcation &
ard what le siff required). The aprlicaion foo iz non-efindable, PMaase make checks payable to
Starey County Planning Development. )

Frojact Mumbar,

T T e mest B FAE o T TeGRobam, Tome o A ity 31 Eiweks o Soipd T,
efo Robert M. Sader, B600 Technology Way, Saite 101

Maillng Address:
City: Reno suate;, zZip_89521

Telephons (Home) { ) N/A Busingss ( 775 ) 329-8310

Applicant;___SAME

AF ApEiRarit e bt et e e wepdieptisn,
Mailing Address; SAME

Citys State: Zipe,

Talephone (Hame) { } Businoss { )

CiGoid Hil virginia City [Jve H[thaﬂd‘.i [ Jsighiand Ranches [ Virginta Ranches
1 acre) {10 mres) {40 seren)

[(Mark Twain [Hafed Dltoskwoos [TPainted Rock M Cltsther

Pmﬁect Address: Waltham Way and 80

Assesgor's Parcel Numbers (APN).__ € 1 ] P L) %, £l
Lat; N/A Biook:, W A Asreana;

319.852

1of'8

Page 17 of 32




Application Fee

7

- ApplicationType.

~ Application Fee
Wz '

_ $200.00 Amended Map f

[ Condition nla {_] Boundary Line $250.00 + 25.00 per lot
Amendment . Adjustment _
] Develocpment 51,000.00 1| Extension of Time | 50% of Original Fee
Agresment (Requires a Request (One Year
Special Use Permit) _ Extension Only)
[Itand Division Map | $500.00 + 350.00 per | [_] Lot Consolidation nfa
{40 acre minimum) lot
T Master Plan Map $2,800.00 18 Master Plan Text | $800.00
Amendment Amendment
L Natural Resources | $65.00 per hour [ Street Nams nia
Exploration and Request
Registration _ 5

Parcel Map — $250.00 + 25.00 per ot | [_] Parcel Map Final ]

| Record of Survey
[T Pianned Unit $500.0C ¥ 1.00 periot | ] Pranned Unit $200.00 + 25.00 per lot
Davelopment {PUD) - Devetopment - Final
Tentative )
] *Special Use Permit | $250.00 I_] *Special Use Permit | $450.00
— Minor - Routine _
") *Speclal Use Permit | $750.00 {_] *Special Use Permit | $2,500.00
- WMajor - Major Industrial
"} Subdivision fMap - | $500.00 + 1.00 perfot | [_] Subdlvision Map - | $200.00 + 25.00 per lot
Tentafive Final -
{_I Variance - n/a L Varlance $100.00
Administrative )
{1 Wireless {_} Wireless nia
Communication Facility Communication
Fadcility, Modification

1] Zoning Map Changs | $1,000.60 ¥zl Zonhing Text Change | hfa

Note: Additional fees to cover cosls acerue by the county in association with the application, including
staff time and consultation with outside legal and professional council may be charged to the
applicant, No addltional fees will be charged without expressed written permission by the applicant.

(<

Applicants inltials

*If you are applying for a Special Use Permit, please refer also to the Storey County Speclal Use
Pamit Definitions List when determining a minor, major, routine or major Industrial permit,

2ot

Page 18 of 32




Sterey Cianty Development Applicilion

Detail Description/Justification of Project
Attached addional pages 8s necassary

SEE ATTACHED

loi'g

Page 19 of 32




INTUSTIFYCATION OF

INTRODUCTION

This application requests an amendment to the $torey County Master Plan text, a
zoning map change, and roning text change for real property (the “Property™) owned by
Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (“TRI™ which was formerly in Washee County but
now has been moved by a boundary line adjustrment to Storey County. The Property
came to Storey County withowt master plan or zoning designations. The legal description
of the Property is attachext to this application, including a map of the parcels.

There are nine {9) parcels subject 1o this application. Their location can generally
be described as south of 1-80, north of Truckee River, west of Tracy Power Plant and east
of Mustang.

BACKGROUND

The 2013 Nevada State Legistature enacted Senate Bill 272, which authorized a
boundary line adjustment between Washoe County and Storey County under Sections 1.5
and 3(3) of that act by resolutions approved by each county’s board of commissioners.
On June 17, 2014 the Board of Commissioners of Storey County passed Resolution 14-
403 approving the adjustment. On the same date the Bourd of County Commissionrers of
Washeoe County approved a resolution on the same adjustment.

The result of these actions was to transfer cighteen (18} parcels from Washoe
County to Storey Connty, Nine (9) of those parcels are owned by TR and age subject to
this application.

TRI is the master developer of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (“Center”). The
cument northwestern boundary of the Center i3 separated from the Property by the
Truckee River. 1t is u logical sxtension of the Center for TRI o develop a portion of the
Property as a parl of the Center,

The basic entitlement for the Center is the Development Agreement dated
February 1, 2000 between TRI and Storey County. The Center [s provided water and
sewer service by TRI General Inyrovement District (“TRIGID™). Applications to amnex
the Property to the Development Agreement are being made concurrently with this
application. An application to expand the service territory of TRIGID will be made to the
Trustees upon approvat of the Development Agreement annexation.

The zoning for the Center is I-2 Heavy Industrial (1999 Storey County Zoning

Code edition), which allows light industrial zoning uses and also allows commercial
zoming uses on 10% of the land, This spplication seeks to add a portion of the Property

Page 20 of 32




OREY CO DEVELOPMENT APPLICATOIN
TAIL DESCRIPTIONAUSTIFICATION JECT

INTRODUCTION

This application requests an mmendment to the Storey County Master Plan text, a
zoning map change, and zoning text change for real propery {the “Property™) owned by
Tahoo-Reno Industrial Center, LLC (“TRI™} which was formerly in Washoe County but
now has been moved by a boundary line adjustment 1o Storey County. The Property
came to Storey County withowt master plan or zoning designations, The legal deseription
of the Property is attached to this application, including a map of the parcels.

There are nine (9) parcels subject {o this application. Their location can generally
be described as south of I-80, notth of Truckee River, west of Tracy Power Plant and east
of Mustang.

BACKGROUND

The 2013 Nevada State Legislature enacted Senate Bill 272, which authorized &
bonndary line sdiustment between Washoe County and Storey County under Sections 1.3
and 3(3) of that act by resolutions approved by sach cowmy’s board of comunissioners.
On June 17, 2014 the Board of Commissioners of Storey County passed Resohntion 14-
403 approving the adjustment. On the same date the Board of County Commissioners of
Washoe County approved a resclution on the same adjustenent,

The result of these actions was to transfer eighteen (18) parcels from Washoe
County to Storey County, Nine (9) of those parcels are owned by TRI and are subject to
this application.

TRI s the master developer of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (“Center”). The
current northwestern boundary of the Center is separated from the Property by the
Trackee River. It is a logical extension of the Center for TRI to develop a portion of the
Property as a part of the Center,

The basic entitfernent for the Center is the Devclopment Agreement dated
February |, 2000 between TRI and Storey County. The Center is pravided water and
sewer service by TRI General Improvement Distriet (“TRIGID™). Applications 1o annex
the Property to the Development Agreement ate being made concurrently with this
application. An application to expand the service territory of TRIGID will be mads to the
Trustees upon approval of the Development Agresment annexation.

The zoning for the Center is [-2 Heavy Industrial (1999 Storey Counly Zoning

Caode edition), which allows light industrial zoning uses and also allows commmercial
zoning uses on 10% of the land, This application seeks to add a portion of the Property

Page 21 of 32




Storey Cousty Development Application

Professional Consultant/Representative(s}

Nams; Robert H. Sader _
Address: 8600 Tectmolopy Way, Suite 101

City: Beno, State; Nevada Zip_ 89521
Phone: A7) SedmaIly Emaiirmsadex@robertmsaderltd.com Gell: NfA
Applicant's Affidavit:
N /A , being duly sworm, depose and say hat | am the applicant of the described
{Friniad neme)

project andfor request, and all the siatements and ahswers herein contalined and the informatlon harewith submitied are in
all rezpacts complele, true and correct to the best of my knowledge and balief, | understand that no assurance or guarantoe
can be given by mambers of the Sterey County Planning Department Staff.

Eignaiura of ARpNcant Dato

State of Nevada,
County of Slorey

Slgred and swomn to bafore me on by,

Holerye Signatura

My Commisslon Explres

Property Owner's Affidavit;

{, Tahoe-Reno Induatrial, LIG baing duly swars, depose and say that | am an owner* In fee of the described

. (Frintad name}
propery nvolved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filfing of this appdication, and that the
statements and anawers hersin contalned and the information herewith submified are In al respecis complets, frue and
catrect to the hest of my knowledge and ballef, § undarstand that no assdrance or guarantes can be given by members of

theSloray County Planning Deparimant Staff,
m}fﬂ. Q\_Aﬁl/‘ Date fc/é__/llf

= t M. Sader, Lepgal Counsel
Steta of Nevada, e
County of Sheey. Washoe . - —

TINA FORD
Signed and sworn to before me on by, NOTARY PUBLIC
ﬁ'ing OF NEVADA
2 L KO, 007630
Kobyrt M. Sader , AT B re o

HNeterye Signatore

y )

\LuNFrA_

40t8

Page 22 of 32




Swrey Connty Develepment Apphieation

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REGQUIREMENTS

Submittal Requirements

Application Type

Detailed
PesciptionfJustification
Origlnal Map Pylar
Map & Data in GAD
Formet on Disk

Floor Pan

Titie Report

{rainage Report

Solls Report

Traffic Report

Water Rights
Redamation Plan
Addittonal Information —

Department

s| Pald Tax Receipt

Abandonment

® 1| Lagal Description - Deed

» | % | Reduced Map (11x 17)

» | x| Plot Plan

Amended Map

Condition Amendmanl

*
>
X
P

Boundary Line Adjustmant

Development Agreemont
(Requiras Spacial Use Permit)

<
>
»
x
»
-
b
#
x
>
>

Extansion of Time Request {Ons
Year Extension Only)

Land Division Map {40 acre
rrinimum

Page 23 of 32

HKiXI XM |

Lot Consalidation”

2ix] m | om | o | velse]| | m| Vidinity Map

Master Plan Map Amendment

Master Plan Text Amendmeant

Natural Resourcas Exploration
and Registration Review

o xin| 3¢ ode | ® ||| Developraent Application
R RN R R L

=
*®
*
ko

Parce! Map ~ Recerd of Survey

b
b
»
»
»
>
0

Parcel Map X

Planned Unit Developrant, X
Tentative

o
=
»
»
w
»
>
x
bod
=
»
o

OO0 o oo o) U 0000Cx

Planned Unit Developmeant, Final X | X X[ X X XX

vl e iaiml oae I 3ngd o | o | o | e[ ael | Check with Planning

*Administratiee ot on.swomammms procedure
Note: Additional information and materials may be required with the application.

Sof s



Storey County Development dpplication

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

Submittal Requirements

Application ._.uvu

Criginal Map Mytar

Map & Data In CAD
Format on Disk

Yiciniy Map

Floor Plan

|egal Description - Deed

Detalled
| Descrption/Justification

'F’aid Tax Recaipt
Drainage Report

Tilte Report

Reaclamation Plan
Additlonal Information —

Soils Report
Traffic Report
Water Rights
Dapartment

Spedial Use Penmit - Minor

Spedal Use Pemmit - Routine

Spedal Use Penmit — Major

| ] Reduced Map (11 x17)

LR AR

Special Use Parmlt —
Mator Indusivial

Street Name Ragquest

MEM | M| | w | w

Bubdivision Map - Tentative

»
»

Page 24 of 32

Wiw|mbom | || x| Flot Plan

Subdivision Map - Final

¥
b4
>
”

Variance - Administrative

Veastance

Wireless Communication
Facifity

Wireless Communication
Facility, Modiflcation

IR B BEIR.
x

Zaning Map Change

Zoning Text Change

Other

Hipise] 2} ow | xix (x| K |x|x| =] Devalopment Application

giono|o|0daoo 8ig|0ga
x| w [ | se]me| x| mixIx|x
>

MMM KX
ME R[] M
”

X

a (e |ne] m | 3 ||| v || x| 3| x|x! Check with Planning

Mcte: Additional information and materlals may be required with the application.




Exhibit B: Legal description of subject area and properties (public posting)

PUBLIC NOTICE OF MEETING FOR ZONE MAP AMENDMENT
Storey County Planning Commission and Board of County Commissioners Meetings
The Storey County Planning Commission will hold a public meeting on November 13, 2014, at
6:00 p.m. and the Board of Storey County Commissioners will hold a public meeting on
December 2, 2014, at 10:00 a.m. at the Storey County Courthouse, District Courtroom, 26 South
“B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada. The meetings will include discussion and possible action of
an amendment to the Official Storey County Zoning Map.

The amendments will apply regulatory zones to approximately 600 acres of land located in
McCarran, Nevada (River District near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center) which was in July of
2014 transferred from Washoe County to Storey County by means of boundary line adjustment.

The subject area is described approximately as portions of: Section 31 and 32, Township 20
North, Range 22 East; Section 6, Township 19 North, Range 22 East; Section 36, Township 20
North, Range 21 East; Sections 2 and 11, Township 19 North, Range 21 East; and Section 1,
Township 19 North, Range 21 East, all in the Mount Diablo Baseline and Meridian (MDB&M).

The specific zones and subject properties will be as follows: (a} F Forestry zoning will be applied
to land located at Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 004.161.98; (b) N-R Natural-Resources
zoning will be applied to land located at APNs 004.161.85, 004.161.86, 004.161.88, and
004.161.96; (¢} I[-C Industrial-Commercial zoning will be applied to land located at APNs
004.161.99, 004.162.01, 005.121.01, 005.121.02, 005.121.03, 005.121.04, 005.121.05, and
004.162.02; and (d) P Public will be applied to land located at 004.161.87, 004.161.89,
004.161.90, 004.161.91, 004.161.92, 004.161.93, 004.161.94, 004.161.95, and 004.161.97, all
within the approximate subject area described above.

The purpose of the zone map amendment is to apply zoning to newly acquired land in Storey
County that is consistent with surrounding uses and the Storey County Master Plan. Prior to their
transfer into Storey County, the properties were zoned in Washoe County as Agriculture,
Medium Density Rural, Industrial, and Public Infrastructure.

In addition to provisions of the NRS, any owner of land within or adjacent to the proposed zone
map amendment may complete and return to the board or planning commission a statement
indicating his or her approval or opposition to the proposed amendment. Additional information
including, but not limited to, reports and maps may be obtained from the Planning Department at
775.847.1144 or planning@storeycounty.org.

Lyndi Renaud

Sitting Secretary, Planning Commission
Storey County, Nevada

Date of publication: 10/31/14

Page 25 of 32




Exhibit C: Uses allowed in the I-C zone
(see 17.39 I-C zowe for full zoning chapter)

Sections:

17.39.010
17.39.015
17.39.020
17.39.030
17.39.040
17.39.650
17.39.070
17.39.080

Chapter 17.39
I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone

Applicability.

Purpose and Intent

Allowed Uses

Uses Subject to Special Use Permit

Height and Width of Buildings and Structure
Minimum Parcel Area

Loading Area

Setback Requirements

17.39.01¢ Applicability

The provisions of this chapter apply to the I-C Industrial-Commercial Zone. Uses in the C Commercial
Zone are regulated by chapter 17.28 C Commercial Zone and uses in the CR Commercial-Residential
zone are regulated by chapter 17.30 Commercial-Residential zone.

17.39.015 Purpose and Intent

The purpose of the I-C Industrial-Commercial zone is to provide areas with the county where certain
industrial and commercial uses and activities may be established and maintained together to promote
efficiency, ensure compatibility, and provide for mixed non-residential uses. It facilitates a heavy
commercial and light industrial mixed-use environment that may be well-suited near principal traffic
arterials, such as the Interstate 80 corridor, and industrial development with which the allowed uses are
compatible. It is not intended for residential areas or general neighborhood commercial areas, such as
Gold Hill, Virginia City, Lockwood, or other such residential communities where C Commercial or CR
Commercial Residential zoning may be more appropriate.

17.39.020 Allowed Uses
The commercial, light industrial, and heavy industrial uses listed in this section are allowed in the I-C

Industrial-Commercial Zone.

A, Commercial uses including:

1. Retail sales and shopping centers including:

.

b.

C.

General stores, shopping centers, convenience stores, principal grocery stores,
neighborhood stores and shopping centers, regional stores and shopping centers, and super
regional stores and shopping centers.

Seasonal holiday sales and uses.

Seasonal farmers markets.

2. Commercial offices and financial institutions:

a.

Real-estate permanent office, banks and credit unions, accountants, insurance,
employment agencies, consulting firms, manufacturer representatives, newspapers,
secretatial services, associations and other similar office uses and activities.

Page 26 of 32




b.
c.

d.

Butiiding maintenance and services.
Business and professional offices and buildings.

Convention and meeting facilities.

3. Personal services:

C.

d.

Barbers, hair stylists, beauticians, manicurists/pedicurists, spas, salons, tailors, massage
establishments, and similar type uses.

Wedding chapels and travel agencies.
Childcare of any number of children,

Laundromats, personal dry cleaning, and laundry services.

4. Boarding accommodations including hotels, motels, hostels, bed and breakfast inns, timeshares,
and vacation rentals.

5. Tourist and visitor services:

d.

Eating and drinking establishments such as restaurants, cafes, drive-in diners, fast-food,
coffee shops and coffee houses, soda-fountains, saloons and taverns, and micro-breweries
with on-site and off-site sales.

Entertainment and casual education services such as docents, guided tours on foot, gold
panning, and museums.

Equestrian facilities and uses including riding arenas, stables, horse and pony rides, and
carriage and stagecoach rides.

Theaters.

6. Recreation. Bowling lanes, billiard parlors and pool halls, arcades, gaming (when incidental to a
primary use and limited to no more than 15 slot and/or video machines), golf driving ranges,
miniature golf, country clubs, health clubs and personal fitness gyms, swimming pools and
saunas, tennis courts, permanent indoor and seasonal outdoor roller and ice skating rinks and
facilities, seasonal or temporary outdoor theatres, and other similar recreational uses and
activities,

7. Civic uses:

Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sheriff,

Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services.

Crisis care use uses and facilities, permanent.

Libraries and cultural services, governmental offices, post offices, community centers, and

courts of law.

Page 27 of 32




e. Education including elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and academies, colleges
and higher education, technical and vocational education, apprentice training, whether
public, private, or parochial, A special use permit is required for education institutions and
academies that include student residential accommodations.

f, Highway rest areas, picnicking areas, parks and playgrounds, dog parks, walking and
bicycle trails, interpretive trails, restroom facilities, and information kiosks.

g. Parking lots and structures, park-and-rides and carpool transfer centers, multi-modal
transit hubs, parking garages and storage, railroad and light rail infrastructures, train
tunnels, and railroad switchyards and turntables,

h. Indoor and outdoor veterinarian services and shelters for large and small animals.

8. General services:

a. Catering, equipment and appliance repair, gun repair, general contractors offices, heavy
and light equipment rental, feed and tack stores, manufactured home sales and service,
pawn brokers, pet sales and grooming, print shops, upholstery shops, video rentals, and
other similar general services uses and activities.

b. Uses involving indoor archery and indoor discharge of firearms.

9. Congregational establishments including religious institutions, fraternal lodges, recreational and
social clubs, labor halls, service clubs and facilities for other private ¢lubs,

10. Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the permitted uses.
Uses also include community gardens.

11. Casinos and gaming establishments of more than 5,000 square feet of total floor area where slots
and/or video machines are located, where there are more than 15 slots and/or video machines,

and where other forms of gambling such as poker, craps, blackjack, keno, sports book and other
similar activities may take place.

12. Public utility service yards, buildings, electric substations, gas transmission substations, and
ancillary uses.

13. Recreational vehicle (RV) parks.

14, Mini-warehouses and storage facilities for rent including recreational vehicle, boat, utility trailer,
horse trailer, and similar equipment storage.

15. Open-air markets, flea-markets, farmers markets, and the display, sale, barter, or trade of items
associated with a business outside of a permanent building.

16. Race tracks and arenas involving the use of automobiles, trucks, tractors, and other motorized
vehicles.

17. Radio-controlled (RC) cars, vehicles, watercraft, and aircraft facilities and uses.

8. Signs as regulated by chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

Page 28 of 32




19. Automobile paint shops and body repair shops.

20. Accessory use, buildings and structures if they are clearly incidental to a permitted use, placed

21

upon the same lot or parcel with a permitted use, and in conformance with section 17.12.048.

. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be consistent with the uses

permitted within the zone,

B. Light industrial uses including the following:

1.

10.

L1

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Limited indoor manufacturing and assembly involving the production process that uses already
manufactured components to assemble, print, or package a product such as cloth, paper, plastic,
leather, wood, glass, stones, or computer and electronic parts.

. Contractor services, including general contractor offices, contractor service shops, carpet

cleaning, pest control, printing and publishing, and similar uses.

. Agricultural use types including general agricultural uses, agricultural animal production, custom

animal processing, agricultural research, agricultural supplies sales, and agricultural
entertainment and commercial uses.

. Trade and craftsman industries, including furniture and carpentry manufacturing and refining,

upholstery shops, monument works, and similar uses.

. Outdoor storage and maintenance of building materials, vehicles, trailers, and heavy equipment

associated with a commercial building contractor or business when not directly associated with a
construction project on the premises.

. Manufactured home and modular home sales lots,
. Propane sales and storage.

. Firewood sales and storage.

Temporary real-estate tract offices not located within a permanent structure,

Laboratories and testing services. The use of live animals in laboratory, testing, and
experimentation is prohibited.

Building material manufacturing.

Breweries, distilleries, wineries.

Warehouses, warehouse complexes, distribution operations, and wholesale distribution.
Laundromats and personal dry cleaning.

Automotive, truck, and heavy equipment services including washing and detailing (manual
hand-washing, coin-operated, and production line methods), service and fueling stations, repair
(including painting and body repair), sales, and rental.

Truck stops.

Page 29 of 32




17. Solid waste recycling collection center.

18. Solid waste recycling center.

19. Brick, tile or terra cotta products manufacturing.

20. Hunting, fishing, and skiing facilities and lodges, wildlife refuges, and game farms.

21. Sewage treatment plants and facilities and other sewage or sludge processing, treatment, or
storage.

22. Watchman’s dweiling, whether permanent or temporary.

23. Outdoor storage or maintenance of building materials, vehicles, trailers, and heavy equipment
associated with a commercial building contractor or business when not directly associated with a
construction project on the premises.

24. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be consistent with the uses
permitted within the zone.

C. Heavy industrial uses including the following:

1. Manufacturing and assembly involving the production process which uses already manufactured
components to assemble, print, or package a product such as cloth, paper, plastic, leather, wood,
glass, stones, or computer and electronic parts and manufacturing operations involving primary
production of commodity of raw materials, except those listed in section 17.39.030 as requiring
a special use permit.

2. Storage and distribution of paints, shellac, turpentine, varnishes, and other similar chemicals
within a warehouse facility.

3. Storage and distribution of petrolenm and liquid petroleum products within a warehouse facility.

4. Manufacturing of paints, shellac, turpentine, varnishes, and other such chemicals. Manufacturing,
reclaiming, refining, storage, and distribution of cyanide, hazardous materials, and liquid
petroleurn products are prohibited.

5. Paper manufacturing.
6. Bottling plants.

7. Other uses similar to the above which are determined by the board to be consistent with the uses
permitted within the zone.

17.39.030 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit
Unless stated otherwise, the following uses may be permitted subject to securing a special use permit
pursuant to chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions,

1. Fortune tellers, astrology parlors, clairvoyance and palmistry. Additionally, uses under this
subsection must comply with the regulations under Title 5 Business licenses, and be located no
closer than 1,000 feet from a public or private school, religious institution, public building or
facility, or another permitted fortune teller, astrology parlor, clairvoyance and palmistry use, and

Page 30 of 32




10.

11,

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

300 feet from any E, R, or SPR zone.

. Permanent outdoor skateboard parks and related facilities.

. Fairgrounds, rodeo arenas, horse and other animal competition tracks and arenas, and similar

Uses.

Amusement parks involving various devices for entertainment such as thrill and theme rides,
roller-coasters, water slides, and games and concession booths.

Facilities and uses that include outdoor sets and props for the development and production of
movies, film, television, and similar visual media.

Education facilities that include student residential and boarding accommodations,

. Permanent outdoor theatres.
. Billboards as regulated by chapter 17.68 Signs and billboards.

. Zoos, animal theme and amusement parks, and other maintenance, display, or possession of one

or more wild animals.

Healthcare facilities including hospital services, medical services, urgent care, clinics,
convalescent services, civic convalescent and group care service, continuum of care facilities for
seniors, and group care services.

Tattoo, permanent cosmetics, and invasive body piercing facilities. These uses are only allowed
within the boundaries of the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center which is zoned -2 Heavy Industrial,
I-C Industrial-Commercial, or C Commercial. They are prohibited within 1,500 feet of a public
or private school or religious institution.

Retail establishments feataring the display, lease, or rental of “adult material” books,
merchandise, periodicals, video tapes, video disks including DVDs and other recorded video
devices, computer disks, instruments, devices or paraphernalia “adult” material. The
merchandise shall only be available for sale or lease for private use by the purchaser or lessee off
the premises of the business.

Temporary (less than | year) concrete and asphalt batch plants when not incidental to an on-site
construction project or when located within 2,500 feet from a CR, E, R, or SPR zone.

Milling and processing related to mining and extraction.

Natural resources including river and waterway restoration, wetland creation, water restoration
and recycling.

The keeping of 7 or more dogs or potbelly pigs more than 12 weeks of age. A minimum of 10
acres is required.

Commercial kennel. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

Other uses similar to the above that are determined by the board with action by the planning
commission to be consistent with the uses requiring a special use permit within the zone,

Page 31 of 32




17.39.046 Height and Width of Buildings and Structures

A building, manufactured building, or structure may not exceed a height of ten stories or 120 feet,
whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a variance. The requirements of this section do not
apply to church spires, belfties, cupolas, domes, chimneys and smoke-stacks, grain silos, water towers,
flagpoles, and commercial and amateur wireless communication towers and antennas, Wind energy
turbine support structures are regulated by chapter 17,12.044, Height of buildings and structures.

17.39.050 Minimum Parcel Area

Parcel area requirements shall be as follows: (A) commercial uses may be located on a parcel of no less
than 10,000 square-feet; (B) light-industrial uses may be located on a parcel no less than one-half acre;
and (C) heavy-industrial uses may be located on a parcel no less than 3 acres. The minimum area
requirement for uses requiring a special use permit shall be determined by the special use permit, except
that the area shall be no less than 10,000 square-feet.

17.39.660 Loading Area
Loading area must have adequate room for vehicular circulation and staging. All truck parking and
docking area must be designed so that right-of-ways and travelled ways are not adversely impacted.

17.39.070 Setback Requirements

Setback requirements shall be as follows: (A) heavy-industrial uses may be located no closer than 50 feet
from any property line; (B) light-industrial uses may be located no closer than 20 feet from any property
line; and (C) commercial uses shall have a minimum 10 foot rear and side setback and a 20 foot front
setback. Uses requiring a special use permit shall have setback distances established by the granted
special use permit, except that the minimum allowable setback distances shall be no less than 10 feet from

any property line,

Page 32 of 32




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: §~t{-|5 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion; Approval

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting, A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new

; business license holder,

5. Supporting materials: Sec attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

istrict Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
x__ Departmen d Department Name: Community Development

Mty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e

Agenda Item No. 2)(O




Storey County Community Bevelopment

HPBusiness Licenging

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847—09566 * Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

To;

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office July 27, 2015
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the August 4, 2015, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS
A. PURE VIDA SIERRAS ART, LLC -- Home Business / 980 Cartwright Road (artist)
B. RICHARD THOMAS ROOFING - Contractor / 1915 McCloud ~ Reno (roofing contractor)
C. A-1CLEAN CARE - General / 59 Damonte Ranch ~ Reno (janitorial service)
D. AMUNDSON ROOFING, INC, — Contractor / 18124 Wedge Parkway ~ Reno (roofing contractor)
E. 3D DATACOM, INC. - Contractor / 11365 Sunrise Gold Circle ~ Rancho Cordova, CA (elect cont.)
F. TELEDATA CONTRACTORS, INC. - Contractor / 5160 South Valley View ~ Las Vegas (Iv contractor)
G. TIMOTHY FACKLER - General / 48 South A Street (rides for tips) vC
H. A-Z TRUCK MARINE AND RV — General / 3033 Waltham Way (repair, parts, access.) TRI
L. RICH DOSS, INC. — General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC
Inspection Required
ec: Chris Hood, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Commissioners’ Office

Dean Haymore, Economic Dev., Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office




